
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Info Edge (India) Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Info Edge (India) Limited  (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 

as at March 31 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, which we have signed under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2. The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) 
of section 211 of ‘the Companies Act, 1956’ of India (the “Act”).  This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence, about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion
6. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the accompanying financial statements 

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:
(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
7. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003’, as amended by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) Order, 

2004’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

8. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 

purpose of our audit;
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination 

of those books;
(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 

of account;
(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the 

Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;
(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co. , Bangalore
Firm Registration Number:007567S

Chartered Accountants

  Amitesh Dutta
Noida Partner
May 3, 2013 Membership Number 58507
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over 
a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

   
(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed 

off by the Company during the year.

ii.   The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.  Therefore, the provisions of 
Clause 4(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.  

iii. The Company has not granted/taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(iii) (b),(c) and (d) /(f) and (g)  of the said Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of fixed assets and for the sale of 
services.  Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any continuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system. 

v (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of all contracts or arrangements 
that need to be entered into the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered. 

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of such contracts 
or arrangements and exceeding the value of Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices 
which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules 
framed there under.

vii. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

viii. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 
209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the 
Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues 
of income tax, sales tax,  wealth tax, service tax, customs duty and  excise duty as at March 31, 2013 which have not been deposited 
on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (`) Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Disallowances on ESOP 
expenses

3,557,310 FY 2009-10 CIT(Appeals)

x. The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred any cash losses in the financial 
year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

xi. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

xii. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

xiii. As the provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ societies are not applicable to the Company, 
the provisions of Clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv. In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.  Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company
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xvi. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for 
which they were obtained.

xvii. The Company has not raised any loans on short term basis. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xvii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

xviii. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under 
Section 301 of the Act during the year.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix. The Company has not issued any debentures during the year and does not have any debentures outstanding as at the beginning of 
the year and at the year end. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

xx. The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xx) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

xxi. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case 
by the Management.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number: 007567S

Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Noida Partner
May 3, 2013 Membership Number 58507
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars
Note

 As at 
March 31, 2013

As at
March 31, 2012

 (`‘Mn)  (`‘Mn)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) SHAREHOLDER’S FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 3  1,091.81  545.91 
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4  5,562.54  5,198.21 

(2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Long-term borrowings 5  4.82  2.79 

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 6  357.31  270.41 
(b) Other current liabilities 7  1,249.16  1,225.99 
(c) Short-term provisions 8  240.55  231.18 

Total  8,506.19  7,474.49 

II. ASSETS

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Fixed Assets 9
     (i) Tangible assets  857.62  518.81 
     (ii) Intangible assets  50.01  12.31 
     (iii) Capital work-in-progress  98.16  94.43 

(b) Non-Current Investments 10  2,953.88  2,871.71 
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 11  44.85  41.74 
(d) Long term loans and advances 12  158.60  127.04 
(e) Other non-current assets 13  1,047.21  666.98 

(2) CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Current investments 14  1,293.07  942.20 
(b) Trade receivables 15  44.58  35.92 
(c) Cash and bank balances 16  1,783.31  2,043.14 
(d) Short-term loans and advances 12  102.76  62.12 
(e) Other current assets 13  72.14  58.09 

Total  8,506.19  7,474.49 
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the  Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars
Note

 Year ended 
March 31, 2013 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2012 

 (`‘Mn)  (`‘Mn)

I. Revenue from operations 17  4,372.58  3,770.84 
II. Other Income 18  464.94  394.57 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)  4,837.52  4,165.41 

IV. Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 19  1,672.17  1,369.96 
Finance Costs 20  24.80  20.12 
Depreciation and Amortisation 21  94.46  76.61 
Advertising and Promotion cost 22  576.50  515.97 
Administration and Other expenses 23  486.42  349.30 
Network, Internet and Other direct charges 24  139.40  93.17 

Total Expenses  2,993.75  2,425.13 

 1,843.77  1,740.28 

VI. Exceptional Item 40  292.87  3.53 

 1,550.90  1,736.75 

VIII.  Tax Expense
 (1) Current Tax  531.55  511.59 
 (2) Deferred Tax 11 (3.11) (1.07)

 1,022.46  1,226.23 

 1,022.46  1,226.23 

XI. Earnings per equity share: Nominal Value of Share `10/- (Previous Year `10/-)
      (1) Basic 30  9.36  11.23 
      (2) Diluted  9.36  11.23 
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of 
even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

S.No. Particulars  For the year ended March 31, 2013  For the year ended March 31, 2012 
Amount (`‘Mn) Amount (`‘Mn)

A.
Net Profit before Exceptional item and Tax 1,843.77 1,740.28

Adjustments for:
  Depreciation 94.46 76.61
  Interest Expense 0.95 0.67
  Interest Income (245.24) (192.52)
  Dividend Income from Mutual Funds (87.28) (120.65)
  (Profit)/Loss on Fixed Assets sold (net) (0.14) (0.82)
  (Profit)/Loss on sale of Investments (net) (116.05) (68.06)
  Interest Income on Debentures (5.09) (1.17)
  Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 3.47 0.45
  Liability no longer required written back (23.58) (14.46)
  Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment 1.32 (1.99)
  TDS on revenue receipts (227.93) (214.38)
  Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation Expense 14.68 14.98

1,253.34  1,218.94 

 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Sundry Debtors (12.18) 2.48
 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Loans, Advances and Other Current Assets (82.08) 21.76
 - INCREASE/(DECREASE) in Current Liabilities and Provisions 133.49 360.54

Cash generated from operating activities 1,292.57  1,603.72 

 - Taxes (Paid) / Received (Net of TDS) (289.63) (344.78)

Net cash from operating activities 1,002.94 1,258.94

B.

Purchase of fixed assets (471.80) (75.50)
Proceeds from Sale of fixed assets 3.60 2.25
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 6,811.89 5,952.43
Purchase of Investments (5,871.16) (5,700.33)
Purchase of Fixed Deposits (284.87) (440.85)
Interest Received 244.80 143.88
Dividend Received 87.28 120.65
Amount paid on acquisition of shares/debentures of other enterpirses (Subsidiaries and assoicates) (1,543.33) (1,029.30)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,023.59) (1,026.77)

C.

Repayment of long term borrowings (Net) 2.86 (0.14)
Interest Paid  (0.91) (0.67)
Dividend Paid (109.16) (40.94)
Dividend Tax Paid (17.71) (6.80)

(124.92) (48.55)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (145.57) 183.62

Opening Balance of Cash and cash equivalents (April 01, 2012/April 01, 2011) 287.50 103.88

Closing  Balance of Cash and cash equivalents 141.93 287.50

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash in hand 2.60 3.41

-in current accounts (Refer note 2 and 3 below) 139.33 258.34
-in Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  -  25.75 
Total Cash and Cash equivalents  141.93  287.50 

-in Fixed deposits with original maturity exceeding than 3 months 2,659.31 2,374.44
Total 2,801.24 2,661.94

Notes :
1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement, prescribed under Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as notified by the Central Government vide its notification dated December 7,2006.
2 Balance with scheduled bank in current account includes `0.12 Million (previous year `0.12 Million) in respect of unpaid application money due for refund, which is not available 

for use by the company.
3 Balance with scheduled bank in current account includes `0.09 Million (previous year `0.07 Million) in respect of unclaimed dividend, which is not available for use by the 

company.
4 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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1. General Information

Info Edge (India) Ltd (the company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on two stock exchanges in India. 

The Company was converted to a public limited company and its name was changed to Info Edge (India) Limited with effect from April 
27, 2006.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the 
accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and the other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

2.2 Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition along with related taxes, duties and incidental expenses related to these 
assets.

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.

Profit/Loss on disposal of fixed assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.3 Depreciation

Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are depreciated under Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows: 

Assets Estimated life (Years)
Building
Computers

20
3

Office Equipment                                 3
Vehicles 4
Plant and Machinery 5
Furniture & Fixtures 7

Intangible Assets

Fixed Assets are depreciated under Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows:

Assets Estimated life (Years)
Other Software Licenses 3
Enterprise Resource Planning Software 5

Cost of Operating and Marketing rights acquired is amortised over a period of 5 years.

Leasehold Land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period, which corresponds with the useful lives of the 
related assets.

Assets costing less than or equal to `5,000 were fully depreciated in the year of acquisition upto March 31,2012. With effect from 
April 01, 2012 such assets are depreciated @ 100% pro-rata from date of acquisition. The impact of this change in Accounting policy 
results in increase of profit by `9.58 million during the year.

The effective rates of depreciation based on the estimated useful lives are above the minimum rates as prescribed by Schedule XIV 
of the Act.

2.4 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gain/Loss arising on fluctuation 
in foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and the overall net gain/
loss is adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.5 Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue significantly from the following sources viz.

a) Recruitment solutions through its career web site, Naukri.com:-

Revenue is received in the form of fees, which is recognized prorata over the subscription / advertising agreement, usually 
ranging between one to twelve months.

b) Matrimonial web site, Jeevansathi.com and Real Estate website, 99acres.com:-

Revenue is received in the form of subscription fees, which is recognized over the period of subscription, usually ranging 
between one to twelve months. 

c) Placement search division, Quadrangle:- 

Revenue is received in the form of fees, for placements at various levels in a client’s organization. Revenue is booked on the 
successful completion of the search and selection activity.

d) Real Estate broking division:-

Commission income on property bookings placed with builders/developers is accrued once the related services have been 
rendered by the company.

e) Resume Sales Service:-

The revenue from Resume Sale Services is earned in the form of fees and is recognized on completion of the related service.

In respect of a) and b) above, the unaccrued amounts are not recognized as revenue till all obligations are fulfilled and are reflected 
in the Balance sheet as Income received in advance (Deferred Sales Revenue.)

All the above sources of revenue are shown net of service tax and is not recognized in instances where there is uncertainty with 
regard to ultimate collection. In such cases revenue is recognized on reasonable certainty of collection.

2.6 Investments

Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value of such investments. Current investments 
are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

The company has Defined Contribution plan for the post-employment benefits namely Provident Fund which is recognized by the 
income tax authorities. These funds are administered through the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Company’s 
contributions thereto are charged to revenue every year. The Company’s contribution to state plans namely Employee State Insurance 
Fund is charged to revenue every year.

The Company has Defined Benefit plans namely leave encashment, compensated absence and gratuity for employees, the liability 
for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year. The Gratuity Fund is recognized by the income 
tax authorities and is administered through Life Insurance Corporation of India under its Group Gratuity Scheme.

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense immediately.

Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuations are recognized immediately in the Profit and Loss Account as income or expense.

2.8 Leased Assets

a) Assets acquired on lease where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of minimum lease 
payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease amount paid is allocated between the liability and the 
interest cost, so as to maintain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

b) Leases of assets under which significant risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified 
as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

2.9 Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax reflects the effect of temporary timing differences between 
the assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for current tax purposes. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable/virtual certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. 

2.10 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit after tax and include the post tax effect of any extra 
ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Stock options granted to the employees and to the non-executive Directors who accepted the grant under the Company’s Stock 
Option Plan are accounted in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Option Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999 as amended from time to time and the guidance note on Employee Share Based Payments issued by ICAI. The Company 
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follows the intrinsic value method and accordingly, the excess, if any, of the market price of the underlying equity shares as of the 
date of the grant of the option over the exercise price of the option, is recognized as employee compensation cost and amortised on 
a graded vesting basis over the vesting period.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 
obligation cannot be made.

2.13 Dividend income

Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established and when no significant uncertainty 
as to measurability or collectability exists. 

2.14 Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on the time basis determined by the amount outstanding including the tax credits and the rate 
applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

2.15 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the Management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.  The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. Share Capital          (Amount `Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
120.00 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each (Previous year – 60.00 Million Equity Shares 
of `10/- each) 1,200.00 600.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
109.18 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each fully paid up 1,091.81 545.91
(Previous year – 54.59 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each fully paid up)

Total 1,091.81 545.91

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars As at March 31, 2013 
No. of Shares

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012
No. of Shares

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the period 54,590,512 545.91 54,590,512 545.91
Add: Issued during the period 54,590,512 545.90 - -

Outstanding at the end of the period 109,181,024 1091.81 54,590,512 545.91

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Particulars For the year 
ended March 

31, 2013

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2012

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2011

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2010

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2009
Equity Shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares 
by capitalisation of securities premium

54,590,512 - 27,295,256 - -

Total 54,590,512 - 27,295,256 - -
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d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2013 For the year ended March 31, 2012

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid
- Sanjeev Bikhchandani 37,370,812 34.23 19,235,406 35.24
- Sanjeev Bikhchandani & Hitesh Oberoi holding 
on behalf of Endeavour holding Trust

8,734,880 8.01 4,367,440 8.00

- Hitesh Oberoi 7,400,118 6.78 3,798,782 6.96

Total 53,505,810 49.02 27,401,628 50.20

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn)

Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 1,310.07 1,310.07
Less: Utilisation for issue of bonus shares 545.91 764.16 - 1,310.07

General Reserve
Opening Balance 145.57 48.54
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss 
under Companies (Transfer of Profit to Reserves 
Rules), 1975

- 91.97

Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 
(Stock Options Outstanding Account)

1.56 147.13 5.06 145.57

Opening Balance 40.52 30.62
Add: Transfer during the year 14.68 14.98
Less: Adjusted against advance given to Info Edge 
Employees Stock Option Trust

0.01 0.02

Less: Transfer to Profit & Loss Account 1.56 53.63 5.06 40.52

Opening Balance            3,702.05 2,694.68
Add: Net Profit after tax transferred from statement 
of Profit and Loss

1,022.46 1,226.23

Transfer from Stock Option Outstanding Account                  1.56 5.06

Less: Appropriations
Proposed Dividend 109.18 109.18
Dividend Tax 17.71 17.71
Transfer to General Reserve under Companies 
(Transfer of Profit to Reserves Rules), 1975

- 91.97

Transfer to General Reserve (Employee Stock 
Options Outstanding Account)

1.56 4,597.62 5.06 3,702.05

Total 5,562.54 5,198.21
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5. LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars Non-Current Portion Current Maturities

As at March 
31, 2013

As at March 
31, 2012

As at March 
31, 2013

As at March 
31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn)

SECURED LOANS
Term Loans from banks 4.82 2.79 4.65 3.81
Current Maturities transferred to Current Liabilities - - (4.65) (3.81)

4.82 2.79 - -

a. Term Loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of Vehicles taken on lease.

b. Term loans carry interest rates ranging from 6% to 11%. The loan is repayable along with interest within 2 to 3 years from the date 
of loan.

Finance Lease Liabilities- minimum lease payments: As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn)
Not later than 1 year 5.41 4.30
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 5.14 3.01

Total minimum lease payments 10.55 7.31
Less: Future finance charges on finance leases 1.08 0.71

9.47 6.60

Representing lease liabilities:
- Current 4.65 3.81
- Non Current 4.82 2.79

9.47 6.60

Not later than 1 year 4.65 3.81
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4.82 2.79

Total 9.47 6.60

6. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at March 
31, 2013

As at March 
31, 2012

As at March 
31, 2013

As at March 
31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn)

Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises - - - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and 
medium enterprises

- - 357.31 270.41

Total - - 357.31 270.41

Based on information available with the Company, there are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined in Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2013.
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7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at March 31, 2013  
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012  
(`Mn)

Current Maturities of Term Loans transferred from Long Term Borrowings 4.65 3.81
Interest accrued but not due on loans 0.07 0.04
Income received in advance (Deferred Sales Revenue) 1,212.19 1,189.03
Unpaid Dividend* 0.09 0.07
Unpaid Application Money received by the company for allotment of securities and due 
for refund*

0.12 0.12

Others
-Service Tax Payable (0.64) 8.87
-TDS Payable 26.86 19.58
-Others 5.82 4.47

Total 1,249.16 1,225.99
* Will be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due

8. PROVISIONS

Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at March 
31, 2013

As at March 
31, 2012

As at March 
31, 2013

As at March 
31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn) (`Mn)

Provision for Compensated Absence - - 19.50 20.00

Provision for Gratuity - - 16.98 15.16

Other Provisions
Accrued Bonus - - 69.82 69.13

Provision for Tax - -          2,477.88 -
Less: Advance Tax - -     (2,470.52) -

Proposed Dividend - - 109.18 109.18

Dividend Tax - - 17.71 17.71

Total - - 240.55 231.18
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9. FIXED ASSETS (`Mn)

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK(AT COST) DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

As at 
April 01, 

2012

Additions
during

the year

Deletions/
Write off 

during the 
year

As at 
March

31, 2013

Up to 
April 01, 

2012

Depreciation/
Amortisation

for the year

Accumulated
Depreciation
on Deletions

As at 
March

31, 2013

As at 
March

31, 2013

As at 
March

31, 2012

Own Assets

Tangible Assets

Leasehold Land 346.95 - - 346.95 15.74 5.14 - 20.88 326.07 331.21
Building 91.19 - - 91.19 6.43 4.56 - 10.99 80.20 84.76
Leasehold 
Improvements

67.19 226.78 0.81 293.16 60.38 7.18 0.81 66.75 226.41 6.81

Computers 198.00 61.98 18.70 241.28 134.54 44.55 16.71 162.38 78.90 63.46
Plant and 
Machinery

34.10 25.50 0.16 59.44 31.40 2.19 0.16 33.43 26.01 2.70

Furniture and 
Fixtures

34.88 62.04 0.07 96.85 25.98 6.86 0.04 32.80 64.05 8.90

Office Equipment 57.61 40.66 0.70 97.57 47.61 9.18 0.69 56.10 41.47 10.00
Vehicles 0.73 - - 0.73 0.73 - - 0.73 - -

Finance Lease
Vehicles 20.75 10.37 5.94 25.18 9.78 5.41 4.52 10.67 14.51 10.97

Total 851.40 427.33 26.38 1,252.35 332.59 85.07 22.93 394.73 857.62 518.81

Intangible Assets

Own Assets 
(Acquired)
Goodwill 0.26 - - 0.26 0.26 - - 0.26 - -
Operating and 
Marketing Rights

27.56 - - 27.56 27.56 - - 27.56 - -

Enterprise
Resource 
Planning Software

21.30 4.65 - 25.95 9.85 5.04 - 14.89 11.06 11.45

Other Software 
Licenses

4.92 42.44 - 47.36 4.06 4.35 - 8.41 38.95 0.86

Total 54.04 47.09 - 101.13 41.73 9.39 - 51.12 50.01 12.31

Total 905.44 474.42 26.38 1,353.48 374.32 94.46 22.93 445.85 907.63 531.12

Previous Year 856.40 70.43 21.39 905.44 317.66 76.61 19.95 374.32 531.12

10. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)

Others (Unquoted) (valued at cost unless otherwise stated)

Investments in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Companies
9,800 (Previous year – 9,800) shares of Jeevansathi Internet Services 
Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (two hundred shares are held by the 
nominees of the company) 0.10 0.10
9,998 (Previous year – 9,998) shares of Naukri Internet Services Pvt. Ltd. 
of `10/- each fully paid up. (two shares are held by the nominees of the 
company) 0.10 0.10
7,009,999 (Previous year – 7,009,999) shares of Allcheckdeals India Pvt. 
Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (One share is held by Naukri Internet 
Services Pvt Ltd) 70.10 70.10
4,99,999 (Previous year- NIL) shares of Makesense Technologies Pvt. 
Ltd. of `10 each fully paid up. (and share premium of `154.82/- per share 
(Previous Year- NIL ) 82.41 -
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Particulars As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)
1,63,827 (Previous year – NIL) shares of Zomato Media Pvt Ltd (formerly 
DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited) of `1/- each fully paid up. 
(and share premium of `5252.08/- per share. 860.60 -
19,300 (Previous year – 13,210) shares of Applect Learning Systems 
Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `32,015.88/-
(Previous year-  `8254.47 )per share computed on average basis ) 618.10 168.10
1,112,001(Previous year – 1,112,001) shares of Info Edge (India) Mauritius 
Limited of USD 1/- each fully paid up Less: Provision for diminution in 
value of investment (Refer Note No. 40)

45.60

(45.60) 1631.41

45.60

(45.00) 239.00

Investment in Equity Instruments of Associate Companies
11,950 (Previous year - 11,950) shares of eTechAces Marketing and 
Consulting Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of 
`16,726.40/- per share (Previous Year- `16726.40/-)). 200.00 200.00
258 (Previous year - 258) shares of Nogle Technologies Pvt. Ltd. of `10/-
each fully paid up. (and share premium of `40/- (Previous Year-  `40/- )per 
share). 0.01 0.01
Nil (Previous year – 58,480) shares of Zomato Media Pvt Ltd (formerly DC 
Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited) of `1/- each fully paid up. (and 
share premium of Nil per share. (Previous year- `802.69)) - 47.00
476,666 (Previous year - 476,666) shares of Ninety Nine Labels Pvt. Ltd. of 
`10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `102.38/- (Previous Year-
`102.38/-)per share computed on average basis.)
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment (Refer Note No. 40)

    53.57

   (53.55)

53.57

-
100 (Previous year - NIL) shares of Happily Unmarried Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 
of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `12,709.12/- (Previous 
Year-NIL) per share.)     1.27 -
3,553 (Previous year - NIL) shares of Canvera Digital Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 
of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `1,167/- (Previous Year-
NIL) per share.) 4.15 205.45 - 300.58

Investment in Unsecured 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares of Subsidiary Company
NIL (Previous year – 15,000) shares of Applect Learning Systems Pvt. Ltd. 
of `10,000/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of NIL (Previous Year 
`9 999 /-) per share) - 150.00

Investments in Preference Shares of Associate Companies                                                                                                    
5,345 (Previous year - 4,571) 0.1% cummulative convertible preference 
shares of eTechAces Marketing and Consulting Pvt. Ltd. of `100/- each 
fully paid up. (and share premium of `21,781.31/- (Previous Year- 
`21,781.31/-)per share computed on average basis.) 124.99 100.02
498,400 (Previous year - 498,400) 0.1% cummulative convertible 
preference shares shares of Ninety Labels Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid 
up. (and share premium of `253.91/- per share).
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment (Refer Note No. 40)

131.53

(131.50)

131.53

-
NIL (Previous year - 44,584) 0.1% cummulative convertible preference 
shares shares of Zomato Media Pvt Ltd (formerly DC Foodiebay Online 
Services Pvt. Ltd.)  of `1/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `Nil
(Previous year `3026.99)). - 135.00
4,647 (Previous year - 4,201) cummulative convertible preference shares 
of Nogle Technologies Pvt. Ltd.  of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share 
premium of `4,724.24/- (Previous Year- `4750.77/-)per share computed on 
average basis) 22.00 20.00
107,801 (Previous year - 107,801) 0.1% cummulative convertible 
preference shares of Kinobeo Software Pvt. Ltd.  of `10/- each fully paid 
up. (and share premium of `2,494.61/- (Previous Year-`2,494.61/-per share 
computed on average basis) 270.00 270.00
299,658 (Previous year – NIL) 0.1% cummulative convertible preference 
shares of Canvera Digital Technologies Pvt. Ltd. of `1/- each fully paid up. 
(and share premium of `1,167 /- (Previous Year- NIL ) per share) 350.00 -
3,928 (Previous year – NIL) 0.1% cummulative convertible preference 
shares of Happily Unmarried Marketing Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. 
(and share premium of `12,719.12 /- (Previous Year- NIL ) per share) 50.00 817.02 - 656.55

INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



Particulars As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)

Investment in Unsecured Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures of 
Associate Company
NIL (Previous year - 50) debentures of Ninety Nine Labels Pvt. Ltd. of  `10
Lakh each fully paid up. - 50.00

Investments in Mutual Funds
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in ICICI Prudential FMP 
Series 54-1 year Plan A Cumulative - 50.00
Nil (Previous year 4,000,000) Units of `10/- each in DSP Blackrock FMP-
Series 37-13M- Growth - 40.00
Nil (Previous year 5,898,767) Units of `10/- each in DSP BlackRock FMP-
Series 43-12M-Growth - 58.99
Nil (Previous year 5,503,000) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed Term Plan - 
Series 22 (374 days)-Growth Plan - 55.03
Nil (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in HDFC 5978 FMP 399D 
March 2012 (1)-Growth-Series-XXI - 50.00
Nil (Previous year 5,503,750) Units of `10/- each in 5964/ HDFC FMP 400D 
March 2012 (1) - Growth - Series XXI - 55.04
Nil (Previous year 5,514,990) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
80-Growth - 55.15
NIL (Previous year 4,631,731) Units of `10.80 /- each in ICICI Prudential 
Interval Fund Annual Interval Plan-I Institutional Cumulative Growth - 50.00
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in ICICI Prudential FMP 
Series 67-371 Days Plan C Direct Plan 50.00 -
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in DSP Blackrock Fixed 
Term Plan 12M Series 6- Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 5,493,950) Units of `10/- each in DSP Blackrock FMP 
12M Series 32-Growth - 54.94
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in DSP Blackrock FMP 
Series 10 12M-Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in 5795 HDFC FMP 370D 
March 2011 (2) - Growth - Series XVI - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in HDFC FMP 13M Sep 
11(1)-Growth-Series-XVIII - 50.00
5,000,000 (Previous year Nil) Units of `10 /- each HDFC FMP 400D March 
2013 (1)  Series 23-Direct-Growth 50.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year Nil) Units of `10 /- each HDFC FMP 384D March 
2013(1) Series 23-Direct-Growth 50.00 -
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in IDFC FMP - yearly 
Series 45 Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 5,491,200) Units of `10/- each in IDFC Fixed Maturity 
Plan-yearly Series 48 Growth - 54.91
NIL (Previous year 5,506,300) Units of `10/- each in IDFC FMP yearly 
Series-51-Growth - 55.06
Nil (Previous year 5,503,400) Units of``10/- each in IDFC Fixed Maturity 
yearly Series 63 Growth - 55.03
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
44-Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 4,468,913) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
75-Growth - 44.69
NIL (Previous year 5,510,066) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
78-Growth - 55.10
10,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
100-Growth 100.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
102-Growth 50.00 -
NIL (Previous year 5,509,983) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP Series 
83-Growth - 55.10
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Particulars As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012  

(`Mn)
NIL (Previous year 5,150,000) Units of `10/- each in L&T FMP Series 
6-Plan-C Growth - 51.50
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in L&T FMP Series 6 - 
Plan E-Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed Term Plan - 
Series 16 (370 Days)-Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 2,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed Term Plan - 
Series 17 (12 Months)-Growth Plan - 20.00
NIL (Previous year 6,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Birla Sun Life Fixed 
Term Plan Series DX Growth - 60.00
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Birla Sun Life Fixed 
Term Plan Series EE Growth - 50.00
NIL (Previous year 5,502,950) Units of `10/- each in Birla Sun Life Fixed 
Term Plan Series EQ Growth - 55.04
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in SBI Debt Fund 
Series-367 Days-6-Growth - 300.00 50.00 1,475.58

TOTAL 2,953.88 2,871.71

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/(LIABILITY)

Particulars As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

Opening Balance 41.74 40.67
Adjustment for the current year 3.11 1.07

Closing Balance 44.85 41.74

Significant components of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) are shown in the following table:

Particulars As at March 31, 2013
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012
(`Mn)

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)
Provision for Leave Encashment 6.33 6.49
Provision for Doubtful Debts 1.60 1.62
Depreciation 15.60 20.60
Others 21.32 13.03

Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) 44.85 41.74

12. LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital Advances 58.55 64.87 - -
Security Deposits 76.86 46.63 13.00 12.20
Advance to Subsidiary Company - - 28.59 4.29
Amount to Associate Company towards 
Shares

- - 4.00 -

Others
- Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 
or for value to be received*

23.19 15.54 32.39 40.17

- Advance  Recoverable  From ESOP 
Trust

- - (0.02) (0.03)

- Balance with Service Tax Authorities - - 23.80 2.82
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Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

- Advance Tax - - - 1948.15
  Less: Provision for Tax - - - (1,946.48)

- Advance Tax - Fringe Benefits - - 29.69 29.69
  Less: Provision for Tax - Fringe 
Benefits

- - (28.69) (28.69)

Total 158.60 127.04 102.76 62.12
* Includes  Nil  (Previous year `(0.05) Million) outstanding with directors

13. OTHER NON CURRENT/ CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

(Unsecured Considered Good)

Non-Current Current

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

As at March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Non Current portion of Fixed Deposits 
transferred from Cash & Bank Balances

1,017.93 618.80 - -   

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 29.28 48.18 72.14 57.73
Interest Accrued on Debentures - - - 0.36

Total 1,047.21 666.98 72.14 58.09

14. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted) (Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)
3,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in 1978 ICICI 
Prudential FMP Series 65-367 Days Plan B Cummulative 30.00 -
5000000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in ICICI Prudential 
FMP Series 65-366 Days Plan I Direct Plan Commulative 50.00 -
7,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP-Series 90-12M- Growth 70.00 -
4,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP-Series 37-13M- Growth 40.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
BlackRock FMP-Series 68-12M-Institutional Plan-Growth Option 50.00 -
5,898,767 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
BlackRock FMP-Series 43-12M-Growth 58.99 -
3,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP Series 47-12M-Growth 30.00 -
2,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP Series 81-12M-Growth 20.00 -
5,503,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed 
Term Plan - Series 22 (374 days)-Growth Plan 55.03 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in 6082/HDFC 
FMP 371D August (1)-Growth-Series 22 50.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in HDFC 5978 
FMP 399D March 2012 (1)-Growth-Series-XXI 50.00 -
5,503,750 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in 5964/ HDFC 
FMP 400D March 2012 (1) - Growth - Series XXI 55.04 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in IDFC Fixed 
Maturity Plan 366 Days Series 73-Dividend 50.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in IDFC Fixed 
Maturity Plan 366 Days Series 78-Dividend 50.00 -
5,514,990 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Kotak FMP 
Series 80-Growth 55.15 -
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Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted) (Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in B1070G Birla 
Sun Life Fixed Term Plan Series FO Growth 50.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in B1089G Birla 
Sun Life Fixed Term Plan Series FV Growth (367 Days) 50.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in  SBI Debt 
Fund Series-366 Day-12-Growth 50.00 -
5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in  L302G SBI 
Debt Fund Series-366 Day-8-Growth 50.00 914.21 - -
NIL (Previous Year 10,837,343) Units of `10/- each in HDFC Cash 
Management Fund-Treasury Advantage Plan - Wholesale Daily 
Dividend - 108.72
723,783 (Previous Year 1,897,278) Units of `105.74/- each in ICICI 
Prudential Flexible Income Plan Premium - Daily Dividend 76.53 200.61
3,909,467 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10.08/- each in HDFC 
Cash Management Fund -Treasury Advantage Plan - Wholesale 
Daily Dividend 39.41 -
6,08,798 (Previous Year 4,414) Units of `100.09/- each in Birla Sun 
Life Saving Fund -Instl-Daily Dividend Reinvestment 60.94 0.44
NIL (Previous Year 153,976) Units of `10/- each in SBI SHF Ultra 
Short Term Fund IP Daily Dividend - 154.07
NIL (Previous Year 3,775,183) Units of `10.01/- each in Templeton 
India Ultra Short Bond Fund Institutional Plan Daily Dividend - 37.79
13,679,356 (Previous Year 27,079,374) Units of `10.02/- each in 
Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super Institutional Plan 
Daily Dividend 137.03 271.11
3,620,713 (Previous Year 2,688,154) Units of `10.05/- each in 
Kotak Flexi Debt Scheme Institutional - Daily Dividend 36.38 27.01
NIL (Previous Year 1,483,809) Units of `10/- each in Fidelity Ultra 
Short Term Debt Fund Super Instl - Daily Dividend - 14.85
NIL (Previous Year 29,469) Units of ``/10- each in IDFC Cash 
Fund-Investment Plan B-Daily Dividend - 31.20
NIL (Previous Year 9,638,342) Units of `10/- each in IDFC Money 
Manager Fund - TP - Super Inst Plan C - Daily Div - 96.40
98,906 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10.01/- each in IDFC Ultra 
Short Term Fund Daily Dividend 0.99 -
27,572 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `1,000.32/- each in DSP 
Blackrock Liquidity Fund-Institutional Plan - Daily Dividend 27.58 378.86 - 942.20

TOTAL 1,293.07 942.20
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Non-Current Current

As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date 
they are due for payment
 - Doubtful - - 3.58 4.18

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - - (3.58) (4.18)

Total (A) - - - -

Other Receivables
 - Unsecured, considered good - - 44.58 35.92
 - Doubtful - - 1.40 0.82

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - - (1.40) (0.82)

Total (B) 44.58 35.92

Total (A) + (B) - - 44.58 35.92

16. CASH & BANK BALANCES

Particulars Non-Current Current

As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2013 

(`Mn)

As at March 
31, 2012 

(`Mn)

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand - - 2.60 3.41

   -in Current Accounts - - 139.12 258.15
   -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of less than 3 
months

- - - 25.75

   -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for more than 
12 months

1,017.93 618.80 - -

 Non Current portion transferred to non current assets (1,017.93) (618.80) - -

Balances in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for 
more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

- - 1,641.38 1,755.64

Unpaid Application Money received by the company for allotment 
of securities and due for refund **

- - 0.12 0.12

Unpaid Dividend ** 0.09 0.07

Total - - 1,783.31 2,043.14
* includes `55.00 Million (Previous year `50.28 Million) as margin money with bank

** (Not available for use by the company)

17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Sale of Services 4,349.00  3,756.38
Other Operating Revenues 23.58 14.46

Total 4,372.58 3,770.84

INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 63

18. OTHER INCOME

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Interest Received/Receivable on Long Term Fixed Deposits with Banks 61.33 70.37
Interest Received/Receivable on Short Term Fixed Deposits with Banks 183.91 122.15
Interest on Debentures 5.09 1.17
Dividend Income from Mutual Funds 87.28 120.65
Profit on sale of Investment (net) 116.05 68.06
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (net) 0.14 0.82
Miscellaneous Income 11.14 11.35

Total 464.94 394.57

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,303.04 1,041.54
Contributions to Provident and other funds 43.43 37.73
Sales Incentives and Commissions 191.75 170.86
Staff Welfare and Benefits 83.30 68.88
Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation 14.68 14.98
Other Employee Expenses 35.97 35.97

Total 1,672.17 1,369.96

20. FINANCE COSTS

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Interest on fixed loans 0.95 0.67
Others 23.85 19.45

Total 24.80 20.12

21. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Depreciation of Tangible Assets 85.07 70.44
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 9.39 6.17

Total 94.46 76.61

22. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COST

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Advertisement Expenses 560.13 503.92
Promotion & Marketing Expenses 16.37 12.05

Total 576.50 515.97

23. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Electricity and Water 42.37 28.76
Rent 171.84 107.59
Repairs and Maintenance (Building) 16.10 13.31
Repairs and Maintenance (Machinery) 19.38 18.06
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Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Legal and Professional Charges 32.16 28.12
Rates & Taxes 0.06 0.07
Insurance 2.73 1.97
Communication expenses 48.05 43.72
Travel & Conveyance 52.31 43.23
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3.47 0.45
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions 1.97 1.25
Miscellaneous expenses 95.98 62.77

Total 486.42 349.30

24. NETWORK, INTERNET AND OTHER DIRECT CHARGES

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 
(`Mn)

Year ended March 31, 2012 
(`Mn)

Internet and Server Charges 130.89 85.29
Others 8.51 7.88

Total 139.40 93.17

25.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As on March 31, 2013 there is a capital advance of `58.55 Million (Previous Year `64.87 Million) outstanding against capital account 
contracts. This primarily includes the following:      

(i) `58.28 Million (Previous year `60.94 Million) relating to the project for construction of office building on leasehold land in respect 
of which extension for construction based  on sanctioned plan  have been taken from the relevant authorities. The management is 
alternatively exploring possibilities of sale of the land/ project on a lump sum basis.

(ii) `0.27 Million  towards office equipment ( Previous Year `3.93 Million towards ERP software)

     

26. Operating Leases where the company is a lessee:

The company has entered into lease transactions mainly for leasing of office premises for periods between 1 to 11 years. The terms of 
lease include terms of renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation. The operating lease payments recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss amount to `172.09 Million (included in Note 23 – Administration and Other Expenses `171.84 Million 
and in Note-19 Employee Benefits Expense `0.25 Million [(Previous Year `108.38 Million) (included in Note 23 – Administration and Other 
Expenses `107.59 Million and in Note 19 – Employee Benefits Expense `0.79 Million)].      
    

27. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Amount in `Mn

Particulars Year ended  March 31, 2013 Year ended  March 31, 2012
Server Charges 102.18 62.42
Advertising, Promotion & Marketing Expenses 13.87 19.63
Travel Expenses 0.36 0.75
Foreign Branch Expenses 46.43 39.61
Others 7.24 5.95

Total 170.08 128.36

28. Earnings in Foreign Exchange Amount in `Mn

Particulars Year ended  March 31, 2013  Year ended  March 31, 2012
Export of Services 434.55 347.03

Total 434.55 347.03
In view of the innumerable transactions, export of services has been disclosed in proportion to the overall deferral of Income trend.

INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 65

29. Auditor’s Remuneration Amount in `Mn

Particulars Year ended  March 31, 2013 Year ended  March 31, 2012
As Auditors 2.76 2.30
As Tax Auditors 0.24 0.20
Certification 0.24 -
Out of Pocket Expenses & Service Tax 0.32 0.56

Total 3.56 3.06

30. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS):    

Particulars Year ended  March 31, 2013  Year ended  March 31, 2012
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (`Mn) 1,022.46 1,226.23
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 
(Nos.)

109,181,024 54,590,512

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of `10 each (`) 9.36 11.23
The authorised share capital of the company has increased from `600 Million to `1,200 Million during the year ended March 31 ,2013. 
Further, during the year ended March 31, 2013 the company had issued 54,590,512 equity shares of `10/- each, fully paid up, as bonus 
shares in the ratio of 1:1 out of securities premium account. Accordingly, the EPS has been adjusted for the previous year, as per the 
requirements of Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share.

31. (1) Related Party Disclosures

where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2013:

Subsidiaries
Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited ( JISPL)
Naukri Internet Services Private Limited (NISPL)
Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited (IEIML)
Allcheckdeals India Pvt. Ltd. (ACDIPL)
Applect Learning Systems Pvt. Ltd. (ALSPL)
Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd.(MTPL)
Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited (ZMPL))

Associates
Nogle Technologies Private Limited (NTPL)
eTechAces Marketing & Consulting Pvt. Ltd. (EMCPL)
Ninty Nine Labels Private Limited (99LABELS)
Kinobeo Software Private Limited (Mydala)
Happily Unmarried Marketing Pvt. Ltd.(HUMPL)
Canvera Digital Technologies Private Limited (CDTPL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Surabhi Bikhchandani (Spouse of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Sushil Bikhchandani (Brother of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Hitesh Oberoi
Divya Batra (Sister of Hitesh Oberoi)
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Minik Enterprises (Proprietorship concern of Sushil Bikhchandani)
Oyster Learning ( Proprietorship concern of Rimy Oberoi)

Independent Directors- Non Executive
Arun Duggal
Ashish Gupta
Bala Deshpande
Naresh Gupta
Saurabh Srivastava

Non-Executive Directors
Kapil Kapoor
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B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`Mn)

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / 
transaction

Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises
over which 

KMP & 
Relatives

have

Total

1 License Fee Paid:
JISPL ` 0.10
NISPL ` 0.10 0.20 -

                                            
-   - - - 0.20

2 Remuneration Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 16.07
Hitesh Oberoi ` 15.84  
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 11.81
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 1.25 - - 44.97 - - - 44.97

3 Advances Given for business 
purposes (net):
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 0.03
Hitesh Oberoi ` 0.02
NISPL ` 0.03
JISPL ` 0.03
MTPL ` 2.43             
ACDIPL ` 14.07 16.57 - 0.04 - - - 16.61

 4 Receipt of services:
Minik Enterprises ` 1.36
Divya Batra ` 0.52
ACDIPL ` 2.97 2.97 - 0.52 - - 1.36 4.85

5 Dividend Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 38.47
Hitesh Oberoi ` 7.60
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 2.07
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 1.49
Arun Duggal ` 0.08
Bala Deshpande ` 0.10
Kapil Kapoor ` 3.81 - - 49.64 0.18 3.81 - 53.63

6 Services Rendered:
ACDIPL ` 12.23
ALSPL ` 0.15
EMCPL ` 0.29
ZMPL ` 0.00
NTPL ` 0.00
Mydala ` 0.10 12.38 0.40 - - - - 12.78

7 Investment in Equity shares:
ALSPL ` 300.00
CDTPL ` 4.15    
ZMPL ` 550.00
HUMPL ` 1.27
MTPL ` 82.41 932.41 5.42              -

                     

- -              - 937.83
8 Investment in Preference Shares:

EMCPL ` 24.97
HUMPL ` 50.00
ZMPL ` 128.60
NTPL ` 2.00
CDTPL ` 350.00 478.60 76.97 - - - - 555.57

9 Investment in Debentures:
99LABELS ` 50.00 - 50.00 - - - - 50.00
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Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / 
transaction

Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises
over which 

KMP & 
Relatives

have

Total

10 Sitting Fees paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.10
Ashish Gupta ` 0.12
Bala Deshpande ` 0.06
Kapil Kapoor ` 0.06
Naresh Gupta ` 0.16
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.12  - - - 0.56 0.06 - 0.62

11 Commission paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.78
Ashish Gupta ` 0.69
Bala Deshpande ` 0.64
Naresh Gupta ` 0.64
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.78 - - - 3.51 - - 3.51

12 Loss on Sale of Debenture:
99LABELS ` 105.42 105.42 105.42

13 Advance towards Shares:
NTPL ` 4.00 4.00 4.00

14 Conversion of Preference Shares  
into Equity Shares
ZMPL ` 263.60
ALSPL ` 150.00  413.60 - - - - - 413.60

15 Interest on Debentures:-
99LABELS ` 5.08 - 5.08 - - - - 5.08

16 Interest on Preference Shares 
receivable:
EMCPL `Less Than 1,000
ALSPL `Less Than 1,000
ZMPL `Less Than 1,000
NTPL `Less Than 1,000
MYDALA `Less Than 1,000
99LABELS `Less Than 1,000 - 0.01 - - - - 0.01

1. Amounts paid to / on behalf of Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust during the year are as below:

(a) Dividend paid `0.99 Million
(b) Advances paid (net) `NIL

2. Amount due from Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `0.02 Million

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2013 Amount (`Mn)

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / transaction Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit balances 
1 Outstanding Advances/Receivables 31.02 4.01 - - 35.03

Maximum amount outstanding during 
the year 32.92 4.01 - - 36.93

31 (2) (1) Related Party Disclosures

where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2012:
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Subsidiaries
Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited ( JISPL)
Naukri Internet Services Private Limited (NISPL)
Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited (IEIML)
Allcheckdeals India Pvt. Ltd. (ACDIPL)
Applect Learning Systems Pvt. Ltd. (ALSPL) 

Associates
DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited (DCFOSPL)
Nogle Technologies Private Limited (NTPL)
eTechAces Marketing & Consulting Pvt. Ltd. (EMCPL)
Ninty Nine Labels Private Limited (99LABELS)
Kinobeo Software Private Limited (Mydala)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Surabhi Bikhchandani (Spouse of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Sushil Bikhchandani (Brother of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Hitesh Oberoi
Rimy Oberoi (Spouse of Hitesh Oberoi)
Divya Batra (Sister of Hitesh Oberoi)
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Minik Enterprises (Proprietorship concern of Sushil Bikhchandani)
Oyster Learning ( Proprietorship concern of Rimy Oberoi)

Independent Directors- Non Executive
Arun Duggal
Ashish Gupta
Bala Deshpande
Naresh Gupta
Saurabh Srivastava

Non-Executive Directors
Kapil Kapoor

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2012 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`Mn)

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / 
transaction

Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises
over which 

KMP & 
Relatives

have

Total

1 License Fee Paid:
JISPL ` 0.10
NISPL ` 0.10 0.20 -

                                            
-   - - - 0.20

2 Remuneration Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 16.68
Hitesh Oberoi ` 15.76  
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 11.78
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 1.41 - - 45.63 - - - 45.63

3 Advances Given for business 
purposes (net):
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 0.08
Hitesh Oberoi ` 0.01
NISPL ` 0.03
JISPL ` 0.03
IEIML ` 0.96
ACDIPL ` 11.37 12.39 - 0.09 - - - 12.48
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Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / 
transaction

Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises
over which 

KMP & 
Relatives

have

Total

 4 Receipt of services:
Minik Enterprises ` 0.92
Divya Batra ` 0.48 - - 0.48 - - 0.92 1.40

5 Dividend Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 14.43
Hitesh Oberoi ` 2.92
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 0.95
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 0.56
Arun Duggal ` 0.03
Bala Deshpande ` 0.04
Kapil Kapoor ` 1.43 - - 18.86 0.07 1.43 - 20.36

6 Services Rendered:
ACDIPL ` 10.54
ALSPL ` 0.14
EMCPL ` 0.16
DCFOSPL ` 0.01
99Labels ` 0.03
Mydala ` 0.21 10.68 0.41 - - - - 11.09

7 Reimbursements Paid:
99LABELS ` 0.06 - 0.06 - - - - 0.06

8 Investment in Equity shares:
EMCPL ` 5.51
ALSPL ` 50.00
DCFOSPL ` 29.00
ACDIPL ` 40.00
NTPL ` 0.01
99LABELS ` 53.57 90.00 88.09              -

                     

- -              - 178.09
9 Investment in Preference Shares:

EMCPL ` 100.02
ALSPL ` 150.00
DCFOSPL ` 135.00
NTPL ` 15.00
MYDALA ` 270.00
99LABELS ` 131.53 150.00 651.55 - - - - 801.55

10 Investment in Debentures:
99LABELS ` 50.00 - 50.00 - - - - 50.00

11 Sitting Fees paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.20
Ashish Gupta ` 0.16
Bala Deshpande ` 0.08
Kapil Kapoor ` 0.10
Naresh Gupta ` 0.10
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.20  - - - 0.74 0.10 - 0.84

12 Commission paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.78
Ashish Gupta ` 0.69
Bala Deshpande ` 0.69
Naresh Gupta ` 0.69
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.69 - - - 3.54 - - 3.54

13 Conversion of Debentures into 
Equity Shares
ALSPL ` 53.10 53.10 - - - - - 53.10

14 Interest on Debentures 
Receivable:-
99LABELS ` 0.35 - 0.35

-
- - - 0.35
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Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / 
transaction

Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises
over which 

KMP & 
Relatives

have

Total

15 Interest on Preference Shares 
receivable:
EMCPL `Less Than 1,000
ALSPL `Less Than 1,000
DCFOSPL `Less Than 1,000
NTPL `Less Than 1,000
MYDALA `Less Than 1,000
99LABELS `Less Than 1,000 - 0.01 - - - - 0.01

1. Amounts paid to/on behalf of Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust during the year are as below:

(a) Dividend paid `0.50 Million
(b) Advances paid (net) `(13.43) Million

2. Amount due from Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2012 is `0.03 Million

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2012 Amount (`Mn)

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / transaction Subsidiary
Companies

Associate
Companies

Key
Management

Personnel & 
Relatives

Enterprises over 
which KMP & 

Relatives have 

Total

Debit balances 
1 Outstanding Advances/Receivables 4.29 0.36 - - 4.65

Maximum amount outstanding during 
the year 50.05 0.36 - - 50.41

Credit balances 
1 Outstanding Payable - - 0.05 - 0.05

The company has set up a trust to administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been granted to employees. Under this scheme 
the employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in the grant. The options granted till 
March 31st 2013 have a vesting period of maximum of 3 years from the date of grant.

- Number of options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year:-

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Options/SAR outstanding at beginning of year 1,863,326 416.96 1,801,721 345.36

Add:
Options/SAR granted * 343,500 343.18 377,600 702.86
Bonus issued during the year 1,820,494 210.37 - -

Less:
Options/SAR exercised 531,825 178.32 231,097 304.05
Options/SAR forfeited 108,400 283.25 84,898 476.53

Options/SAR outstanding  at the end of year 3,387,095 416.96 1,863,326 416.96
Option/SAR exercisable at the end of year 2,197,360 196.98 1,086,411 351.07

* During the year the company granted 343,500 (Previous Year 377,600) Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) with a maximum exercise period 
of five years (Previous Year Five Years).
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The options outstanding at the end of year had exercise prices in the range of ̀ 2.50/- to ̀ 384/- (Previous Year ̀ 5/- to ̀ 366/-) and a weighted 
average remaining contractual life of 3.61 years (Previous Year 4.64 years).

Exercise Amount Range (`) Options outstanding  
as at March 31, 2013

Options outstanding  
as at March 31, 2012

2.50 - 300 2,110,195 451,396

301 - 600 1,276,900 904,030

601 - 750 - 507,900

Grand Total 3,387,095 1,863,326

In accordance with the above mentioned ESOP Scheme, ̀ 14.68 Million (Previous Year ̀ 14.98 Million) has been charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in relation to the options vested during the year ended March 31, 2013 as Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation.

2.  (A) - In respect of options vested during the year, had the fair value method been used, the profit for the year would be lower by ̀ 61.29
Million (Previous year 82.67 Million) and the EPS would be `8.80 (Previous year 10.48).

(B) - The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes model with the below listed assumptions:

2012-13 2011-12

ESOP 2007 ESOP 2007 SAR ESOP 2007 ESOP 2007 SAR
Weighted average fair value of the options at the 
grant dates

322.25 130.90 - 291.01

Dividend Yield (%) 0.10% 0.10% - 0.10%
Risk free rate 8.06% 8.06% - 8.23%
Expected life (years) 4.00 3.68 - 3.62
Expected volatility 32.15% 32.15% - 42.15%
Weighted average share price 331.00 364.51 - 702.85

33. The Company has received legal notices of claims/lawsuits filed against it relating to infringement of Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) in 
relation to the business activities carried on by it. In the opinion of the management, no material liability is likely to arise on account of 
such claims/law suits.

34. The company is primarily in the business of internet based service delivery operating in four service verticals through web portals in 
respective vertical namely Naukri.com for recruitment related services, Jeevansathi.com for matrimony related services, 99acres.com for 
real estate related services and Shiksha.com for education related services. The other activities comprise of placement search services 
and real estate broking services. The segment revenues, results and assets of the other activities do not constitute reportable segment 
under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting and accordingly no disclosure is required.

35. The Company had raised `1,704 Million through Initial Public Offer of Shares (IPO) in the month of November, 2006 by issuance of 
5,323,851 equity shares of `10/- each at a premium of `310/- per share. The full amount of `1,704 Million has been utilised upto the year 
ended March 31, 2012 .

36. As at March 31, 2013 the company had `0.12 Million (Previous Year `0.12 Million) outstanding with ICICI bank towards unpaid application 
money received by the company for allotment of securities and due for refund and `0.07 Million (Previous Year `0.07 million) outstanding 
with Kotak Mahindra Bank & `0.02 Million (Previous year NIL) outstanding with Yes Bank as unclaimed dividend. These amounts are not 
available for use by the company and will be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as and when due.

37. The aggregate managerial remuneration under section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the Directors including Managing Director is:

Amount (`Mn)

Particulars Year ended 31st 
March, 2013

Year ended 31st 
March, 2012

Whole Time Directors (including Managing Director)
Salary 28.04 27.10
Reimbursements 1.27 1.22
Bonus 14.41 15.90

Total Remuneration (A) 43.72 44.22

Non Whole Time Directors:
Commission paid 3.51 3.54
Sitting Fee paid 0.62 0.84

Total Remuneration (B) 4.13 4.38

Total Managerial Remuneration Paid/Payable (A+B) 47.85 48.60
The above amounts exclude company’s contribution / provision for gratuity and leave encashment for the year, which is determined 
annually on actuarial basis.
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Director’s remuneration:
Amount (`Mn)

Particulars Year ended  March 
31, 2013

Year ended  March 
31, 2012

Net Profit before tax 1,550.90 1,736.75
Add: Depreciation as per accounts 94.46 76.61
Add: Wholetime Director’s Remuneration 43.72 44.22
Add: Sitting Fee paid to Directors 0.62 0.84
Add: Commission to Non Whole time Directors 3.51 3.54
Add: Provision for Bad Debts 3.47 0.45
Less: Depreciation as per Section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 94.46 76.61
Less: Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.14 0.82
Less: Profit on sale of Investment (net) 116.05 1.19

1,486.03 1,783.80

Maximum amount payable to Non whole time Directors (restricted to 1%) 14.86 17.84

Maximum amount payable to Whole time Directors 148.60 178.38
(Restricted to 10%)

Maximum Amount payable to Directors 163.46 196.22

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

a) Provident Fund

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2013
Amount (`Mn)

Year ended
March 31, 2012
Amount (`Mn)

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund * 23.72 19.69
*Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)

B. State Plans

a) Employer’s Contribution to Employee State Insurance

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2013
Amount (`Mn)

Year ended
March 31, 2012
Amount (`Mn)

Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance * 3.75 3.66
*Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)

a) Contribution to Gratuity Funds – Life Insurance Corporation of India, Group Gratuity Scheme

b) Leave Encashment/ Compensated Absences for Employees

Particulars Leave Encashment/Compensated Absences

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 15% in first  year,

10% in next 5 years,
& 7% thereafter

15% in first 2 years,
10% in next 5 years,

& 7% thereafter

INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED
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Particulars Employee’s Gratuity Fund

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 15% in first year,

10% in next 5 years,
& 7% thereafter

15% in first 2 years,
10% in next 5 years,

& 7% thereafter
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.50% 7.50%
Expected Average future working lifetime of employees (years) 11.32 11.86

Amount (`Mn)

(A) Changes in the Present Value of  Obligation Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2012-13

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2011-12

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 77.05 62.88
Interest Cost 7.31 6.07
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Current Service Cost 15.86 13.86
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Settlement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Benefits paid (7.05) (5.62)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (1.87) (0.14)

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 91.31 77.05

Amount (`Mn)

(B) Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2012-13

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2011-12

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 61.89 44.96
Expected Return on Plan Assets 4.88 3.18
Actuarial Gains and (Losses) 0.55 2.31
Contributions 14.06 17.06
Benefits Paid (7.05) (5.62)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 74.33 61.89

Amount (`Mn)         

value of Assets
Employee’s

Gratuity Fund
FY 2012-13

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2011-12

Present Value of funded Obligation at the beginning of the year (91.31) (77.05)

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the period 74.33 61.89
Funded Status

Present Value of unfunded Obligation at the end of the year Nil Nil

Unrecognized Actuarial (gains) / losses Nil Nil

(16.98) (15.16)
*included in Provision for Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 8)

Amount (`Mn)

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2012-13

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

FY 2011-12
Current Service Cost 15.86 13.86
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Interest Cost 7.31 6.08
Expected Return on Plan Assets (4.88) (3.18)
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Settlement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period (2.42) (2.45)

15.87 14.31
#Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)
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In respect of leave encashment/compensated absence the present value of obligation as at March 31, 2013 is `19.50* Million
(Previous Year 20* Million). The expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  is `14.83** Million (Previous Year `14**
Million)

*included in Provision for Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 8)

**Included in Staff Welfare and Benefits under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)

(E) Amounts recognised in current year 
and previous four years

 As at March 
31, 2013 

 As at March 
31, 2012 

 As at March 
31, 2011 

 As at March 
31, 2010 

 As at March 
31, 2009 

Gratuity
Defined Benefit Obligation (91.31) (77.05) (62.88) (44.96) (39.06)
Plan Asset 74.33 61.89 44.96 38.40 22.27
Surplus / Deficit (16.98) (15.16) (17.92) (6.57) (16.80)
Experience adjustments in plan liabilities Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Experience adjustments in plan assets Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(F) Expected Contribution to the fund in the next year  Year ended March 
31, 2013 

 Year ended March 
31, 2012 

 Amount (`Mn)  Amount (`Mn)
Gratuity 16.98 15.16

:

-In Current Accounts

As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

          (`Mn)                     (`Mn)
ICICI Bank Ltd 122.55 244.04
HSBC Bank 0.11 0.12
Bank of India 0.02 0.68
HDFC Bank Ltd 7.76 0.24
Punjab National Bank 0.74 0.02
Oriental Bank of Commerce 0.02 0.19
Bank of Baroda 0.03 0.03
State Bank of Hyderabad 0.02 0.38
HDFC Bank (erstwhile Bank of Punjab Ltd.) 0.03 0.03
Canara Bank 0.02 0.02
State Bank of India 0.11 0.03

Total (A) 131.41 245.78

-In Current Accounts

Particulars As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn)
The Saudi Hollandi Bank 1.45 1.76
HSBC Bank 6.19 10.57
Emirates Bank 0.07 0.04

Total (B) 7.71 12.37

139.12 258.15

(Refer Balances with Banks in Current Accounts (Current) under Note No 16 on Cash and Bank Balances)
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  -In Fixed deposit accounts

Fixed Deposit in India As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn)
Bank of India 104.52             159.84 
ICICI Bank Ltd 355.94             259.91 
State Bank of Hyderabad 544.87             638.96 
HDFC Bank Ltd 659.51             432.50 
Oriental Bank of Commerce 241.60             183.10 
HSBC Bank 6.42                4.88 
Bank of Baroda 746.45             293.00 
Punjab National Bank -             428.00 

Total          2,659.31          2,400.19 

The above comprises of :-

Particulars As at March 31, 2013 As at March 31, 2012

(`Mn) (`Mn)
- Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months -              25.75 
- Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 
12 months 1,641.38          1,755.64 
- Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for more than 12 months 1,017.93             618.80 

Total 2,659.31          2,400.19 
(Refer Note No 16 on Cash and Bank Balances)

40. The exceptional item in the year ended March 31, 2013 represents provision for diminution in the carrying value of investment of `185.05
Million in Ninety Nine Labels Private Limited (represented by Investments in equity shares of `53.55 Millions and Preference shares 
of `131.50 Millions), `0.60 Millions representing dimunition in the carrying value of investment and `1.80 Million representing waiving 
off advance given to Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited ( a company which has initiated voluntary winding up proceedings during the 
year) and also loss on sale of debentures (inclusive of accrued interest)  `105.42 Millions held in Ninety Nine Labels Private Limited. The 
exceptional item in the year ended March 31, 2012 represents provision for diminution in the carrying value of investment of `3.53 million 
in Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited.

41. The company has made long term strategic investments in certain subsidiaries/associate companies, which are in their initial stage of 
operation and would generate growth and returns over a period of time. These subsidiaries/associates have incurred significant expenses 
for building the brand and market share which have added to the losses of these entities, thereby resulting in erosion of their net worth 
as at March 31, 2013. Based on the potential of the business model of these entities to generate profits, coupled with recent third party 
valuations, management is of the opinion that considering the nature of the industry and the stage of operations of these entities the 
diminution in carrying value of the investments as compared to their current net worth, is considered to be temporary in nature and 
therefore no provision is required at this stage (other than the investments referred in Note 40 above).

42. Disclosures as per Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2013

Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Balance as the year end -   -   
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 0.05 0.03

Advance to Subsidiary- Jeevansathi Internet Services Pvt Ltd
Balance as the year end -   -   
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 0.05 0.29

Balance as the year end 28.59 2.29
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 28.59 47.93
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Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2013

Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Balance as the year end 2.43 -
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 2.43 -

Advance to Subsidiary- Info Edge (India) Mauritius Ltd
Balance as the year end - 1.80
Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year 1.80 1.80

43. Contingent Liability - Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt  -Service tax matters `Nil (Previous Year  `4.68 million).

44. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged to confirm to the current year classification.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore         
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number  58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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INDEPENDENT  AUDITORS’  REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Info Edge (India) Limited
1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) of Info Edge (India) 

Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries and associate companies; hereinafter referred to as the “Group” (refer Note 1 to the attached 
consolidated financial statements)  which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information which we have signed under  reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
2. The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, implementation  and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation  and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement,  whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free .from material misstatement.

4.   An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate  in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
6. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s Management in accordance with the 

requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard (AS) 23 - Accounting for 
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

7. Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditor(s) on separate financial statements and on the other financial 
information of the component(s) of the Group as referred to in paragraph 8 below, and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2013;
(b) in the case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c) in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter(s)
8.    We did not audit the financial statements  of (i) four subsidiaries  included in the consolidated financial statements,  which constitute  total 

assets of `587.21 Mn and net assets of `566.54(Mn) as at March 31, 2013, total revenue of `113.96, net loss of `102.42 Mn and net cash 
flows amounting  to (`38.48 Mn) for the year then ended; and (ii) three associate companies which constitute  net loss of `124.10 Mn for 
the year then ended.  These financial statements  and other financial information  have been audited  by other auditors  whose reports  
have been furnished  to us, and our opinion on the consolidated  financial statements  to the extent they have been derived from such 
financial statements  is based solely on the report of such other auditors.

9. We did not audit the financial statements  of one subsidiary which constitute  total assets of `0.23 Mn and net assets of (`0.13 Mn) as at 
March 31, 2013, total revenue  of `Nil, net loss of `16.97 Mn and net cash flows amounting  to (`0.40 Mn) for the year then  ended; and 
(ii) two associate companies  included in the consolidated  financial statements,  which constitute  net losses of ̀ 264.24 Mn for the period 
from April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013.  The unaudited  financial information  has been provided to us by the management,  and our opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements  to the extent they relate to these subsidiary  and associate companies  is based solely on such 
unaudited  financial information  furnished  to us.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore 
Firm Registration Number: 007567S 

Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Place: Noida Partner
Date: May 3, 2013 Membership Number 58507
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No  As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) SHAREHOLDER’S FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 3 1,091.81 545.91
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 4,992.77 4,726.45

(2) MINORITY INTEREST 104.80 (25.09)

(3) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Long Term Borrowings 5 4.82 2.79
(b) Long Term Provisions 6 3.98 0.90

(4) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(1) Trade Payables 7 556.74 381.98
(2) Other Current Liabilities 8 1,262.07 1,235.97
(3) Short Term Provisions 6 237.86 234.42

8,254.85 7,103.34

GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 556.81 0.25

II. ASSETS

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Fixed assets
     (i) Tangible assets 9 906.01 532.59
     (ii) Intangible assets 9 59.44 14.62
     (iii) Capital work-in-progress 98.12 94.43
(b) Non-current investments 10 1,270.64 2,209.91
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 11 44.84 41.73
(d) Long term loans and advances 12 185.01 128.23
(e) Other non-current assets 13 1,211.95 688.51

(2) CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Current investments 14 1,343.07 942.20
(c) Trade receivables 15 95.21 80.96
(d) Cash and bank balances 16 2,286.35 2,216.34
(e) Short-term loans and advances 12 124.25 90.49
(f) Other current assets 13 73.15 63.08

8,254.85 7,103.34
 0 -0

Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of 
even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No  Year ended 
March 31, 2013 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2012 

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

I. Revenue from Operations 17  4,723.21  3,918.84 
II. Other Income 18  475.27  394.72 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)  5,198.48  4,313.56 

IV. Expenses

  Employee Benefits Expense 19  1,983.32  1,482.24 
  Finance Costs 20  27.85  21.84 
  Depreciation and Amortisation 21  117.80  83.21 
  Advertising and Promotion cost 22  750.34  563.21 
  Administration and Other expenses 23  615.57  586.09 
  Network, Internet and Other direct charges 24  163.96  104.66 

 Total Expenses  3,658.84  2,841.25 

 1,539.64  1,472.31 

VI. Exceptional Item - Net 38  236.92 8.33

 1,302.72  1,463.98 

VIII. Tax expense:
(1) Current Tax  531.62  511.65 
(2) Deferred Tax 11 (3.11) 17.11

774.21 935.21

X. Share in loss of Associate Companies (Refer Note 2.1 on Note 2) (15.12) (30.04)

XI. Share/(Reversal) of Minority Interest in loss of Subsidiaries (net) 152.52 (60.32)

XII. Excess of Minority Interest in the losses of Subsidiaries absorbed  - 74.00

XIII. Reversal on account of conversion of Associate into Subsidiary 4.33 114.43

XIV. NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 915.94 1,033.29

Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted [Nominal Value of share `10/- (Previous 
year `10/-)]

29 8.39 9.46

Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss referred to in 
our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

S.No. Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2013 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2012 

Amount (`Mn.) Amount (`Mn.)

A.
Net Profit before Exceptional item and Tax  1,539.64 1,472.31

Adjustments for:
  Depreciation and Amortisation 117.80 83.21
  Interest Expense 0.95 0.67
  Interest Income (263.20) (203.50)
  Dividend Income from Mutual Funds (87.35) (120.65)
  (Profit)/Loss on Fixed Assets sold (net) (0.24) (0.82)
  (Profit)/Loss on sale of Investments (net) (116.05) (68.06)
  Interest Income on Debentures (5.09) (0.39)
  Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 14.37 15.19
  Liability no longer required written back (23.69) (15.80)
  Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment 4.22 (2.27)
  TDS on revenue receipts (253.24) (230.16)
  Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation Expense 23.99 15.02

 952.11 944.75

 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Sundry Debtors (28.62) 52.70
 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Loans, Advances and Other Current Assets (77.70) 6.38
 - INCREASE/(DECREASE) in Current Liabilities and Provisions 225.97 343.06

Cash generated from operating activities  1,071.76 1,346.89

 - Taxes (Paid) / Received (Net of TDS) (291.08) (338.74)

Net cash from operating activities  780.68 1,008.15

B.

Purchase of fixed assets (533.36) (88.71)
Proceeds from Sale of fixed assets 3.93 11.65
Sale of Investments (Net) 898.01 252.10
Purchase of Fixed Deposits (Net) (449.28) (552.87)
Interest Received 276.17 149.74
Dividend Received 87.35 120.65
Share in loss of Associate Companies (15.12) (30.04)
Share of Minority Interest in loss of Subsidiary Company 152.52 60.32
Amount paid on acquisition of shares/debentures of other enterpirses (Subsidiaries and assoicates) (997.68) (655.91)
Net cash used in investing activities (577.46) (733.07)

C.

Repayment of long term borrowings (Net) 2.86 (0.14)
Interest Paid  (0.92) (0.67)
Dividend Paid (109.18) (40.94)
Dividend Tax Paid (17.71) (6.80)

(124.95) (48.55)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  78.27 226.53

Opening Balance of Cash and cash equivalents  352.65  126.12 
Add : Cash and Cash equivalents acquired from Subsidiaries  83.86  - 

Closing  Balance of Cash and cash equivalents  514.78  352.65 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash in hand  2.96  3.48 

-in current accounts (Refer note 2 and 3 below)  202.63  296.67 
-in Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  309.19  52.50 
Total Cash and Cash equivalents  514.78  352.65 

Other Fixed deposits with original maturity exceeding than 3 months  2,952.40  2,503.13 

 3,467.18  2,855.78 

Notes :
1 The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement, prescribed under Companies (Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2006 as notified by the Central Government vide its notification dated December 7,2006.
2 Balance with scheduled bank in current account includes `0.12 Million (previous year `0.12 Million) in respect of unpaid application money due for refund, which is not available for use by the 

company.
3 Balance with scheduled bank in current account includes `0.09 Million (previous year `0.07 Million) in respect of unclaimed dividend, which is not available for use by the company.

4 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of 
even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co., Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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1. BACKGROUND

Info Edge (India) Limited (the Company) was incorporated under the laws of India on May 1, 1995 and has seven subsidiaries and 
six associate companies (The Group) as at March 31, 2013. The subsidiaries are Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited, Naukri 
Internet Services Private Limited, Info (Edge) India Mauritius Ltd, Allcheckdeals India Pvt. Ltd , Applect Learning Systems Pvt. Ltd, Zomato 
Media Pvt. Ltd. (formerly known as DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited) and Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd.  The associate 
companies are Etechaces Marketing & Consulting Pvt. Ltd, Nogle Technologies Private Limited, Kinobeo Software private Limited, Ninety 
Nine Labels Private Limited, Happily Unmarried Marketing Pvt. Ltd. and Canvera Digital Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on the 
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and comply with the mandatory 
Accounting Standards notified u/s 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable. 

The financial statements of the parent company and the subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together 
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances / transactions in full as 
per Accounting Standard 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements.

Investment in associates (entity over which the company exercises significant influence, which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint 
venture) are accounted for using the equity method as per Accounting Standard 23 on Accounting for Investments in Associates in 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements include the share of profit/loss of associate companies, 
which are accounted under the ‘Equity method’ as per which the share of profit/loss of the associate company has been adjusted 
to the carrying amount of investment. Further, for the purpose of consolidation, the proportionate share of profit / loss of associate 
companies to the extent of investment in equity shares has been considered.

Reserves shown in the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s share in the respective reserves of the Group companies.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

2.2 Goodwill

a) On Consolidation

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition and the company’s share in the net worth of a subsidiary at 
each stage of making the investment in the subsidiary. For this purpose, the Group’s share of net worth is determined on the 
basis of the latest financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary adjustments for material events, if any, 
between the date of such financial statements and the date of the respective acquisition.

b) On acquisition of investment in associate

Goodwill arising on acquisition is amortised to expense on a straight line basis over a period of estimated benefit but not 
exceeding five years.

2.3 Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition along with related taxes, duties and incidental expenses related to these assets.

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.

Profit/Loss on disposal of fixed assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.4 Depreciation

TANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible Assets are depreciated under Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows: 

Assets Estimated life (Years)
Building
Computers

20
3

Other Software Licenses 3
Enterprise Resource Planning Software 5
Office Equipment 3
Vehicles 4
Plant and Machinery 5
Furniture & Fixtures 7
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Leasehold Land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period, which corresponds with the useful lives of the related 
assets.

Assets costing less than or equal to `5,000 were fully depreciated in the year of acquisition upto   March 31,2012. With effect from April 
01, 2012 such assets are depreciated @ 100% pro-rata from date of acquisition. The impact of this change in Accounting policy results in 
increase of profit by `9.59 million during the year.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible Assets are depreciated under Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows: 

Assets Estimated life 
(Years)

Other Software Licenses 3
Enterprise Resource Planning Software 5
Operating and Marketing Rights 5

The effective rates of depreciation based on the estimated useful lives are above the minimum rates as prescribed by Schedule XIV of 
the Act.

2.5 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gain/Loss arising on fluctuation 
in foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and the overall net gain/
loss is adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Translation of foreign operations

Foreign operations are classified as ‘non-integral’operations. Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, 
forms part of an enterprise’s net investment in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in the Foreign Currency Translation 
Reserve until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised as income or as expenses. 

2.6 Revenue Recognition

The Group earns revenue significantly from the following sources viz.

a) Recruitment solutions through its career web site, Naukri.com:-

Revenue is received in the form of fees, which is recognized pro-rata over the subscription / advertising agreement, usually 
ranging between one to twelve months.

b) Matrimonial web site, Jeevansathi.com and Real Estate website, 99acres.com:-

Revenue is received in the form of subscription fees, which is recognized over the period of subscription, usually ranging 
between one to twelve months. 

c) Placement search division, Quadrangle:- 

Revenue is received in the form of fees, for placements at various levels in a client’s organization. Revenue is booked on the 
successful completion of the search and selection activity.

d) Online Coaching Services :-

Revenue from the online coaching is received in the form of subscription fee which is recognized over the period that coaching 
is imparted.

e) Real Estate Broking :-

Commission income on property bookings placed with builders/developers is accrued once the related services have been 
rendered by the company.

f) Resume Sales Service:-

The revenue from Resume Sale Services is earned in the form of fees and is recognized on completion of the related service.

g) Online Food Service :-

The revenue from operating and internet portal providing all sorts of information about restaurants and caterers for display of 
advertisement are recognized on display of advertisement.

INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 83

In respect of a), b), d) and g) above, the unaccrued amounts are not recognized as revenue till all obligations are fulfilled and are 
reflected in the Balance sheet as Income Received in Advance (Deferred Sales Revenue).

All the above sources of revenue are shown net of service tax and is not recognized in instances where there is uncertainty with 
regard to ultimate collection. In such cases revenue is recognized on reasonable certainty of collection.

2.7 Investments

Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value of such investments. Current investments 
are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

The company has Defined Contribution plan for the post employment benefits namely Provident Fund which is recognized by the 
income tax authorities. These funds are administered through the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Company’s 
contributions thereto are charged to revenue every year. The Company’s contribution to state plans namely Employee State Insurance 
Fund is charged to revenue every year.

The Company has Defined Benefit plans namely leave encashment, compensated absence and gratuity for employees, the liability 
for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year. The Gratuity Fund is recognized by the income 
tax authorities and is administered through Life Insurance Corporation of India under its Group Gratuity Scheme.

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense immediately.

Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuations are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or 
expense.

2.9 Leased Assets

i) Assets acquired on lease where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of minimum lease 
payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease amount paid is allocated between the liability and the 
interest cost, so as to maintain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

ii) Leases of assets under which significant risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

2.10 Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax reflects the effect of temporary timing differences between 
the assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for current tax purposes. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable/virtual certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. 

2.11 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit after tax and include the post tax effect of any 
extra ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year.

Stock options granted to the employees and to the non-executive Directors who accepted the grant under the Company’s Stock 
Option Plan are accounted in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Option Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999 as amended from time to time and the guidance note on Employee Share Based Payments issued by ICAI. The Company 
follows the intrinsic value method and accordingly, the excess, if any, of the market price of the underlying equity shares as of the 
date of the grant of the option over the exercise price of the option, is recognized as employee compensation cost and amortised on 
graded vesting basis over the vesting period.

2.13 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 
obligation cannot be made.

2.14 Dividend income

Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established and when no significant uncertainty 
as to measurability or collectability exists. 
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2.15 Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on the time basis determined by the amount outstanding including the tax credits and the rate 
applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

2.16 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the Management 
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.  The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

120 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each (Previous year - 60 
Million Equity Shares of `10/- each)

 1,200.00  600.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
109.18 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each fully paid up  1,091.81  545.91 
(Previous year - 54.59 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each fully 
paid up)
[Of the above, 54.59 Million Equity Shares of `10/- each 
(Previous year 49.00 Million Equity Shares of `10 each) 
were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares out of 
Securities Premium, General Reserve and Statement of Profit 
and Loss]

 1,091.81  545.91 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars  As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012

 No of Shares  (`Mn)  No of Shares  (`Mn)

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the period  54,590,512  545.91  54,590,512  545.91 
Add: Issued during the period  54,590,512  545.90  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the period  109,181,024  1,091.81  54,590,512  545.91 

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The  company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 
of the shareholders in the  ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
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Particulars  FY  2012-13  FY  2011-12  FY 2010-11  FY 2009-10  FY 2008-09 

Equity Shares allotted as fully paid bonus 
shares by capitalisation of securities 
premium

 54,590,512  -  27,295,256  -  - 

 54,590,512  -  27,295,256  -  - 

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars  FY 2012-13  FY 2011-12 

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid
- Sanjeev Bikhchandani 37,370,812 34.23  19,235,406  35.24 
- Sanjeev Bikhchandani & Hitesh Oberoi holding on behalf of 
Endeavour holding Trust

 8,734,880  8.01  4,367,440  8.00 

- Hitesh Oberoi 7,400,118 6.78  3,798,782  6.96 

53,505,810 49.02  27,401,628  50.20 

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 1,310.07 1,310.07
Less: Utilisation for issue of bonus shares  545.91 764.16 0.00 1,310.07

General Reserve
Opening Balance 145.56 48.54
Add : Addition from Subsidiaries acquired  -  - 
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss under 
Companies (Transfer of Profit to Reserves Rules), 1975  -  91.97 
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss  (Stock 
Options Outstanding Account) 1.56 147.12 5.06 145.56

Opening Balance 40.63 31.00
Add: Transfer during the year 23.99 15.02
Less: Adjusted against advance given to Info Edge 
Employees Stock Option Trust 0.01 0.02
Less: Written back during the year  - 0.31
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss 1.56 63.05 5.06 40.63

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 4.02 4.82

Opening Balance 3,225.37 2,410.94
Add: Net Profit after tax transferred from statement of Profit 
and Loss 915.94 1,033.29
Transfer from Stock Option Outstanding Account 1.56 5.06

Less: Appropriations
Proposed Dividend 109.18 109.18
Dividend Tax 17.71 17.71
Transfer to General Reserve under Companies (Transfer of 
Profit to Reserves Rules), 1975 0.00  91.97 
Transfer to General Reserve (Employee Stock Options 
Outstanding Account) 1.56 4,014.42 5.06 3,225.37

4,992.77 4,726.45
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5. LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars  Non-Current Portion Current Maturities

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

SECURED LOANS

Term Loans from banks 4.82 2.79 4.65 3.81
Current Maturities transferred to Current Liabilities  -  - (4.65) (3.81)

4.82 2.79  -  - 
a. Term Loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of Vehicles taken on lease.
b. Term loans carry interest rates ranging from 6% to 11%. The loans are repayable along with interest with in 2 to 3 years from the date of 
loan.

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Not later than 1 year  5.41  4.30 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  5.14  3.01 

Total minimum lease payments  10.55  7.31 
Less: Future finance charges on finance leases  1.08  0.71 

 9.47  6.60 

Representing lease liabilities:
- Current  4.65  3.81 
- Non Current  4.82  2.79 

 9.47  6.60 

The present value of finance lease liabilities may be analyzed as follows:
Not later than 1 year  4.65  3.81 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  4.82  2.79 

 9.47  6.60 

6. PROVISIONS

Particulars  Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Provision for Gratuity  3.61  0.81  17.23  15.54 
Provision for Compensated Absence  0.37  0.09  20.45  20.99 

Other Provisions
Accrued Bonus  73.29  71.00 

Proposed Dividend  -  -  109.18  109.18 
Dividend Tax  -  -  17.71  17.71 

 3.98  0.90  237.86  234.42 
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7. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars  Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enter-
prises  -  -  -  - 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small 
and medium enterprises  -  -  556.74  381.98 

 -  -  556.74  381.98 
Based on information available with the Company, there are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined in Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2013

8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Current Maturities of Term Loans transferred from Long 
Term Borrowings  4.65  3.81 
Interest accrued but not due on loans  0.07  0.04 
Income received in advance (Deferred Sales Revenue)  1,217.59  1,189.03 
Unpaid Dividend*  0.09  0.07 
Unpaid Application Money received by the company for al-
lotment of securities and due for refund *  0.12  0.12 

Others
- Service Tax Payable  13.07  13.07 
- TDS Payable  24.85  24.85 
- Others  1.63  39.55  4.98  42.90 

* Will be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
as and when due

Total  1,262.07  1,235.97 

This portion is intentionally left blank.
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9. FIXED ASSETS  (Amount `Mn)
Description GROSS BLOCK (AT COST)  DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK

As at
April 1, 

2012*

Additions
during

the period

Deletions/
Write off

during the 
period

As at
March

31, 2013

Up to
April 1, 
2012**

Depreciation/
 Amortisation 
for the period

Accumulated  
 Depreciation  
 on Deletions 

Up to
March

31, 2013

As at
March

31, 2013

As at
March

31, 2012

Tangible Assets
Own Assets
Leasehold Land  346.95  -  -  346.95  15.74  5.14  -  20.88  326.07  331.21 
Building  91.19  -  -  91.19  6.43  4.56  -  10.99  80.20  84.76 
Leasehold 
Improvements

 72.39  239.12  0.81  310.70  62.70  8.47  0.81  70.36  240.34  9.69 

Computers  220.97  83.42  19.38  285.01  144.45  57.25  17.18  184.52  100.49  71.82 
Plant and Machinery  36.41  30.11  0.16  66.36  32.12  3.46  0.16  35.42  30.94  3.45 
Furniture and Fixtures  37.68  64.66  0.07  102.27  27.91  9.00  0.04  36.87  65.40  8.98 
Office Equipment  62.94  47.39  0.74  109.59  50.37  12.39  0.69  62.07  47.52  11.72 
Vehicles  0.89  0.41  -  1.30  0.73  0.03  -  0.76  0.54  - 

Finance Lease
Vehicles  20.75  10.37  5.94  25.18  9.78  5.41  4.52  10.67  14.51  10.96 
Total  890.17  475.48  27.10  1,338.55  350.23  105.72  23.40  432.54  906.01  532.59 

Intangible Assets
Own Assets 
(Acquired)
Goodwill  0.26  -  -  0.26  0.26  -  -  0.26  -  - 
Operating and 
Marketing Rights

 27.56  -  -  27.56  27.56  -  -  27.56  -  - 

Enterprise Resource 
Planning Software

 21.30  4.65  -  25.95  9.84  5.04  -  14.88  11.07  11.45 

Other Software 
Licenses

 12.00  49.54  -  61.54  6.14  7.04  -  13.18  48.37  3.17 

Total  61.12  54.19  -  115.31  43.80  12.08  -  55.88  59.44  14.62 

Total  951.29  529.67  27.10  1,453.86  394.03  117.80  23.40  488.41  965.45  547.21 

Previous year  889.86  83.65  37.50  936.02  332.26  83.21  26.67  388.80  547.21 
* The Gross Block  as on April 1, 2012 includes `2.21 Million and  `13.05 Million relating to Fixed Assets of Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd 
and Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. respectively which has become subsidiaries during the year.
** The  Accumulated Depreciation as on April 1, 2012 includes `NIL and  `5.24 Million relating to Fixed Assets of Makesense Technologies Pvt. 
Ltd and Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. respectively which has become subsidiaries during the year.

10. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Non Trade (Unquoted)

Investments in Equity Shares of Associate Companies
11,950 (Previous year - 11,950) shares of eTechAces 
Marketing and Consulting Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. 
(and share premium of `16,726.40/- per share (Previous Year- 
Rs16726.40/-)).*  -  - 

100 (Previous year - NIL) shares of Happily Unmarried 
Marketing Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share 
premium of `12,709.12/- (Previous Year-NIL) per share.)*  0.94  - 

3,553 (Previous year - NIL) shares of Canvera Digital 
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share 
premium of `1,167/- (Previous Year-NIL) per share.)  2.61  - 
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

NIL (Previous year – 58,480) shares of Zomato Media Pvt Ltd 
(formerly DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited) of 
`1/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `NIL per share. 
(Previous year-`802.69))* -  12.73 

258 (Previous year - 258) shares of Nogle Technologies Pvt. 
Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `40/-
(Previous Year-  `40/- )per share). *  -  - 

NIL (Previous year - 476,666) shares of Ninety Nine Labels 
Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of 
`NIL (Previous Year-`102.38/-)per share computed on average 
basis.)*  -  15.06 

 3.55  27.79 
*[Refer Note 26 (A)]

Investments in Preference Shares of Associate Companies
5,345 (Previous year - 4,571) 0.1% cummulative convertible 
preference shares of eTechAces Marketing and Consulting 
Pvt. Ltd. of `100/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of 
`21,781.31/- (Previous Year- `21,781.31/-)per share computed 
on average basis.)  124.99  100.02 

498,400 (Previous year - 498,400) 0.1% cummulative 
convertible preference shares shares of Ninety Nine Labels 
Pvt. Ltd. of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of 
`253.91/- per share).  131.53  131.53 
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment (131.50)
[Refer Note 38]

299,658 (Previous year – NIL) 0.1% cummulative convertible 
preference shares of Canvera Digital Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 
of `1/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `1,167 /- 
(Previous Year- NIL ) per share)  350.00  - 

3,928 (Previous year – NIL) 0.1% cummulative convertible 
preference shares of Happily Unmarried Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 
of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `12,719.12
/- (Previous Year- NIL ) per share)  50.00  - 

NIL (Previous year - 44,584) shares of Zomato Media Pvt Ltd 
(formerly DC Foodiebay Online Services Pvt. Ltd.)  of `1/-
each fully paid up.  -  135.00 

4,647 (Previous year - 4,201) cummulative convertible 
preference shares of Nogle Technologies Pvt. Ltd.  of 
`10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `4,724.24/-
(Previous Year- `4750.77/-)per share computed on average 
basis)  22.00  20.00 

107,801 (Previous year - 107,801) 0.1% cummulative 
convertible preference shares of Kinobeo Software Pvt. Ltd.
of `10/- each fully paid up. (and share premium of `2,494.61/-
(Previous Year-`2,494.61/-per share computed on average 
basis)  270.00  817.02  270.00  656.55 

Investments in Equity Shares of Others
3,865,484 (Previous period - 3,865,484) shares of Study 
Places Inc.  of `1,461.04/- each fully paid up.  49.81  49.81 
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment  49.81  -  49.81  - 
[Refer Note 26 (B)]
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)
Investments in Debentures of Associate Company
NIL (Previous year - 50) debentures of Ninety Nine Labels Pvt. 
Ltd. of `10 Lakh each fully paid up.  -  50.00 

Investments in Mutual Funds

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in ICICI 
Prudential FMP Series 54-1 year Plan A Cumulative  -  50.00 
7,492,451 units (Previous Year: Nil) of `10.0125  each fully 
paid up of IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund  75.02  - 

7,444,856 units (Previous Year: Nil) of `10.0809 each fully 
paid up of HDFC Mutual Fund  75.05  - 

NIL (Previous Year 4,000,000) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP-Series 37-13M- Growth  -  40.00 

NIL (Previous Year 5,898,767) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
BlackRock FMP-Series 43-12M-Growth  -  58.99 

NIL (Previous Year 5,503,000) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed 
Term Plan - Series 22 (374 days)-Growth Plan  -  55.03 

NIL (Previous Year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in HDFC 
5978 FMP 399D March 2012 (1)-Growth-Series-XXI  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous Year 5,503,750) Units of `10/- each in 5964/ 
HDFC FMP 400D March 2012 (1) - Growth - Series XXI  -  55.04 

NIL (Previous Year 5,514,990) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 80-Growth  -  55.15 

NIL (Previous year 4,631,731) Units of `10.80 /- each in ICICI 
Prudential Interval Fund Annual Interval Plan-I Institutional 
Cumulative Growth  -  50.00 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in ICICI 
Prudential FMP Series 67-371 Days Plan C Direct Plan  50.00  - 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock Fixed Term Plan 12M 
Series 6- Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,493,950) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP 12M Series 32-Growth  -  54.94 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP Series 10 12M-Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in 5795 
HDFC FMP 370D March 2011 (2) - Growth - Series XVI  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in HDFC 
FMP 13M Sep 11(1)-Growth-Series-XVIII  -  50.00 

5,000,000 (Previous year Nil) Units of `10 /- each HDFC FMP 
400D March 2013 (1)  Series 23-Direct-Growth  50.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year Nil) Units of `10 /- each HDFC FMP 
384D March 2013(1) Series 23-Direct-Growth  50.00  - 
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)
NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in IDFC FMP 
- yearly Series 45 Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,491,200) Units of `10/- each in IDFC 
Fixed Maturity Plan-yearly 
Series 48 Growth  -  54.91 

NIL (Previous year 5,506,300) Units of `10/- each in IDFC FMP 
yearly Series-51-Growth  -  55.06 

NIL (Previous year 5,503,400) Units of `10/- each in IDFC 
Fixed Maturity yearly Series 63 Growth  -  55.03 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 44-Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 4,468,913) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 75-Growth  -  44.69 

NIL (Previous year 5,510,066) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 78-Growth  -  55.10 

10,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 100-Growth  100.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 102-Growth  50.00  - 

NIL (Previous year 5,509,983) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 83-Growth  -  55.10 

NIL (Previous year 5,150,000) Units of `10/- each in L&T FMP 
Series 6-Plan-C Growth  -  51.50 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in L&T FMP 
Series 6 - Plan E-Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed 
Term Plan - Series 16 (370 Days)-Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 2,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed 
Term Plan - Series 17 (12 Months)-Growth Plan  -  20.00 

NIL (Previous year 6,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Birla Sun 
Life Fixed Term Plan Series DX Growth  -  60.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in Birla Sun 
Life Fixed Term Plan Series EE Growth  -  50.00 

NIL (Previous year 5,502,950) Units of `10/- each in Birla Sun 
Life Fixed Term Plan Series EQ Growth  -  55.03 

NIL (Previous year 5,000,000) Units of `10/- each in SBI Debt 
Fund Series-367 Days-6-Growth  -  450.07  50.00  1,475.57 

 1,270.64  2,209.91 
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/ (LIABILITY)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)
Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)
- Opening Balance  41.73  58.84 
- Adjustment for the current year 3.11 (17.11)

 44.84  41.73 

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)
Provision for Leave Encashment  6.33  6.49 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  1.60  1.62 
Depreciation  15.60  20.60 
ESOP  17.28  13.02 
Other  4.03  - 

 44.84  41.73 

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital Advances 58.55 60.78  - 4.09
Security Deposits 90.64 50.98 14.82 17.71
Amount paid to Associate Company towards Shares  -  - 4.00 0.36

Others
- Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received *

24.19 16.26 43.07 41.81

- Balance with Service Tax Authorities  -  - 26.87 3.90
- Advance Tax  -  - 2,530.98 1,986.65
- Less: Provision for Tax  -  - (2,496.50) (1,965.02)
- Amount recoverable from ESOP Trust 11.63 0.21 0.01 (0.01)

- Advance Tax - Fringe Benefits  -  - 29.69 29.69
- Less: Provision for Tax - Fringe Benefits  -  - (28.69) (28.69)

185.01 128.23 124.25 90.49
* Includes  Nil  (Previous year `(0.05) Million) outstanding with directors
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13. OTHER NON CURRENT/CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(Unsecured Considered Good)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Non Current Portion of Fixed Deposits transferred from Cash 
& Bank Balances

 1,180.83  639.44  -  - 

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits  31.12  49.07  73.15  63.08 

 1,211.95  688.51  73.15  63.08 

14. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted) (Valued at lower 
of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

3,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in 1978 
ICICI Prudential FMP Series 65-367 Days Plan B Cummulative  30.00  - 

5000000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in ICICI 
Prudential FMP Series 65-366 Days Plan I Direct Plan 
Commulative  50.00  - 

7,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP-Series 90-12M- Growth  70.00  - 

4,000,000 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP-Series 37-13M- Growth  40.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
BlackRock FMP-Series 68-12M-
Institutional Plan-Growth Option  50.00  - 

5,898,767 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
BlackRock FMP-Series 43-12M-Growth  58.99  - 

3,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP Series 47-12M-Growth  30.00  - 

2,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in DSP 
Blackrock FMP Series 81-12M-Growth  20.00  - 

723,783 (Previous Year 1,897,278) Units of `105.74/- each in 
ICICI Prudential Flexible Income 
Plan Premium - Daily Dividend  76.53  200.61 

5,503,000 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Axis Fixed 
Term Plan - Series 22 (374 days)-Growth Plan  55.03  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in 6082/
HDFC FMP 371D August (1)-Growth-Series 22  50.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10/- each in HDFC 
5978 FMP 399D March 2012 (1)-Growth-Series-XXI  50.00  - 
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Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

5,503,750 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10/- each in 5964/ 
HDFC FMP 400D March 2012 (1) - Growth - Series XXI  55.04  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in IDFC 
Fixed Maturity Plan 366 Days Series 73-Dividend  50.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in IDFC 
Fixed Maturity Plan 366 Days Series 78-Dividend  50.00  - 

5,514,990 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10/- each in Kotak 
FMP Series 80-Growth  55.15  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in B1070G 
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan Series FO Growth  50.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in B1089G 
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan Series FV Growth (367 Days)  50.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in  SBI Debt 
Fund Series-366 Day-12-Growth  50.00  - 

5,000,000 (Previous year NIL) Units of `10/- each in  L302G 
SBI Debt Fund Series-366 Day-8-Growth  50.00  - 

NIL (Previous Year 10,837,343) Units of `10/- each in 
HDFC Cash Management Fund -Treasury Advantage Plan - 
Wholesale Daily Dividend  -  108.72 

3,909,467 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10.08/- each in 
HDFC Cash Management Fund -Treasury Advantage Plan - 
Wholesale Daily Dividend  39.41  - 

6,08,798 (Previous Year 4,414) Units of `100.09/- each in Birla 
Sun Life Saving Fund -Instl-Daily Dividend Reinvestment  60.94  0.44 

NIL (Previous Year 153,976) Units of `10/- each in SBI SHF 
Ultra Short Term Fund IP Daily Dividend  -  154.07 

NIL (Previous Year 3,775,183) Units of `10.01/- each in 
Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Institutional Plan Daily 
Dividend  -  37.79 

13,679,356 (Previous Year 27,079,374) Units of `10.02/- each 
in Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super Institutional 
Plan Daily Dividend  137.03  271.11 

98,906 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `10.01/- each in IDFC 
Ultra Short Term Fund Daily Dividend  0.99 

 - 
27,572 (Previous Year NIL) Units of `1,000.32/- each in DSP 
Blackrock Liquidity Fund-Institutional Plan - Daily Dividend  27.58 
3,620,713 (Previous Year 2,688,154) Units of `10.05/- each in 
Kotak Flexi Debt Scheme Institutional  - Daily Dividend  36.38  27.01 

5,000,000 units (Previous Year: Nil) of `10 each fully paid up 
of ICICI Prudential mutual fund  50.00  - 
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Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

NIL (Previous Year 1,483,809) Units of `10/- each in Fidelity 
Ultra Short Term Debt Fund Super Instl - Daily Dividend  -  14.85 
NIL (Previous Year 29,469) Units of ``/10- each in IDFC Cash 
Fund-Investment Plan B -Daily Dividend  -  31.20 

NIL (Previous Year 9,638,342) Units of `10/- each in IDFC 
Money Manager Fund - TP - Super Inst Plan C - Daily Div  -  96.40 

 1,343.07  942.20 

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months from 
the date they are due for payment

- Secured Considered Good  -  -  -  - 
- Unsecured Considered Good  -  -  0.30  4.07 
- Doubtful  -  -  48.24  52.13 

 -  -  48.54  56.20 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (48.24) (52.13)

(A)  -  -  0.30  4.07 

Other Receivables

- Secured Considered Good  -  - 
- Unsecured Considered Good  94.91  76.89 
- Doubtful  -  0.82 

 -  -  94.91  77.71 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  - (0.82)

(B)  -  -  94.91  76.89 

(A) + (B)  -  -  95.21  80.96 

This portion is intentionally left blank.
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16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand  -  -  2.96  3.48 

          -in Current Accounts  -  -  202.42  296.48 
          -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of 
less than 3 months

 -  -  309.19  52.50 

          -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of 
more than 12 months*

 1,180.83  639.44  -  - 

          Non Current portion transferred to non current assets (1,180.83) (639.44)  -  - 

Balances in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of 
more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

 -  -  1,771.57  1,863.69 

Unpaid Application Money received by the company for allot-
ment of securities and due for refund **

 -  -  0.12  0.12 

Unclaimed Dividend **  0.09  0.07 

* includes `55.00 Million (Previous year `50.28 Million) as 
margin money with bank
** (Not available for use by the company)

 -  -  2,286.35  2,216.34 

17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Sale of Services  4,699.52  3,903.04 
Other Operating Revenues  23.69  15.80 

 4,723.21  3,918.84 

18. OTHER INCOME

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Interest Received/Receivable on Fixed Deposits with Banks  263.20  203.50 
Interest on Debentures  5.09  0.39 
Dividend Income from Mutual Funds  87.35  120.65 
Profit on sale of Investment (net)  116.05  68.06 
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (net)  0.24  0.82 
Other Non Operating Income  3.34  1.30 

 475.27  394.72 
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19. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  1,550.78  1,126.45 
Contributions to Provident and other funds  53.87  42.22 
Sales Incentives and Commissions  213.66  182.04 
Staff Welfare and Benefits  101.10  77.37 
Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation  23.99  15.02 
Other Employee Expenses  39.92  39.14 

 1,983.32  1,482.24 

20. FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Interest on fixed loans  0.95  0.67 
Others  26.90  21.17 

 27.85  21.84 

21. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Depreciation of Tangible Assets  105.72  76.09 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets  12.08  7.12 

 117.80  83.21 

22. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COST

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Advertisement Expenses  716.23  549.98 
Promotion & Marketing Expenses  34.11  13.23 

 750.34  563.21 

23. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Electricity and Water  52.71  31.78 
Rent  212.77  121.55 
Repairs and Maintenance (Building)  18.28  14.90 
Repairs and Maintenance (Machinery)  20.37  19.28 
Legal and Professional Charges  43.84  30.30 
Rates & Taxes  0.08  0.08 
Insurance  2.77  1.99 
Communication expenses  71.43  49.57 
Travel & Conveyance  79.71  48.70 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  14.37  15.19 
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  -  - 
Miscellaneous expenses  99.24  252.75 

 615.57  586.09 
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24. NETWORK, INTERNET AND OTHER DIRECT CHARGES

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`Mn)  (`Mn)

Internet and Server Charges  150.01  92.23 
Others  13.95  12.43 

 163.96  104.66 

25. Info Edge (India) Limited (the Company) has Seven Subsidiaries and six associate companies, as given in the following table:

Name of the Company Percentage of Equity 
ownership interest 

as on March 31, 2013

Percentage of 
Preference ownership 

interest as on March 31, 
2013

Relationship Date of 
Incorporation

Country of 
Origin

Date of 
Investment

Naukri Internet Services 
Private Limited (NISPL)*

99.98 - Subsidiary December 9, 
1999

India January 30, 
2002

Jeevansathi Internet 
Services Private Limited 
(JISPL)*

98 - Subsidiary December 9, 
1999

India September
13, 2004

Info (Edge) India Mauritius 
Ltd. (IEIML)*

99.99 - Subsidiary October 30, 
2007

Mauritius January 18, 
2008

Allcheckdeals India Pvt. 
Ltd.* (ACDIPL)

99.47 - Subsidiary August 1, 
2008

India January 12, 
2009

Applect Learning Systems 
Pvt. Ltd. (ALSPL)

54.16 - Subsidiary April 4, 2001 India June 12, 
2008

Makesense Technologies 
Pvt. Ltd*.

99.99 - Subsidiary September
21, 2010

India March, 22 
2013

Zomato Media Pvt Ltd. 
(Formerly known as DC 
Foodiebay Online Services 
Private Limited) (ZMPL) **

57.58 - Subsidiary January 18, 
2010

India July 31, 
2010

Etechaces Marketing 
& Consulting Pvt. Ltd. 
(EMCPL)

43.80 20.54 Associate June 04, 2008 India April 27, 
2010

Nogle Technologies Private 
Limited (NTPL)***

2.58 100 Associate January 18, 
2011

India March 18, 
2011

Ninety Nine Labels Private 
Limited (NNLPL)

24.41 100 Associate August 20, 
2009

India May 24, 
2011

Kinobeo Software private 
Limited (KSPL)***

- 46.67 Associate January 05, 
2007

India March 31, 
2012

Happily Unmarried 
Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 
(HUMPL)***

0.85 100 Associate August 17, 
2007

India December
27, 2012

Canvera Digital 
Technolgoies Pvt. Ltd. 
(CDTPL)***

0.51 99.29 Associate February 05, 
2007

India November
7, 2012

* The remaining shares are held by the nominees of the Company.

**Converted from Associate Company to Subsidiary Company during the year.

*** By virtue of power to participate in the financial and/or operating policies. 
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26. A) Particulars of Investment in Equity Shares of Associate as on March 31, 2013: Amount (`Mn)

Particulars EMCPL NTPL

FY 12-13 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 11-12
Cost of Investment at the beginning of the year - 194.49 12.73 13.31 - -
Add: Investment made during the year - 5.51 813.60 29.00 - 0.01
Add: (Share)/Reversal of post-acquisition (loss)/
profits (Net)

- (14.35) 4.33 (2.60) - (0.01)

Less: Goodwill (written off)/written back - (185.65) 29.94 (26.98) - -
Amount adjusted for conversion of Associate into 
Subsidiary

- - (860.60) - - -

Carrying Value at the end of the year - - - 12.73 - -
** Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. was an associate as on March 31, 2012 and became a subsidiary during the year.

Amount (`Mn)

Particulars NNLPL CDTPL HUMPL

FY 12-13 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 11-12
Cost of Investment at the beginning of the year 15.06 - - - - -
Add: Investment made during the year - 53.56 4.15 - 1.27 -
Add: (Share)/Reversal of post acquisition (loss)/
profits (Net)

(15.06) (13.07) (0.02) - (0.04) -

Less: Goodwill (written off)/written back - (25.43) (1.51) - (0.29) -

Carrying Value at the end of the year - 15.06 2.61 - 0.94 -

B) Particulars of Investment in Equity Shares of Others as on March 31, 2013 (Amount (`’Mn)

Particulars Study Places Inc., USA

FY 12-13 FY 11-12
Cost of Investment at the beginning of the year 49.81 49.81
Less: Provision for diminution in value of Investment 49.81 49.81

Carrying Value at the end of the year (B) Nil Nil

27. As on March 31, 2013 there is an advance of `58.55 Million (Previous Year `64.87 Million) outstanding against capital account contracts. 
This primarily includes the following:

(i) `58.28 Million (Previous year `60.94 Million) relating to the project for construction of office building on leasehold land in 
respect of which extension for construction based on sanctioned plan  have been taken from the relevant authorities. The 
management is alternatively exploring possibilities of sale of the land/ project on a lump sum basis.

(ii) `0.27 Million  towards office equipment ( Previous Year `3.93 Million towards ERP software).

(iii) `0.03 Million towards other assets (Previous Year Nil).

28. Operating Leases where the company is a lessee:

The Group has entered into lease transactions mainly for leasing of office premises for periods between 1 to 11 years. The terms of lease 
include terms of renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation. The operating lease payments recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss amount to `213.02 Million (included in Note 23 – Administration and Other Expenses `212.77 Million and 
in Note 19 – Employee Benefits Expenses `0.25 Million [(Previous Year `122.34 Million) (included in Note 23 – Administration and Other 
Expenses `121.55 Million and in Note 19 – Employee Benefits Expense `0.79 Million)]. 

29. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS):

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2013

Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (`Mn) 915.94 1,033.29
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)    109,181,024    54,590,512 
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of `10   each (`) 8.39            9.46

The authorised share capital of the company has increased from `600 Million to `1,200 Million during the year ended March 31, 2013. 
Further, during the year ended March 31, 2013 the company had issued 54,590,512 equity shares of `10/- each, fully paid up, as bonus 
shares in the ratio of 1:1 out of securities premium account. Accordingly, the EPS has been adjusted for the previous year, as per the 
requirements of Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share.
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30.  (1) Related Party Disclosures

Rules, 2006 (as amended) (“accounting standards”) and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2013:

Associates
Nogle Technologies Private Limited (NTPL)
eTechAces Marketing & Consulting Pvt. Ltd. (EMCPL)
Ninty Nine Labels Private Limited (99LABELS)
Kinobeo Software Private Limited (Mydala)
Happily Unmarried Life Marketing Pvt. Ltd.(HUMPL)
Canvera Digital Technologies Private Limited(CDTPL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Surabhi Bikhchandani (Spouse of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Sushil Bikhchandani (Brother of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Hitesh Oberoi
Divya Batra (Sister of Hitesh Oberoi)
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Minik Enterprises (Proprietorship concern of Sushil Bikhchandani)
Oyster Learning ( Proprietorship concern of Rimy Oberoi)

Independent Directors- Non Executive
Arun Duggal
Ashish Gupta
Bala Deshpande
Naresh Gupta
Saurabh Srivastava

Non-Executive Directors
Kapil Kapoor

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’ Mn)

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship/transaction Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises over 
which KMP & 

Relatives have 

Total

1 Remuneration Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 16.07
Hitesh Oberoi ` 15.84
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 11.81
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 1.25 - 44.97 - - - 44.97

2 Advances Given for business 
purposes (net):
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 0.03
Hitesh Oberoi ` 0.02                - 0.05 - - - 0.05

 3 Receipt of services:
Minik Enterprises ` 1.36
Divya Batra ` 0.52 - 0.52 - - 1.36 1.88
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Sr.
No

Nature of relationship/transaction Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises over 
which KMP & 

Relatives have 

Total

4 Dividend Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 38.47
Hitesh Oberoi ` 7.60
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 2.07
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 1.49
Arun Duggal ` 0.08
Bala Deshpande ` 0.10
Kapil Kapoor ` 3.81 - 49.64 0.18 3.81 - 53.63

5 Investment in Equity shares:
CDTPL ` 4.15
HULMP ` 1.27 5.42              -                      - -              - 5.42

6 Investment in Preference Shares
NTPL ` 2.00
EMCPL ` 24.97
HUMPL ` 50.00
CDTPL ` 350.00  426.97 426.97

7 Investment in Debentures
99lables ` 50.00 50.00 - - - 50.00

8 Sitting Fees paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.10
Ashish Gupta ` 0.12
Bala Deshpande ` 0.06
Kapil Kapoor ` 0.06
Naresh Gupta ` 0.16
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.12  - - 0.56 0.06 - 0.62

9 Commission paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.78
Ashish Gupta ` 0.69
Bala Deshpande ` 0.64
Naresh Gupta ` 0.64
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.78 - - 3.51 - - 3.51

10 Services Rendered:
EMCPL ` 0.29                          
Mydala ` 0.10 0.40 - - - - 0.40

11 Advance towards Shares:
NTPL ` 4.00 4.00 - - - - 4.00

12 Interest on Debenture
99labels ` 5.08 5.08 - - - - 5.08

13 Loss on Sale of Debenture
99labels ` 105.42 105.42 - - - - 105.42

1. Amounts paid to / on behalf of Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust during the year are as below:

(a) Dividend paid `0.99 Million

(b) Advances paid (net) `NIL
2. Amount due to Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `0.02 Million.

3. Amount due from Allcheckdeals Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `0.40 Million.

4. Amount given to Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust during the Year is `11.42 Million.

5. Amount due from Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `11.63 Million.

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2013 Amount (`Mn)

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / transaction Associate
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit balances 
1 Outstanding Advances/Receivables 4.01 - - 4.01

Maximum amount outstanding during the year 4.01 - - 4.01

INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED
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30 (2) Related Party Disclosures

Rules, 2006 (as amended) (“accounting standards”) and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2012:

Associates
Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. (formerly DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited) (ZMPL)
Nogle Technologies Private Limited (NTPL)
Ninety Nine Labels Private Ltd (99labels)
Kinobeo Software Private Ltd (Mydala)
Etecahces Marketing & Consulting Private Ltd. (EMCPL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Surabhi Bikhchandani (Spouse of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Sushil Bikhchandani (Brother of Sanjeev Bikhchandani)
Hitesh Oberoi
Rimy Oberoi (Spouse of Hitesh Oberoi)
Divya Batra (Sister of Hitesh Oberoi)
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Minik Enterprises (Proprietorship concern of Sushil Bikhchandani)
Oyster Learning (Proprietorship concern of Rimy Oberoi)

Independent Directors- Non Executive

Arun Duggal

Ashish Gupta

Bala Deshpande

Naresh Gupta

Saurabh Srivastava

Non-Executive Directors

Kapil Kapoor

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2012 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’ Mn) 

Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / transaction Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises over 
which KMP & 

Relatives have 

Total

1 Remuneration Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 16.68
Hitesh Oberoi ` 15.76
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 11.78
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 1.41 - 45.63 - - - 45.63

2 Advances Given for business 
purposes (net):
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 0.08
Hitesh Oberoi ` 0.01                - 0.09 - - - 0.09

 3 Receipt of services:
Minik Enterprises ` 0.92
Divya Batra ` 0.48 - 0.48 - - 0.92 1.40
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Sr.
No

Nature of relationship / transaction Associate
Companies

KMP & 
Relatives

Independent
Directors-

Non
Executive

Non-
Executive
Directors

Enterprises over 
which KMP & 

Relatives have 

Total

4 Dividend Paid:
Sanjeev Bikhchandani ` 14.43
Hitesh Oberoi ` 2.92
Ambarish Raghuvanshi ` 0.95
Surabhi Bikhchandani ` 0.56
Arun Duggal ` 0.03
Bala Deshpande ` 0.04
Kapil Kapoor ` 1.43 - 18.86 0.07 1.43 - 20.36

5 Investment in Equity shares:
ZMPL ` 29.00
NTPL ` 0.01
99labels ` 53.57
EMCPL ` 5.51 88.09 - - -              - 88.09

6 Investment in Preference Shares
ZMPL ` 135.00
NTPL ` 15.00
99label ` 131.53
EMCPL ` 100.02
Mydala ` 270.00 651.55 - - - - 651.55

7 Investment in Debentures
99 label ` 50.00 50.00 - - - - 50.00

8 Sitting Fees paid:
Arun Duggal ` 0.20
Ashish Gupta ` 0.16
Bala Deshpande ` 0.08
Kapil Kapoor ` 0.10
Naresh Gupta ` 0.10
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.20  - - 0.74 0.10 -      0.84

9 Commission paid/payable:
Arun Duggal ` 0.78
Ashish Gupta ` 0.69
Bala Deshpande ` 0.69
Naresh Gupta ` 0.69
Saurabh Srivastava ` 0.69 - - 3.53 - - 3.53

10 Services Rendered:
EMCPL ` 0.16
ZMPL ` 0.01
99labels ` 0.03
Mydala ` 0.21 0.41 - - - - 0.41

11 Interest on Debentures Receivable:
99labels ` 0.35 0.35 - - - - 0.35

12 Reimbursements Paid:
99labels ` 0.06 0.06 - - - - 0.06

1. Amounts paid to / on behalf of Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust during the year are as below:

(c) Dividend paid `0.50 Million

(d) Advances paid (net) `(13.43) Million 
2. Amount due to Info Edge Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2012 is `0.03 Million.

3. Amount due from Allcheckdeals Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2012 is `0.40 Million.

4. Amount given to Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust during the Year is `0.02 Million.

5. Amount due from Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust as on March 31, 2012 is `0.21 Million.
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C)  Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2012 Amount (`Mn)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Associate
Companies

Key Management 
Personnel & 

Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit balances 
1 Outstanding Advances/Receivables 0.36 - - 0.36

Maximum amount outstanding during the 
year 0.36 - - 0.36

Credit balances 
1 Outstanding Payable - 0.05 - 0.05

           

  The company has set up a trust to administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been granted to employees. Under this 
scheme the employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in  the grant. The 
options granted till March 31, 2013 have a vesting period of maximum of 3 years from the date of grant.

- Number of options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year:-

2012-13 2011-12

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Options/SAR outstanding at beginning of year 1,863,326        416.96 1,801,721 345.36

Add:
Options/SAR granted * 343,500           343.18 377,600           702.86 
Bonus Issued during the year 1,820,494           210.37 - -

Less:
Options/SAR exercised    531,825           163.15 231,097           304.05 
Options/SAR forfeited 108,400           283.25 84,898           476.53 

Options/SAR outstanding  at the end of year 3,387,095              416.96 1,863,326              416.96 

Options/SAR exercisable at the end of year 2,197,360              196.98 1,086,411              351.07 
  * During the year the company granted 343,500 (Previous Year 377,600) Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) with a maximum exercise 

period of five years (Previous Year Five Years).

  The options outstanding at the end of year had exercise prices in the range of `2.50/- to `384/- (Previous Year `5/- to `366/-) and a 
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.61 years (Previous Year 4.64 years).

Exercise Amount Range (`) Options outstanding  as at 
March 31, 2013

Options outstanding  as at 
March 31, 2012

2.5-300                2,110,200 451,396
301-600                1,276,900 904,030
601-750                           -   507,900

Grand Total 3,387,100 1,863,326
  In accordance with the above mentioned ESOP Scheme, `14.68 Million (Previous Year `14.98 Million) has been charged to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to the options vested during the year ended March 31, 2013 as Employee Stock Option 
Scheme Compensation.

31 (2) ACD ESOP Plan 2009

  The company has set up a trust to administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been granted to employees. Under this 
scheme the employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in the grant. The options 
granted till March 31, 2013 had a vesting period of maximum of 3 years from the date of grant.
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  - Number of options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year:

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Options outstanding at beginning of year 15,100 10 15,100 10

Add:
Options granted - - - -

Less:
Options exercised - - - -
Options forfeited - - - -

Options outstanding  at the end of year 15,100 10 15,100 10
Option exercisable at the end of year - - - -

In accordance with the above mentioned ESOP Scheme, ̀ Nil (Previous Year Nil) has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in relation to the options vested during the year ended March 31, 2013 as Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation.

31 (3) Applect Learning Systems Private Limited- ESOP Scheme 2009

  The board vide its resolution dated 29-Dec-09 approved ESOP 2009 for granting Employee Stock Options in form of equity shares 
linked to the completion of a minimum period of continued employment to the eligible employees of the company, monitored and 
supervised by the compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

  The employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in the grant.

  - Number of options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year:-

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Options outstanding at beginning of year 745 10 745 10

Add:
Options granted 1585 10 - -

Less:
Options exercised 294 10 - -
Options forfeited 66 10 - -

Options outstanding  at the end of year 1970 10 745 10

In accordance with the above mentioned ESOP Scheme, `9.31 Million (Previous Year `0.04 Million) has been charged to the  
Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to the options granted during the year ended March 31, 2013 as Employee Stock Option 
Scheme Compensation.

32. (A) In respect of options vested during the year, had the fair value method been used, the profit for the  year would be lower by `76.32
Million (Previous year 82.67 Million) and the EPS would be `7.69 (Previous year 8.71).

(B) (1) The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes model with the below listed assumptions:

2012-13 2011-12
ESOP 2007 ESOP 2007 

SAR
ESOP 2007 ESOP 2007 

SAR
Weighted average fair value of the options at the grant dates 322.25 130.90 - 291.01
Dividend Yield (%) 0.10% 0.10% - 0.10%
Risk free rate 8.06% 8.06% - 8.23%
Expected life (years)        4.00 3.68 - 3.62
Expected volatility 32.15% 32.15% - 42.15%
Weighted average share price 331.00 364.51 - 702.85
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(2) 2012-13 2011-12
Weighted average fair value of the options at the grant dates 155.82 155.82
Risk free rate 6.53% 6.53%

       *For Applect Learning Systems Private Limited

33. The Company has received legal notices of claims/lawsuits filed against it relating to infringement of Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) in 
relation to the business activities carried on by it. In the opinion of the management, no material liability is likely to arise on account of 
such claims/law suits.

34. The company is primarily in the business of internet based service delivery operating in four service verticals through web portals in 
respective vertical namely Naukri.com for recruitment related services, Jeevansathi.com for matrimony related services, 99acres.com for 
real estate related services and Shiksha.com for education related services. The other activities comprise of placement search services 
and real estate broking services. The segment revenues, results and assets of the other activities do not constitute reportable segment 
under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting and accordingly no disclosure is required.

35. As at March 31, 2013 the company had `0.12 Million (Previous Year `0.12 Million) outstanding with ICICI bank towards unpaid application 
money received by the company for allotment of securities and due for refund and `0.07 Million (Previous Year `0.07 million) outstanding 
with Kotak Mahindra Bank & `0.02 Million (Previous year NIL) outstanding with Yes Bank as unclaimed dividend. These amounts are not 
available for use by the company and will be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as and when due.

36. The aggregate managerial remuneration under section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the Directors including Managing Director is:

Amount (`Mn)

Particulars Year ended 31st 
March, 2013

Year ended 31st 
March, 2012

Whole Time Directors (including Managing Director)
Salary 28.04 27.10
Reimbursements 1.27 1.22
Bonus 14.41 15.90

Total (A) 43.72 44.22

Non Whole Time Directors:
Commission 3.51 3.51
Sitting Fee 0.62 0.84

Total (B) 4.13 4.35

Total Managerial Remuneration Paid/Payable (A+B) 47.85 48.60
The above amounts exclude company’s contribution / provision for gratuity and leave encashment for the year, which is determined 
annually on actuarial basis.

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

   Amount (`Mn)
     a) Provident Fund
         During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss – 

Particulars Year Ended 
March 31, 2013

Year Ended 
March 31, 2012

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund* 29.79 22.78
*Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)

B. State Plans Amount (`Mn)
    a) Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance 
        During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Particulars Year Ended 
March 31, 2013

Year Ended 
March 31, 2012

Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance* 5.57 4.46
*Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)
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     a) Contribution to Gratuity Funds – Life Insurance Corporation of India
     b) Leave Encashment/ Compensated Absences for Employees

 Particulars Leave Encashment / Compensated Absences

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Discount Rate (per annum) 8% to 8.25% 8.25% to 8.50%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 15% in first  year, 10% 

in next 5 years, & 7% 
thereafter

15% in first 2 years,
10% in next 5 years,

& 7% thereafter

 Particulars Employee’s Gratuity Fund

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Discount Rate (per annum) 8% to 8.25% 8.25% to 8.50%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 15% in first  year, 10% 

in next 5 years, & 7% 
thereafter

15.0% in first 2 years,
10.0% in next 5 years,

& 7% thereafter
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.5% 7.50%
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees (years) 10.09 to 32.73 10.59 to 32.27

(A) Changes in the Present Value of  Obligation Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

79.72 64.30
Interest Cost 7.59 6.24
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Current Service Cost 18.73 14.75
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Settlement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Benefits paid (7.05) (5.68)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (2.50) (0.38)

Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 96.49 79.23
* The previous year figures does not includes the balances of Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. & Zomato Media Private Limited which 
were acquired during the year.

(B) Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 62.88 45.74
Expected Return on Plan Assets 4.99 3.24
Actuarial Gains and (Losses) 0.41 2.30
Contributions 14.43 17.22
Benefits Paid (7.05) (5.62)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 75.65 62.88

Assets
Employee’s

Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

(96.49) (78.41)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the period 75.65 62.88
Funded Status

Present Value of unfunded Obligation - (0.82)
Unrecognized Actuarial (gains) / losses Nil Nil

(20.84) (16.35)
**Included in Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 6)

 The previous year figures does not includes the balances of Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. & Zomato Media Private Limited which 
were acquired during the year.
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Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund
Amount (`Mn)

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Current Service Cost 18.73 14.75
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Interest Cost 7.59 6.24
Expected Return on Plan Assets (4.99) (3.24)
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Settlement Cost / (Credit) - 0.02
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period (2.90) (2.70)

18.43 15.07
#Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19)

In respect of leave encashment/compensated absence the present value of obligation is `20.81 Million (Previous Year 21.08 Million) as at 
March 31, 2013 included in provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 6). The expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
is `16.06 Million (Previous Year `15.44 Million) included in Staff Welfare and Benefits under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 19).

38. The exceptional item in the year ended March 31, 2013 represents provision for diminution in the carrying value of investment in Preference 
shares of `131.50 Million in Ninety Nine Labels Private Limited  and also loss on sale of debentures (inclusive of accrued interest)  `105.42
Millions held in Ninety Nine Labels Private Limited. The exceptional item in the year ended March 31, 2012 represents provision for 
diminution in the carrying value of investment of `8.33 million in Study Places Inc., USA.

39. The accounts of some of the subsidiaries and the associate company considered in consolidation have been prepared on a going concern 
basis despite significant erosion in their net worth. The applicability of the going concern assumption is considered to be appropriate on 
the basis of the business activities of these companies, together with the factors likely to affect their future development and performance 
along with their financial position and projected cash flows. These have been reviewed by the respective Board of Directors and they have 
a reasonable expectation that these companies have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

40. For the purpose of consolidation of financial statements of the company as regards the investments in  

(1) Associate companies: Unaudited Profit after tax of Ninety Nine labels Private Limited and Canvera Digital Technologies Pvt. Ltd. has 
been considered. It is unlikely that the audited results would be materially different from unaudited financial statements.

(2) Subsidiary Companies: Unaudited financial statements of Info (Edge) India Mauritius Ltd.(the company which has initiated voluntarily 
winding up proceedings during the year) have been considered. It is unlikely that the audited results would be materially different 
from unaudited results.

41. Contingent Liability - Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt :

-Service tax matters `Nil (Previous Year  `4.68 million).

-Income tax matters `Nil (Previous Year  `1.22 million).

42. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged to confirm to the current year classification.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.,Bangalore
Firm Registration Number 007567S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number  58507

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Managing Director Director & CFO

Amit Gupta
Company Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: May 03, 2013
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NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present Annual Report and Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2013.

Financial Results

Your Company has earned a profit after tax of `79 Thousand in financial year 2012-13 as compared to `89 Thousand in financial year 2011-12. 

Directors

During the year, there was no change in the Directors of the Company.

Auditors

M/s Sharma Goel & Company, Chartered Accountants hold office until the conclusion of forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. 

Personnel

The Company had no employee covered under section 217(2A) of the Companies Act 1956.

Conversation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The Directors have nothing to report on the aforesaid matters as the Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities. The Company has 
no foreign collaboration and has not exported or imported any goods or services. 

Directors Responsibility Statement 

The observation of Auditors and notes on Accounts is self-explanatory. Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 the 
Directors placed on record the following statements:

- That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts the applicable Accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures;

- That the Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit or loss of the Company for that period;

- That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate Accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

- That the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

Your Company conveys their special gratitude to all stakeholders for their cooperation. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: Noida Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani

Dated: May 2, 2013 (Director) (Director)



AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED.

I. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Naukri Internet Services Private Limited as at March 31, 2013 and also the Profit and Loss 
Account and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The said company is exempt from the provisions of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 as further amended by Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) (Amendment) Order 2004 issued by the Company Law Board in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

We report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

iii. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

iv. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report comply with the mandatory 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act 1956.

v. On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2013 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2013 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2013; and

(b) In case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date.

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

      

For Sharma Goel & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Mittal

Dated: May 2, 2013 Partner
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No. As at
March 31, 2013

Amount (`’ 000)

As at
March 31, 2012

Amount (`’ 000)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital 3  100  100 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 4  498  419 

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities 5  208  163 

(b) Trade Payables 6  83  75 

T O T A L  889  757 

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Non-current investments 7  0  0 

(2) Current assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 8  706  612 

(b) Short-term loans and advances 9  183  145 

T O T A L  889  757 

Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681

For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi

Dated: May 2, 2013

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of these 
accounts

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED



STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE  YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No Year Ended
March 31, 2013

Amount (`’ 000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2012

Amount (`’ 000)

I. Revenue from operations 10  100  100 

II. Other Income 11  37  32 

III. Total Revenue (I +II)  137  132 

IV. Expenses:
Administration and Other expenses 12  13  12 

Total Expenses  13  12 

 124  120 

VI. Tax expense:

 (1) Current tax  45  31 

 (2) Tax of earlier years

 79  89 

VIII. Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations  -  - 

IX. Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -  - 

 -  - 

 79  89 

XII. Earning per equity share: 14
       (1) Basic 7.93 8.93

       (2) Diluted 7.93 8.93

Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Profit and Loss Account referred to in our report of even 
date

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681

For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi

Dated: May 2, 2013

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of these 
accounts

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

S.No. Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2013

Amount (`’ 000)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

Amount (`’ 000)

A.
Net profit before tax 124 120

Adjustments for:
  Interest received on Fixed Deposits (37) (32)

87 88

 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Sundry Debtors  -  - 
 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Loans, Advances and Other Current Assets 0  35 
 - INCREASE/(DECREASE) in Current Liabilities and Provisions 8  9 

Cash generated from operating activities 95 132

 - Taxes (Paid) / Received (Net of TDS) (38)  (39)

Net cash from operating activities 57  93 

B.
Interest received on Fixed Deposits 37  32 
Investment in Eq share of Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (0)

Net cash used in investing activities  37  32 

C.

 -  - 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 94  125 

Opening Balance of Cash and cash equivalents 612  487 

Closing  Balance of Cash and cash equivalents 706 612

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash in hand 0  0 

-in current accounts 269  208 
-in fixed deposits 437  404 

Total 706 612

Notes:

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash 
Flow Statement, prescribed under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as notified by the Central Government vide its 
notification

2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681
For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 2, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED



1. Corporate Information

Naukri Internet Services Private Limited (the company) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Info Edge (India) Ltd.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared to comply in all material aspects with all the applicable accounting principles in India, the 
applicable accounting standards notified u/s 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 (the ‘Act’) and the relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Investments

Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value of such investments. Current investments 
are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

Naukri Internet Services Pvt. Ltd. has entered into an agreement with Info Edge (India) Pvt. Ltd. dated 13th September 2005 whereby 
the management and day to day running of the operation of the former company will be done by the later and in lieu of it the later 
will be paying a annual license fee of `100,000/- to Naukri Internet Services Pvt. Ltd. as License fee for usage of its domain name(s), 
trade mark(s) etc.

2.4 Taxes on Income

As a measure of prudence the Deferred Tax Assets (Net) in terms of Accounting Standard No. 22 specified in Companies (Accounting 
Standard) Rules, 2006 have not been recognized in the absence of their being virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
sufficient future taxable income would be available against which such deferred tax assets could be realized

2.5 Earnings Per Share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit after tax and include the post tax effect of any 
extra ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year

2.6 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 
obligation cannot be made.

2.7 Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on the time basis determined by the amount outstanding including the tax credits and the rate 
applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectibility exists.

2.8 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the Management 
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’ 000) 

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000) 

 AUTHORISED
 10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each 
 (Previous Year - 10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each)  100  100 

  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP 
  10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each, fully paid up 
 (Previous Year - 10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each)  100  100 

 100  100 

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
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a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

 Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012

 No of Shares  Amount (`’000)  No of Shares  Amount (`’000)

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period  10,000  100  10,000  100 
Add: Issued during the period  -  -  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the period  10,000  100  10,000  100 

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

 Particulars FY 2012-13  FY 2011-12 

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid
Info Edge (India) Ltd  9,998 99.98%  9,998 99.98%

 9,998 99.98%  9,998 99.98%

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

 Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

Opening Balance  419  330 
Add: Net Profit after tax transferred from 
statement of Profit and Loss  79  89 

 498  419 

5. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

  Provision for Income Tax  208  163 

 208  163 

6. TRADE PAYABLES

 Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

  Audit Fees Payable  -  -  83  75 

 -  -  83  75 
Based on information available with the Company, there are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined in Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2013. 

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



7. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

 Shares in Allcheckdeals India Pvt Ltd  0  0 
 1 (Previous Year 1) Equity Share of `10/- fully paid up) 

 Shares in Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd.  0  - 
 1 (Previous Year 0) Equity Share of `10/- fully paid up) 

 0  0 

8. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

Cash & Cash Equivalents
       (a) Cash in Hand  0  0 
       (b) Balance with Bank in Current Account  269  208 
       (b) Balance with Bank in Fixed Deposit  437  404 

 706  612 

9. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 Particulars Long Term Short Term
As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (Unsecured considered good)  Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 
 Recoverable from Holding Company  -  -  -  - 
  Advance Tax  -  -  183  145 

 -  -  183  145 

10. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

 License Fees  100  100 

 100  100 

11. OTHER INCOME

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

 Interest Received on fixed deposits  37  32 

 37  32 

12. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

 Auditor’s Remuneration  9  8 
 Professional Charges  4  4 

 13  12 

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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13. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

 As Auditors  8  7 
 Out of Pocket Expenses & Service Tax  1  1 

 9  8 

14. BASIC & DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

 Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’ 000)  Amount (`’ 000) 

 Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (`)  79  89 
 Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)  10,000  10,000 
 Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of `10 each (`)  7.93  8.93 

15. The Company is not engaged in either manufacturing or trading of goods. Accordingly disclosures relating to Quantitative information 
as required under Part II of Schedule VI to the Act, with regard to finished goods / raw materials and components consumed are not 
applicable.

16 (1) Related Party Disclosures 

Rules, 2006 and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2013:

Holding Company
Info Edge (India) Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Hitesh Oberoi
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`‘000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

1. License Fees  100  -  -  100 
2. Advances received for business purposes (net)  -  -  -  - 

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2013 Amount (`’ 000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit Balances
Outstanding Advances  -  -  -  - 
Maximum Amount outstanding during the year  49  -  -  49 

Credit Balances
Outstanding Payable  -  -  -  - 

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



16 (2) Related Party Disclosures 

Rules, 2006 and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2012:

Holding Company
Info Edge (India) Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Hitesh Oberoi
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2012 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`‘ 000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

1. License Fees  100  -  -  100 
2. Advances received for business purposes (net)  33  -  -  33 

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2012 Amount (`‘ 000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit Balances
Outstanding Advances  -  -  -  - 
Maximum Amount outstanding during the year  84  -  -  84 

Credit Balances
Outstanding Payable  -  -  -  - 

17. No disclosure is required under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting specified in Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 
as the Company is having the income from license fees received for the usage of its domain name, trademark etc.

The requirements of AS-15 on Employee Benefits specified in Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 are not applicable on the 
company since there was no employee employed by the company during the year.

19. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / recast to confirm to current year’s presentation.

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681
For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 2, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

NAUKRI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present Annual Report and Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2013.

Financial Results

Your Company has earned a profit after tax of `59 Thousand in financial year 2012-13 as compared to `68 Thousand in financial year 2011-12.

Directors

During the year there was no change in the Directors of the Company.

Auditors

M/s Sharma Goel & Company, Chartered Accountants hold office until the conclusion of forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
offer themselves for re-appointment. 

Personnel

The Company had no employee covered under section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Conversation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The Directors have nothing to report on the aforesaid matters as the Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities. The Company has no 
foreign collaboration and has not exported or imported any goods or services. 

Directors Responsibility Statement 

The observation of Auditors and notes on Accounts is self explanatory. Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 the Directors 
placed on record the following statements:

- That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts the applicable Accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures;

- That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit or loss of the Company for that period;

- That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate Accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

- That the Directors had prepared the annual account on a going concern basis.

Your Company conveys their special gratitude to all stakeholders for their cooperation. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: Noida Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani

Dated: May 2, 2013 (Director) (Director)

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTOR’S REPORT



AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED.

I. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited as at March 31, 2013 and also the Profit and 
Loss Account and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The said company is exempt from the provisions of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 as further amended by Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) (Amendment) Order 2004 issued by the Company Law Board in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

We report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

iii. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

iv. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report comply with the mandatory 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act 1956.

v. On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2013 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2013 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2013; and

(b) In case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date.

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

      

For Sharma Goel & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi Rajesh Mittal

Dated: May 02, 2013 Partner

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No. As at
March 31, 2013

Amount (`’ 000)

As at
March 31, 2012

Amount (`’ 000)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital 3  100  100 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 4  32  (27)

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities 5  -  - 

(b) Trade Payables 6  80  72 

(c) Short Term Provisions 7  152  125 

T O T A L  364  270 

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
     (i) Tangible assets 8  1  2 

(2) Current assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 9  207  143 

(b) Short-term loans and advances 10  156  125 

T O T A L  364  270 

Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681

For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 02, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE  YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No Year Ended
March 31, 2013
Amount (`’000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2012
Amount (`’000)

I. Revenue from operations 11  100  100 

II. Other Income 12  -  13 

III. Total Revenue (I +II)  100  113 

IV. Expenses:
Administration and Other expenses 13  14  12 

Depreciation 8  1  1 

Total Expenses  15  13 

 86  100 

VI. Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax  27  32 

 59  68 

VIII. Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations  -  - 

IX. Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -  - 

 -  - 

 59  68 

XII. Earning per equity share: 14
       (1) Basic 5.85 6.80
       (2) Diluted 5.85 6.80
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of 
even date

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681

For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 02, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

S.No. Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

A.
Net profit before tax  86  99 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation  1  1 
Interest received on income tax refund  -  (12)
Excess provision written back  - (1)

 87  87 

 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Sundry Debtors  -  - 
 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Loans, Advances and Other Current Assets  -  - 
 - INCREASE/(DECREASE) in Current Liabilities and Provisions  8  (270)

Cash generated from operating activities  95  (183)

 - Taxes (Paid) / Received (Net of TDS)  (31)  207 

Net cash from operating activities  64  24 

B.
Interest received on Fixed Deposits  -  - 

Net cash used in investing activities  -  - 

C.

 -  - 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  64  24 

Opening Balance of Cash and cash equivalents 143  119 

Closing  Balance of Cash and cash equivalents  207  143 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash in hand  -  - 

-in current accounts  207  143 

Total  207  143 

Notes :  - 

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash 
Flow Statement, prescribed under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as notified by the Central Government vide its 
notification

2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681

For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 02, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ambarish Raghuvanshi  Sanjeev Bikhchandani 
(Director)  (Director) 

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED



1. General Information

Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited (the company) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Info Edge (India) Ltd.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements are prepared to comply in all material aspects with all the applicable accounting principles in India, the 
applicable accounting standards notified u/s 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 (the ‘Act’) and the relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition along with related taxes, duties and incidental expenses related to these assets.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

Jeevansathi Internet Services Pvt. Ltd. has entered into an agreement with Info Edge (India) Ltd. dated 13th September 2005 whereby 
the management and day to day running of the operation of the former company will be done by the later and in lieu of it the later will 
be paying a annual license fee of `100,000/- to Jeevansathi Internet Services Pvt. Ltd. as License fee for usage of its domain name(s), 
trade mark(s) etc.

2.4 Taxes on Income

As a measure of prudence the Deferred Tax Assets (Net) in terms of Accounting Standard No. 22 specified in Companies (Accounting 
Standard) Rules, 2006 have not been recognized in the absence of their being virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that 
sufficient future taxable income would be available against which such deferred tax assets could be realized.

2.5 Earnings Per Share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit after tax and include the post tax effect of any 
extra ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year.

2.6 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 
obligation cannot be made.

2.7 Depreciation

Depreciation has been provided on fixed assets on written down value method as per the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956 on pro-rata basis.

2.8 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the Management 
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

 AUTHORISED
 10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each 
 (Previous Year - 10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each)  100  100 

  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP 
  10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each, fully paid up 
 (Previous Year - 10,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each)  100  100 

 100  100 

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 125

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 No of Shares 

As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at
March 31, 2012

 No of Shares 

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period  10,000  100  10,000  100 
Add: Issued during the period  -  -  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the period  10,000  100  10,000  100 

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

 Particulars FY 2012-13  FY 2011-12 

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid
Info Edge (India) Ltd  9,800 98.00%  9,800 98.00%

 9,800 98.00%  9,800 98.00%

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

 Particulars As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

Opening Balance  (27)  (94)
Add: Net Profit after tax transferred from statement of Profit and Loss  59  67 

 32  (27)

5. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

 Payable to Holding Company  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

6. TRADE PAYABLES

 Particulars Long Term Short Term

As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

  Audit Fees Payable  -  -  80  72 

 -  -  80  72 
Based on information available with the Company, there are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined in Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2013. 
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7. PROVISIONS

 Particulars Long Term Short Term
As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at

March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)
  Provision for Income Tax  -  -  152  125 

 -  -  152  125 

8. FIXED ASSETS Amount (`’ 000)

Description GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at
April 1, 

2012

Additions
during the 

year

Deletions
during the 

year

As at
March

31, 2013

Up to
April 1, 

2012

 Depreciation/
Amortisation
 for the year 

 Accumulated 
Depreciation  
 on Deletions 

Up to
March

31, 2013

As at
March

31, 2013

As at
March

31, 2012
Tangible Assets
Computers and 
Software

 297  -  -  297  295  1  296  1  2 

Total  297  -  -  297  295  1  -  296  1  2 

Previous Year  297  -  -  297  294  1  -  295  3 

9. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)

Cash & Cash Equivalents
       (a) Cash in Hand  -  - 
       (b) Balance with Bank in Current Account  207  143 

 207  143 

10. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000) (Unsecured, considered good) 
  Advance Tax  156  125 

 156  125 

11. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)
 License Fees  100  100

 100  100 

12. OTHER INCOME

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2013

 Amount (`’000)

As at
March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)
 Income Tax Refund  -  12 
 Excess Provision written back  -  1 

 -  13 

13. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

 Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)  Amount (`’000)
 Auditor’s Remuneration  9  8 
 Professional Charges  4  4 

 13  12 
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14. BASIC & DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

 Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (`’000)  59  68 
 Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)  10,000  10,000 
 Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of `10 each (`)  5.85  6.80 

15. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

 Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 Amount (`’000)  Amount (`’000)

 As Auditors  8  8 
 Out of Pocket Expenses & Service Tax  1  1 

 9  9 

16. The Company is not engaged in either manufacturing or trading of goods. Accordingly disclosures relating to Quantitative information 
as required under Part II of Schedule VI to the Act, with regard to finished goods / raw materials and components consumed are not 
applicable.

17 (1) Related Party Disclosures 

Rules, 2006 and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2013:

Holding Company

Info Edge (India) Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives

Sanjeev Bikhchandani

Hitesh Oberoi

Ambarish Raghuvanshi

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

1. License Fees  100  -  -  100 
2. Advances received for business purposes (net)  -  -  -  - 

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2013 Amount (`’000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit Balances
Outstanding Advances  -  -  -  - 
Maximum Amount outstanding during the year  50  -  -  50 

Credit Balances
Outstanding Payable  -  -  -  - 
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17 (2) Related Party Disclosures 

Rules, 2006 and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2012:

Holding Company

Info Edge (India) Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives

Sanjeev Bikhchandani

Hitesh Oberoi

Ambarish Raghuvanshi

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2012 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

1. License Fees  100  -  -  100 
2. Advances received for business purposes (net)  27  -  -  27 

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2012 Amount (`’000)

Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP & 
Relatives

Enterprises over which 
KMP & Relatives have 

Total

Debit Balances
Outstanding Advances  -  -  -  - 
Maximum Amount outstanding during the year  84  -  -  84 

Credit Balances
Outstanding Payable  -  -  -  - 

18. No disclosure is required under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting specified in Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 
as the Company is having the income from license fees received for the usage of its domain name, trademark etc.

The requirements of AS-15 on Employee Benefits specified in Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 are not applicable on the 
company since there was no employee employed by the company during the year.

20. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / recast to confirm to current year’s presentation.

Rajesh Mittal
Partner
Membership No.- 95681
For and on behalf of 
Sharma Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 2, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

JEEVANSATHI INTERNET SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 129

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an investment holding company.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND DIVIDEND

The Profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 was USD 31,237 (31 March 2012 – Loss: USD 7,233).

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year under review.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial position, financial 
performance, and cash flows of the Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

in the financial statements, and

business.

The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001.  They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Shareef Ramjan & Associates, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and will be automatically reappointed at the 
Annual Meeting.

Director

SECRETARY’S REPORT 

TO BE INCLUDED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED

UNDER SECTION 166(D) OF THE MAURITIAN COMPANIES ACT 2001

We confirm that, based on records and information made available to us by the directors and shareholder of the Company, the Company has 
filed with the Registrar of Companies, for the year ended 31 March 2013, all such returns as are required of the Company under the Mauritian 
Companies Act 2001.

Abax Corporate Services Ltd
SECRETARY

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT



 PARTICULARS  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 USD  USD 

Income
Other Income  39,999  - 

 39,999.00  - 

Expenses
Licence fees 1,750 1,500
Secretarial Fees 2,600 500
Accountancy Fees 700 750
Professional Fees 3,000  - 
Audit Fees  - 1,000
Directors fees  - 2,000
Domiciliation and compliance fees  - 1,000
Registration fees 512 313
Incidentals 50  50.00 
Bank Charges 150 120

8,762 7,233

31,237 (7,233)

Fair value loss on available for sale financial assets  - (78,483)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 31,237 (85,716)

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)
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PARTICULARS As at As at

Schedule March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

USD USD

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 1  -  - 

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 3,905 11,355
Receivables 3 375 375

Total assets 4,280 11,730

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Stated capital 4 1,112,001 1,112,001
Accumulated losses (1,114,346) (1,145,583)

Total Equity (2,345) (33,582)

Current liabilities
Amount due to ultimate holding company 5  - 39,999
Accruals 6  6,625 5,313

6,625 45,312

Total equity and liabilities 4,280 11,730

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION – 31 MARCH 2013



 Particulars  Stated Capital 
USD

 Retained Earning 
USD USD

 Total equity
USD

 As at 1, April 2012  1,112,001  (45,583)  (1,100,000)  (33,582)

 Profit for the year  -  31,237  -  31,237 

 Other Comprehensive income  -  -  -  - 

 Fair value loss on available for sale financial assets  -  -  -  - 

 As at 31 March 2013                                        USD  1,112,001  (14,346)  (1,100,000)  (2,345)

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED 
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PARTICULARS As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

USD USD

Profit/(Loss) before taxation  31,237  (7,233)
Increase in payables  1,312  (2,387)
Increase in Current Assets  -  - 
Increase in amount due to ultimate holding company  (39,999)  20,000 

Net cash generated from operations  (7,450)  10,380 

Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets  -  - 

Issue of ordinary shares  -  - 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (7,450)  10,380 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  11,355  975 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  3,905  11,355 

Ambarish Raghuvanshi Sanjeev Bikhchandani
(Director) (Director)

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED 
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Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Schedule 1  USD  USD 

Investment in Study Places Inc.  1,100,000  1,100,000 
Provision for Dimunition  (1,100,000)  (1,100,000)

 -  - 

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Schedule 2  USD  USD 

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with HSBC Bank  3,905  11,355 

 3,905  11,355 

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Schedule 3  USD  USD 

Receivables
Prepayments  375  375 

 375  375 

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Schedule 4  USD  USD 

Stated Capital

Issued & fully paid up
As at April 01, 2012  1,112,001  1,112,001 
Issued during the year  -  - 

As at March 31, 2013  1,112,001  1,112,001 

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Schedule 5  USD  USD 

Amount due to ultimate holding company
Payable to Info Edge India Ltd.  -  39,999 

 -  39,999 

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Schedule 6  USD  USD 

Payables

Accountancy Fees Payable  700  750 
Audit Fees Payable  -  1,000 
Professional Fees Payable  3,000  - 
Secretarial Fees Payable  2,600  500 
Director Fees payable  -  2,000 
Domiciliation & Certification Fees  -  1,000 
Provision for ROC Fees  325  63 

 6,625  5,313 

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Mauritius. The address of 
its registered office is c/o Abax Corporate Services Ltd, 6th Floor, Tower A, 1 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius. The Company holds a Category 
1 Global Business Licence and its main activity is to act as an investment holding company.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The 
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the fair valuation of available-for-sale financial 
assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.  It also requires 
the directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.  Estimates and judgements are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The directors have considered estimates and judgement as disclosed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) Amendments to existing standards effective during the year

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the year beginning 1 January 2011:

Standard Title
IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
IAS 24 Related party disclosures
IFRS 7 Financial instruments - Disclosures

The amendment to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ is part of the 2010 Annual Improvements and clarifies that an entity shall 
present an analysis of other comprehensive income for each component of equity, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the 
notes to the financial statements. The application of this amendment has no significant impact as the Company was already disclosing 
the analysis of other comprehensive income on its statement of changes in equity. 

The amendment to IAS 24 clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related party and removes the requirement for government-related 
entities to disclose details of all transactions with the government and other government-related entities. The Company is now required to 
disclose any transactions between its subsidiaries and its associates. Additionally, an entity that is controlled by an individual that is part 
of the key management personnel of another entity is now required to disclose transactions with that second entity. The application of 
this amendment does not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The amendments to IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments - Disclosures’ are part of the 2010 Annual Improvements and emphasises the 
interaction between quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the nature and extent of risks associated with financial instruments. 
The amendments have also removed the requirement to disclose the following:

The application of the above amendment simplified financial risk disclosures made by the Company.

Other amendments and interpretations to standards became mandatory for the year beginning 1 January 2011 but had no significant 
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the 
Company

Numerous new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been issued but are not yet effective. Below is the 
list of the standards and amendments to existing standards that are likely to be relevant to the Company. However, the directors are yet 
to assess the impact on the Company’s operations.

Standard/
Interpretation

Title
years beginning on/after

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
IFRS 9 Financial instruments part 1: Classification and measurement and part 2: Financial liabilities 

and De-recognition of financial instruments
1 January 2015

INFO EDGE (INDIA) MAURITIUS LIMITED 
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Standard/
Interpretation

Title
years beginning on/after

IAS 27 Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1 January 2013

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.  
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations is 
subject to interpretations and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.  However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises 
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.  Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the 
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilised.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured in United States dollars (USD), the currency that best reflects the economic 
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Company (“the functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any other categories.

They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose the investment within 12 months of the reporting date.

Available-for-sale investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value. 
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Fair values for unlisted equity securities are estimated using comparable recent arm’s length transactions, applicable price/book value, 
price/earnings or price/cash flow ratios or discounted cash flow analysis refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer. Fair 
value of quoted securities are derived from quoted bid prices. Equity securities for which fair values cannot be measured reliably are 
recognised at cost less impairment.

On disposal of an investment, the cumulative gain or loss that was recognised in equity plus the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position.

Revenue recognition

Dividend is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
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Expense recognition

Expenses are accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income  on an accrual basis.

Equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Impairment of available-for-sale investment

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and 
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit 
or loss.  Reversals of impairment losses in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit or loss. 
Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the debt instruments 
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

    
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company’s statement of financial position when the Company has become a 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to the initial recognition, they are measured as set out below:

Other receivables

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their nominal value.

Amount due to ultimate holding company

Amount due to ultimate holding company is recognised at proceeds received net of capital repayment.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material 
delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or 

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing 
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes 
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

Related parties are individuals and companies where the individual or company has the abilility, directly or indirectly, to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
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amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.  The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement 
of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.  If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using 
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.  Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparatives figures have been amended to conform with changes in presentation of the current year.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

Fair value of unquoted instruments

The Company holds available -for-sale financial asset that is not traded in an active market. The fair value of the investment in Study Places 
Inc is based on the value of its investment in Zaptive Internet Services Pvt Ltd (ZIPL’s) and ZISPL’s further holding in Educomp Solutions Ltd 
(‘ESL’) which is the primary asset after transfer of the ZISPL business and assets. ESL is a company listed on the National Stock Exchange. 

The directors use their judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions 
existing at each reporting date.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company’s activities expose it to the various types of risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk.

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential 
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are denominated in United States dollars.

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates.

The Company has no significant currency risk exposure as all its financial assets and liabilities are denominated in USD.

Interest rate risk

The Company has no significant exposure to interest-rate risk.

Price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk as it has classified its investment in Study Places Inc. (“SPI”) as available-for-sale 
financial assets which are valued on the basis of the market value of SPI’s investments in Educomp Solutions Ltd (“ESL”).

The Company monitors the market value of ESL and management assesses the risk of potential loss to the company of holding these 
shares on a long-term or short-term basis. These shares are readily marketable as ESL is listed on the National Stock Exchange of India.

The fair value at 31 March 2013 would have no effect (2012-higher / lower by Nil) if the price of ESL would have increased / decreased by 
5 % respectively. Accordingly, fair value reserve would have been higher / lower by an equivalent amount.

Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The 
Company’s main credit risk concentration is cash and cash equivalents. The Company manages credit risk by banking with reputable 
financial institution.

Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash reserves, through funding from its ultimate holding company. The table 
below summarises the maturity profile of its financial liabilities at 31 March 2012 based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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Particulars 2013
USD

On demand

2013
USD

Within 1 year

2012
USD

On demand

2012
USD

Within 1 year
Amount due to ultimate holding company - -   39,999 -   

Other payable -   6,625 -   5,313

At 31 March - 6,625 39,999 5,313

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to have sufficient funding to finance its investments and to continue 
as going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital 
management process is determined and managed at the ultimate holding company level.

Fair values 

The carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial assets, cash at bank, amount due to ultimate holding company and payables approximate 
their fair values.

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value by level of the 
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2);

The following table presents the Company’s assets that are measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013:

Particulars Level 1
USD

Level 2
USD

Level 3
USD

Total Balance
USD

Available-for-sale financial asset - - - -

- - - -

The following table presents the Company’s assets that are measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012:

Particulars    Level 1     Level 2    Level 3 Total Balance

         USD         USD         USD              USD
Available-for-sale financial asset - - - -

- - - -

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instrument for the year ended 31 March 2012:

Particulars 2013 2012

USD USD

At beginning of year Nil 78,483
Fair value loss Nil (78,483)

At end of year         - Nil

  
6 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars 2013
USD

2012
USD

At 01 April Nil 78,483
Fair value loss                     Nil        (78,483)

At 31 March USD - -

Available for sale financial assets represent 14.41% stake in Study Places Inc. (“SPI”), a company incorporated in the USA, which is 
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engaged in the provision of services related to Education and other related areas.

In 2010, Zaptive Internet Services Pvt Ltd (“ZISPL”), subsidiary of SPI has been allotted equity shares in Educomp Solutions Ltd (“ESL”) for 
an amount equivalent to USD 900,000 resulting from transfer of Study Places business including domain name and other assets in ZISPL. 
ESL is a diversified education Solutions Company listed on National Stock Exchange in India.

The fair value of the investment in SPI is based on the value of its investment in ZISPL and ZISPL’s further holding in ESL which is the 
primary asset after transfer of the ZISPL business and assets.

7 STATED CAPITAL

Particulars 2013 2013 2012 2012

Number USD Number USD

Ordinary shares of no par value
Issued and fully paid up 1,112,001 1,112,001 1,112,001 1,112,001

8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The nature, volume of transactions and balance involving the Company and its ultimate holding company are as follows:

Particulars 2013 2012

USD USD

Amount due to ultimate holding company:

Info Edge (India) Limited
At 01 April 39,999 19,999
Advances(written off)  received during the year (39,999)  20,000

At 31 March USD Nil 39,999

The amount due to parent company is interest free, unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars 2013 2012

USD USD

Key Management Personnel
Directors’ fees USD Nil 2,000

======= =======

9 PARENT AND ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The directors consider Info Edge (India) Limited, a company incorporated in India, which is listed on National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) 
and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), as the Company’s holding and ultimate holding company.
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Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the Annual Report and Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2013.

Financial Results

The Company made a loss of `9,338 Thousand in Financial year 2012-13 as compared to loss of `56,572 Thousand in Financial year 2011-12. 

Directors

There was no change in Directors during the year.

Auditors

M/s Price Waterhouse & Co., Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Personnel

The Company had no employee covered under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act 1956.

Conversation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The Directors have nothing to report on the aforesaid matters as the Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities. The Company has no 
foreign collaboration and has not exported or imported any goods or services. 

Directors Responsibility Statement

The observation of Auditors and notes on Accounts is self explanatory. Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 the directors 
placed on record the following statements:

- That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures;

- That the directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit or loss of the Company for that period;

- That the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate Accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

- That the directors had prepared the Annual Account on a going concern basis.

Your Company conveys their special gratitude to all stakeholders for their cooperation. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: Noida Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Dated: May 3, 2013 (Directors) (Directors)

ALLCHECKDEALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Allcheckdeals India Private Limited  (the “Company”), which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at March 31 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, which we have signed under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2. The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of ‘the Companies Act, 1956’ of India (the “Act”).  This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 

with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence, about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion
6. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the accompanying financial statements 

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

(a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
(b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
7. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003’, as amended by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) Order, 

2004’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the 
Order.

8. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination 
of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of 
sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number:050032S

Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Gurgaon Partner
May 3, 2013 Membership Number 58507

ALLCHECKDEALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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Referred to in paragraph [7] of the Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Allcheckdeals India Private Limited on the financial 
statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2013

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies 
have been noticed on such verification.  In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

  
(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been 

disposed off by the Company during the year.

ii.   The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.  Therefore, the provisions of 
Clause 4(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.  

iii. The Company has not granted/taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/ from companies, firms or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(iii)[(b),(c) and (d) /(f) and (g)]  of the said 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of fixed assets and for the sale of 
services.  Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any continuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system. 

v (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there have been no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered 
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made in pursuance of such 
contracts or arrangements exceeding the value of Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the 
rules framed there under.

vii. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

viii. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 
209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the 
Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of 
income-tax, sales-tax,  wealth-tax, service-tax, customs duty, and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute.

x. As the Company is registered for a period less than five years, the provisions of Clause 4(x) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xi. As the Company does not have any borrowings from any financial institution or bank nor has  it issued any debentures as at the 
balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 4(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

xiii. As the provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ societies are not applicable to the 
Company, the provisions of Clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv. In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.  Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company

xvi. The Company has not raised any term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xvii. The Company has not raised any loans on short term basis. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xvii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

ALLCHECKDEALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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xviii. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under 
Section 301 of the Act during the year.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix. The Company has not issued any debentures during the year and does not have any debentures outstanding as at the beginning of 
the year and at the year end. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

xx. The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xx) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

xxi. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across 
any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the Management.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 050032S

Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Gurgaon Partner
May 3, 2013 Membership Number 58507

ALLCHECKDEALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No  As at March 31, 2013  As at March 31, 2012 

 (`’ 000)  (`’ 000) 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital 3  70,475  70,475 
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4  (87,398)  (78,060)

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 5  79,879  69,374 
(b) Other current liabilities 6  32,814  10,999 
(c) Short-term provisions 7  3,738  2,950 

Total  99,508  75,738 

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
     (i) Tangible assets 8  3,388  3,146 
(b) Long term loans and advances 9  6,469  6,234 
(c) Other non-current assets 10  1,221  135 

(2) Current assets
(a) Trade receivables 11  35,206  45,043 
(b) Cash and Bank balances 12  15,631  1,818 
(c) Short-term loans and advances 9  37,593  19,333 
(d) Other current assets 10  -  27 

Total  99,508  75,738 
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Gurgaon
Date :May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Director Director

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars
Note No

 Year ended 
March 31, 2013 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2012 

 (`’ 000)  (`’ 000) 

I. Revenue from operations 13  141,771  107,450 
II. Other Income 14  199  765 

III. Total Revenue (I +II)  141,970  108,215 

IV. Expenses:
Employee Benefits Expense 15  70,078  63,643 
Finance Costs 16  46  116 
Depreciation 17  2,353  2,093 
Advertising and Promotion cost 18  30,006  26,243 
Administration and Other expenses 19  46,270  51,595 
Network, Internet and Other direct charges 20  2,555  2,922 

Total Expenses  151,308  146,612 

V. Loss before tax (III - IV) (9,338) (38,397)

VI. Tax expense:
        Deferred tax 21  - 18,175

VII. Loss for the year from continuing operations (V-VI) (9,338) (56,572)

VIII. Loss for the year (VII) (9,338) (56,572)

IX. Earnings per equity share: Nominal Value of Share `10/- (Previous Year 
`10/-) 26
       (1) Basic  (1.33)  (18.43)
       (2) Diluted (1.33)  (18.43)
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of 
even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Director Director

Place : Noida
Date : May 03, 2013

ALLCHECKDEALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

S.No. Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2013

(`’ 000)

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2012

 (`’ 000) 

A.

Net loss before tax (9,338) (38,397)

Adjustments for:

  Depreciation 2,353  2,093 

  Interest Income (188)  (367)

  Other operating revenues (111)  (1,344)

  Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 6,643  14,733 

  Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment (292)  410 

  TDS on revenue receipts (17,480)  (14,687)

(18,413) (37,559)

 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Sundry Debtors 3,194  (5,957)

 - (INCREASE)/DECREASE in Loans, Advances and Other Current Assets (433)  (1,400)

 - INCREASE/(DECREASE) in Current Liabilities and Provisions 33,513  (7,783)

Cash generated from operating activities 17,861  (52,699)

 - Taxes (Paid) / Received (Net of TDS) (554)  (410)

Net cash from operating activities 17,307  (53,109)

B.

Purchase of fixed assets (2,596)  (1,392)

Interest Received 188  367 

Net cash used in investing activities (2,408)  (1,025)

C.

Proceed from fresh issue of share capital (Net)  -  40,000 

 -  40,000 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 14,899  (14,134)

Opening Balance of Cash and cash equivalents (April 01, 2012/April 01, 2011) 1,953  16,087 

Closing  Balance of Cash and cash equivalents 16,852  1,953 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash in hand 67  70 

-in current acounts 14,892  1,748 

-in fixed deposits 1,893  135 

Total 16,852  1,953 

Notes :

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement, 
prescribed under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as notified by the Central Government vide its notification dated December 7,2006.

2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even 
date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number 58507

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Director Director

Date : May 03, 2013
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Allcheckdeals India Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on August 01, 2008 under the Companies Act, 1956 (the ‘Act’) and is 
engaged in the business of providing services in relation to property bookings placed with builders / real estate developers. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the 
accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and the other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

2.2 Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition along with related taxes, duties and incidental expenses related to these assets.

Profit/Loss on disposal of fixed assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.3 Depreciation

Fixed Assets are depreciated under Straight Line Method over the estimated useful life of the assets, which are as follows: 

Asset Estimated life (Years)
Plant & Machinery 5

Vehicle 4
Computers & Software 3

Office Equipment 3

Assets costing less than or equal to `5,000 were fully depreciated in the year of acquisition upto March 31, 2012. With effect from 
April 01, 2012 such assets are depreciated @ 100% pro-rata from date of acquisition.

The effective rates of depreciation based on the estimated useful life are above the minimum rate as prescribed by Schedule XIV of 
the Act.

2.4 Revenue Recognition

Commission income on property bookings placed with builders/developers is accrued once the related services have been rendered 
by the Company.

The income is shown net of service tax and is not recognized in instances where there is uncertainty with regard to ultimate 
collection. In such cases income is recognized on reasonable certainty of collection.

The Company has Defined Contribution plan for post employment benefits namely Provident Fund which is recognized by the income 
tax authorities. These funds are administered through the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Company’s contributions 
thereto are charged to revenue every year. The Company’s contribution to state plans namely Employee State Insurance Fund is 
charged to revenue every year.

The Company has Defined Benefit plans namely leave encashment, compensated absence and gratuity for employees, the liability 
for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year. The Gratuity Fund is recognized by the income 
tax authorities and is administered through Life Insurance Corporation of India under its Group Gratuity Scheme. 

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense immediately.

Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuations are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or 
expense.

2.6 Leased Assets

i) Assets acquired on lease where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of minimum lease 
payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease amount paid is allocated between the liability and the 
interest cost, so as to maintain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

ALLCHECKDEALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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ii) Leases of assets under which significant risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

2.7 Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax reflects the effect of temporary timing differences between 
the assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for current tax purposes. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable/virtual certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. 

2.8 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit after tax and include the post tax effect of any 
extra ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year.

Stock options granted to the employees who accepted the grant under the Company’s Stock Option Plan are accounted in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share based payment issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The 
Company follows the intrinsic value method and accordingly, the excess, if any, of the fair value of the underlying equity shares as of 
the date of the grant of the option over the exercise price of the option, is recognized as employee compensation cost and amortized 
on straight line basis over the vesting period.

2.10 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gains/Loss arising out of 
fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognized in the statement of Profit and 
Loss. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and the overall net 
gain/loss is adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.11 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 
obligation cannot be made.

2.12 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the Management 
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2013

  (`’000)

 As at 
March 31, 2012

  (`’000)

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
8,000 Thousand Equity Shares of `10/- each (Previous year - 8,000 Thousand Equity Shares of 
`10/- each)  80,000  80,000 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
7,047,500 Equity shares of `10/- each fully paid up *  70,475  70,475 
(Previous Year - 7,047,500 Equity shares of `10/- each)
(* 7,009,999 equity shares (Previous Year 7,009,999 shares) of `10/- each are held by Info 
Edge (India) Limited, the holding Company and it’s nominee)

 70,475  70,475 
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a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars  As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012

 No of Shares   (`’000)  No of Shares   (`’000)

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the period  7,047,500  70,475  3,047,500  30,475 
Add: Issued during the period  -  -  4,000,000  40,000 

Outstanding at the end of the period  7,047,500  70,475  7,047,500  70,475 

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars FY 2012-13  FY 2011-12 

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid
Info Edge (India) Limited  7,009,999 99.47%  7,009,999 99.47%

 7,009,999 99.47%  7,009,999 99.47%

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Opening Balance (78,060) (21,488)
Add: Net loss after tax transferred from Statement 
of Profit and Loss (9,338) (87,398) (56,572) (78,060)

(87,398) (78,060)

5. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

 (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium 
enterprises  -  -  -  - 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro, small and medium enterprises  -  -  79,879  69,374 

 -  -  79,879  69,374 

Based on information available with The Company, there are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined in Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2013.
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6. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Amount payable to Holding Company  28,588  2,287 
Book Overdraft  -  186 

Others
- Service Tax Payable  2,098  4,028 
- TDS Payable  1,820  4,171 
- Others  308  327 

 32,814  10,999 

7. PROVISIONS

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Provision for Compensated Absence  -  -  896  991 
Provision for Gratuity  -  -  170  367 

Other Provisions
Accrued Bonus  -  -  2,672  1,590 

 -  -  3,738  2,948 

8. FIXED ASSETS (`’ 000)

Description GROSS BLOCK (AT COST)  DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at
April

1,
2012

Additions
during

the year

Deletions
during

the year

As at
March

31,
2013

Up to
April

1,
2012

 Depreciation/
Amortisation
 for the year 

Accumulated
Depreciation  
 on Deletions 

Up to
March

31,
2013

As at
March

31,
2013

As at
March

31,
2012

Tangible Assets

Own Assets

Computers and Software  4,942  2,490  -  7,432  2,319  1,875  -  4,194  3,238  2,623 

Office Equipment  1,825  106  -  1,931  1,326  472  -  1,798  132  499 

Plant & Machinary  29  -  -  29  5  6  -  11  18  24 

Total  6,796  2,596  -  9,392  3,650  2,353  -  6,003  3,388  3,146 

Previous Year  5,404  1,392  -  6,796  1,557  2,093  -  3,650  3,146 
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9. LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(Unsecured, considered good)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Security Deposits  5,465  5,515  -  - 

Others
 - Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 
to be received

 1,004  719  1,186  1,552 

 - Advance recoverable from ESOP Trust  -  -  399  399 
 - Balance with Service Tax Authorities  -  -  774  184 

 - Advance Tax  -  -  53,492  35,456 
 - Less: Provision for Tax  -  - (18,259)  (18,259)

 - Advance Tax - Fringe Benefits  -  -  6  6 
 - Less: Provision for Tax - Fringe Benefits  -  -  (5)  (5)

 6,469  6,234  37,593  19,333 

10. OTHER NON CURRENT/ CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(Unsecured Considered Good)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Non Current portion of Fixed Deposits transferred 
from Cash & Bank Balances  1,221  135  -  - 
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits  -  -  -  27 

 1,221  135  -  27 

11. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 
from the date they are due for payment
 - Unsecured, considered good  -  -  230  4,069 
 - Doubtful  -  -  40,874  47,955 

Provision for doubtful receivables  -  -  (40,874) (47,955)

Total (A)  -  -  230  4,069 

Other Receivables
 - Unsecured, considered good  -  -  34,976  40,974 

Total (B)  -  -  34,976  40,974 

Grand Total (A) + (B)  -  -  35,206  45,043 
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12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand  -  -  67  70 

Bank Balances:
   -in Current Account  14,892 
   -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity 
of less than 3 months  -  -  503  1,748 
   -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity 
for more than 12 months 1,221  135  -  - 
    Non Current portion transferred to non current 
assets (1,221) (135)  -  - 

Balances in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original 
maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 
months  -  -  169  - 

Total (A) + (B)  -  -  15,631  1,818 

13. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Sale of Services  141,660  106,106 
Other Operating Revenues  111  1,344 

 141,771  107,450 

14. OTHER INCOME

Particulars Long Term Short Term

 Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)   (`’000)

Interest Received/Receivable on Fixed Deposits with Banks  104  10  84  357 
Miscellaneous Income  -  -  11  398 

 104  10  95  755 
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  50,741  46,282 
Contributions to Provident and other funds  2,011  2,297 
Sales Incentives and Commissions  11,910  9,281 
Staff Welfare and Benefits  4,395  4,897 
Other Employee Expenses  1,021  886 

 70,078  63,643 

16. FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Bank Charges & Others  46  116 

 46  116 

17. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Depreciation of Tangible Assets  2,353  2,093 

 2,353  2,093 

18. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COST

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Advertisement Expenses  28,487  25,189 
Promotion & Marketing Expenses  1,519  1,054 

 30,006  26,243 
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19. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Electricity and Water  2,432  1,758 
Rent  9,560  8,564 
Repairs and Maintenance (Building)  995  639 
Repairs and Maintenance (Machinery)  424  676 
Legal and Professional Charges  672  559 
Rates & Taxes  1  5 
Insurance  9  2 
Communication expenses  3,263  3,143 
Travel & Conveyance  5,615  5,197 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  6,643  14,733 
Miscellaneous expenses  5,774  5,782 
Infrastructure & Business Support Expenses  10,882  10,537 

 46,270  51,595 

20. NETWORK, INTERNET AND OTHER DIRECT CHARGES

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Internet and Server Charges  552  412 
Others  2,003  2,510 

 2,555  2,922 

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/ (LIABILITY)

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)
- Opening Balance  -  18,175 
- Adjustment for the current year  -  (18,175)

 -  - 

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

  (`’000)   (`’000)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)
Provision for Leave Encashment  -  - 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  -  - 
Depreciation  -  - 
Others  -  - 

 -  - 
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22. Operating Leases where The Company is a lessee:

The Company has entered into lease transaction mainly for leasing of office premise for a period of 5 to 9 years. The terms of lease 
include terms of renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation. The operating lease payments recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss amount to `9,560 Thousand (Previous Period `8,564 Thousand) included in Note 19 – Administration and 
Other Expenses.

23. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2013

  (`’000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2012

  (`’000)

Domain Registration charges  25  23 

Total  25  23 

24. Earnings in Foreign Exchange 

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2013

  (`’000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2012

  (`’000)

Export of Services  Nil  Nil 

Total  -  - 

25. Auditor’s Remuneration

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2013

  (`’000)

Year Ended
March 31, 2012

  (`’000)

As Auditors  250  200 
As Tax Auditors  50  50 
Out of Pocket Expenses & Service Tax  20  66 

Total  320  316 

26. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars Year Ended
March 31, 2013

Year Ended
March 31, 2012

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (`’ 000) (9,338) (56,572)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)  7,047,500 3,069,358
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of `10 each (`)  (1.33) (18.43)
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27 (1) Related Party Disclosures

Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) (“accounting standards”) and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2013:

Holding Company
Info Edge (India) Limited (IEIL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Hitesh Oberoi
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Fellow Subsidiaries
Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited ( JISPL)
Naukri Internet Services Private Limited (NISPL)
Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited (IEIML)
Applect Learning Systems Pvt. Ltd. (ALSPL) 
Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited (ZMPL))
Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’ 000)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding Company Total
1 Advance received for business purposes (net):

IEIL `14,074  14,074  14,074 
2 Service Rendered(inclusive of service tax)

IEIL `3,333  3,333 3,333
3 Receipt of Service (inclusive of service tax)

IEIL `12,227 12,227  12,227 
Amount due from Allcheckdeals Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `398 Thousand.

C)  Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2013 Amount (`’ 000)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding Company Total

Credit balances 
1 Outstanding Payable  28,588  28,588 

27 (2) Related Party Disclosures

Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) (“accounting standards”) and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2012:

Holding Company
Info Edge (India) Limited (IEIL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Sanjeev Bikhchandani
Hitesh Oberoi
Ambarish Raghuvanshi

Fellow Subsidiaries
Jeevansathi Internet Services Private Limited ( JISPL)
Naukri Internet Services Private Limited (NISPL)
Info Edge (India) Mauritius Limited (IEIML)
Info Edge USA Inc.
Etechaces Marketing & Consulting Pvt. Ltd. (EMCPL)
Applect Learning Systems Pvt. Ltd. (ALSPL) 
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B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2012 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’ 000)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding Company Total
1 Advance received for business purposes (net):

IEIL `11,368  11,368  11,368 
2 Receipt of Service (inclusive of service tax)

IEIL `11,622 11,622  11,622 
3 Issue of Equity Shares

IEIL `40,000 40,000  40,000 
Amount due from Allcheckdeals Employee Stock Option Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `399 Thousand (Previous Year `399
Thousand).

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2012 Amount (`’ 000)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding Company Total

Credit balances 
1 Outstanding Payable  2,287  2,287 

1) The Company has set up a trust to administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been granted to employees. Under this 
scheme the employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in the grant. The options 
granted till March 31st 2013 have a vesting period of maximum of 3 years from the date of grant.

- Number of options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year:-

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Number Weighted Average 
Price (`)

Options outstanding at beginning of year  15,100  10 15,100 10

Add:
Options granted  -  -  -  - 

Less:
Options exercised  -  -  -  - 
Options outstanding  at the end of year 15,100  10 15,100 10
Option exercisable at the end of year  -  -  -  - 

In accordance with the above mentioned ESOP Scheme, `NIL (Previous Year `NIL) has been charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in relation to the options vested during the year ended March 31, 2013 as Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation.

2) No options have vested during the current year ended March 31, 2013. (NIL during Previous Year).

29. No disclosure is required under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting specified in Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 
as the Company is operating in single business/ geographical segment of earning commission income on property bookings.

30. The aggregate managerial remuneration under section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the Directors including Managing Director is 
NIL (NIL during Previous Year): 

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

    a) Provident Fund

  During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Amount (`’000)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2013

Year ended  
March 31, 2012

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund *  1,677  1,643 
*Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 15)
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B. State Plans

a) Employer’s Contribution to Employee State Insurance

  During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Amount (`’000)

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended  March 31, 2012
Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance *  158 283
*Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 15)

a) Contribution to Gratuity Funds – Life Insurance Corporation of India, Group Gratuity Scheme

 b) Leave Encashment/ Compensated Absences for Employees

Particulars Leave Encashment / Compensated Absences

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended  March 31, 2012
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 15% in first  year, 15% in first 2 years,

10% in next 5 years, 10% in next 5 years,
& 7% thereafter & 7% thereafter

Particulars Employee’s Gratuity Fund

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended  March 31, 2012
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 15% in first  year, 15% in first 2 years,

10% in next 5 years, 10% in next 5 years,
& 7% thereafter & 7% thereafter

Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.50% 7.50%
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees (years) 10.09 10.59

`’000 `’000

(A) Changes in the Present Value of  Obligation Employee’s Gratuity Fund Employee’s Gratuity Fund

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended March 31, 2012

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the year  1,364  933 
Interest Cost  172 123
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Current Service Cost  746 559
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Settlement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
Benefits paid Nil Nil
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (786) (251)

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 1,496 1,364

(B) Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets Employee’s Gratuity Fund Employee’s Gratuity Fund

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended March 31, 2012

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 996  768 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 107  65 
Actuarial Gains and (Losses) (144) (1)
Contributions 367  164 
Benefits Paid Nil Nil

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 1,326  996 

`’000 `’000

and the Fair value of Assets
Employee’s Gratuity Fund Employee’s Gratuity Fund

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended March 31, 2012
Present Value of funded Obligation at the end of the year 1,496 1,364
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year  1,326  996 

Funded Status
Present Value of unfunded Obligation at the end of the year Nil Nil
Unrecognized Actuarial (gains) / losses Nil Nil

170 368
*included in Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 7)
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`’000 `’000

Employee’s Gratuity Fund Employee’s Gratuity Fund

Year ended March 31, 2013 Year ended March 31, 2012

Current Service Cost 746 560
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Interest Cost 172 123
Expected Return on Plan Assets (107) (65)
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil

Settlement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year (641) (250)

 170 368
#Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 15)

In respect of leave encashment/compensated absence the present value of obligation as at March 31, 2013 is `896 Thousand*
(Previous Year 991 Thousand). The expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is `840 Thousand** (Previous Year `879
Thousand)

*included in Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 7)

**Included in Staff Welfare and Benefits under Employee Benefits Expense (Refer Note 15)

(E) Amounts recognised in current year and 
previous four years

 As at March 
31, 2013 

 As at March 
31, 2012 

 As at March 
31, 2011 

 As at March 
31, 2010 

 As at March 
31, 2009 

Gratuity
Defined Benefit Obligation 1,496 1,364 932  714  714 
Plan Asset 1,326 996 768  -  - 
Surplus 170 368 164  714  714 
Experience adjustments in plan liabilities Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Experience adjustments in plan assets Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(F) Expected Contribution to the fund in the next year  Year ended March 31, 2013  Year ended March 31, 2012 

 Amount (`Mn)  Amount (`Mn)

Gratuity 170 367

32. The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance along with the 
financial position of the Company and its projected cash flows have been reviewed by the Board of Directors and they have a reasonable 
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, although the net 
worth has eroded at the year-end. The Company is also assured of financial and operational support by its parent company.Basis all of the 
above, The Company has continued to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements. 

33. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged to confirm to the current period classification.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number  58507

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hitesh Oberoi Ambarish Raghuvanshi
Director Director

Place: Noida
Date : May 03, 2013
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Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Eleventh Annual Report on the operations of the Company together with audited Profit and Loss 
Account for the year ending 31st March, 2013 and the Balance Sheet as on that date.

Financial Results
(Amount in `000)

Particulars For the Year Ended 31st March 13 For the Year Ended 31st March 12
Revenue (Including Other Income) 107,075 51,288
Profit & Loss (Before Depreciation) (205,494) (44,576)
Depreciation 11,773 4,503
Profit & Loss (After Depreciation) (217,267) (49,079)
Provision for Tax (Including deferred Tax)
Profit & Loss carried to balance sheet (217,267) (49,079)

Dividend

The Company did not declare any dividend for strengthening the financial position of the Company except preferential dividend of `205/- on 
0.1% OCCRPS 15,000 preference shares.

Directors

There is no change in the Board of Directors of the Company during the year.

Auditors Report

Observations made by the Auditors in their Report are self explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further comments under section 217(3) 
of the Companies Act, 1956.

Statutory Auditors

M/s Price Waterhouse & Co., Chartered Accountants are the retiring auditors and are eligible to be re-appointed as Statutory Auditors to hold 
their office from the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. They also 
have confirmed that if they would be appointed as statutory auditors of the Company, their appointment would be in accordance with Section 
224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956. The Board recommends their re-appointment. 

Directors Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, your directors declare as follows:

(i) That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) That the Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate Accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(iv) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of your Company is getting salary in excess of the limits prescribed under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 
read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975. 

The Information required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988

Particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption are NIL
Foreign Earning: NIL

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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Foreign Outgo

Details of the foreign Outgo during the financial Year 2012-13

Particulars Amount (in `000 )

Expense
    Server Hire Charges 11,390
    Others Expense 323

TOTAL (A) 11,713

Your board places on record its gratitude to Company’s valued Customers, Dealers, Central and State Government and Bankers for their 
continued support and confidence in the Company.

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 3, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board

Pavan Chauhan
Chairman

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Applect Learning Systems Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Applect Learning Systems Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise 

the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, which we have signed under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2. The Company’s Management  is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of ‘the Companies Act, 1956’ of India (the “Act”).  This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence, about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the 
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion
6. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the accompanying financial statements 

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:
(a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
(b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
7. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003’, as amended by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) Order, 

2004’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

8. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination 
of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

(d)  In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 050032S

Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Gurgaon Partner
May 03, 2013       Membership Number 58507
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Referred to in paragraph 7 of the Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Applect Learning Systems Private Limited on the financial 
statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2013 

i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies 
have been noticed on such verification.  In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed 
off by the Company during the year.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory at year end.  Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 4(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.  

iii. (a) The Company has not granted/taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(iii)[(b),(c) and (d) /(f) and (g)]  of the said Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the 
sale of services.  Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any continuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system. 

v. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there have been no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in 
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made in pursuance of such 
contracts or arrangements exceeding the value of Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules 
framed there under.

vii. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

viii. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 
209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of income tax, though there has been a slight delay 
in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance and 
service tax, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of 
income-tax, sales-tax,  wealth-tax, service-tax, customs duty, and excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute.

x. The accumulated losses of the Company exceed fifty percent of its net worth as at March 31, 2013 and it has incurred cash losses 
in the financial year ended on that date and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xi. As the Company does not have any borrowings from any financial institution or bank nor has  it issued any debentures as at the 
balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 4(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 4(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

xiii. As the provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ societies are not applicable to the Company, 
the provisions of Clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiv. In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.  Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.          In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans 
taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company

xvi. The Company has not raised any term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.
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xvii. The Company has not raised any loans on short term basis. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xvii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

xviii. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under 
Section 301 of the Act during the year.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix. The Company has not issued any debentures during the year and does not have any debentures outstanding as at the beginning of 
the year and at the year end. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

xx. The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xx) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

xxi. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any 
instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case 
by the Management.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 050032S

Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta 
Gurgaon Partner
May 03, 2013       Membership Number  58507
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No  Figures as at 
March 31, 2013 

 Figures as at 
March 31, 2012 

 (`’ 000)  (`‘000) 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital 3 356 281
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 265,529 173,531

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term provisions 5 2,273 901

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 6 10,841 11,944
(b) Other current liabilities 7 104,341 34,221
(c) Short-term provisions 5 923 301

Total 384,263 221,179

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
     (i) Tangible assets 8 30,841 10,626
     (ii) Intangible assets 8 3,205 2,317
(b) Long term loans and advances 9 16,724 4,555
(c) Other non-current assets 10 279 21,386

(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 -    189
(b) Cash and bank balances 12 319,433 170,221
(c) Short-term loans and advances 9 10,938 6,565
(d) Other current assets 10 2,843 5,320

Total 384,263 221,179
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner

Membership Number: 58507
Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pavan Chauhan Ritesh Hemrajani
Director Director

Place : Delhi
Date : May 03, 2013

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars Note No  Year ended 
March 31, 2013 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2012 

 (`’000)  (`’000) 

I. Revenue from operations 13 98,228 40,699
II. Other Income 14 8,847 10,589

III. Total Revenue (I +II) 107,075 51,288

IV. Expenses:
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 15 189 (189)
Employee Benefits Expense 16 143,867 46,278
Finance Costs 17 140 1,088
Depreciation and Amortisation 18 11,773 4,503
Advertising and Promotion cost 19 95,256 20,999
Administration and Other expenses 20 55,265 21,203
Network, Internet and Other direct charges 21 17,852 6,485

Total Expenses 324,342 100,367

V. Loss before tax (III - IV) (217,267) (49,079)

VI. Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax  -  - 
 (2) Deferred tax  -  - 

VII. Loss for the year from continuing operations (V-VI) (217,267) (49,079)

VIII. Loss for the year (VII) (217,267) (49,079)

IX. Earnings per equity share: Nominal Value of Share `10/- (Previous Year `10/-) 27

       (1) Basic  (8,007)  (2,035)
       (2) Diluted  (8,007)  (2,035)
Significant Accounting Policies 2

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of 
even date. 

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner

Membership Number: 58507
Place : Gurgaon
Date :  May 03, 2013

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pavan Chauhan Ritesh Hemrajani
Director Director

Place : Delhi
Date :  May 03, 2013
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

 S. No.  PARTICULARS  For the Year Ended
31st March 2013   

 For the Year Ended
31st March 2012  

 (`‘000)  (`‘000)

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Loss before tax (217,267) (49,079)

Adjustments for:
Interest Income (8,846) (10,589)
Depreciation and Amortisation 11,773 4,503
Preference Dividend / Interest on debentures -   781
(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets (1) -   
Employee Stock Option Scheme Compensation Expense 9,311 38

(205,030) (54,346)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances and Other Current Assets (3,992) (5,022)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables and other liabilities 71,015 28,733

Cash generated from operations (138,007) (30,635)
Direct Taxes  (Paid) / Received (934) (1,125)

Net Cash used in Operating Activities (138,941) (31,760)

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (32,883) (11,821)
Proceed from Sale of Fixed Assets 8  - 
Interest received 12,210 5,532

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (20,665) (6,289)

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Proceeds including securities premium from issue of equity shares 300,025 254,592
Redemption/(Conversion in to equity shares) of debentures  - (50,000)
Preference Dividend  -  - 
Interest on debentures  - (781)
Loan given to Applect ESOP trust (11,427) (16)

Net Cash from Financing Activities 288,598 203,795

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 128,992 165,746

Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents (April 01, 2012 / April 01, 2011) 190,720 24,974

Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 319,712 190,720

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

-in current acounts 19,433 37,576
-in fixed deposits 300,279 153,144

Total 319,712 190,720

Notes:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting  Standard(AS) - 3 on Cash Flow 
Statements, prescribed under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as notified by the Central Government vide its notification 
dated December 7, 2006. 
2. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number:050032S
Chartered Accountants 

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number: 58507

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pavan Chauhan Ritesh Hemrajani
Director Director

Place :- Delhi
Date : May 03, 2013

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Applect Learning Systems Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on April 04, 2001 under the Companies Act, 1956 (the ‘Act’) 
and is engaged in the business of providing online coaching services. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the 
historical cost convention on accrual basis.These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the 
accounting standards notified under Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and the other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

2.2 Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition along with related taxes, duties and incidental expenses related to these assets.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.

Profit/Loss on disposal of fixed assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

2.3 Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated under written down value method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period, which corresponds with the useful lives of the related assets.

Assets costing less than or equal to `5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

2.4 Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost method. Net realisable 
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

2.5 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gains/Loss arising out of 
fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the exchange rate prevailing at the year end and the overall net 
gain/loss is adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.6 Revenue Recognition

The Company primarily earns revenue from online coaching services.

Revenue from online coaching is received in the form of subscription fee which is recognized over the period that coaching is 
imparted.

Revenue is shown net of service tax and is not recognised in instances where there is uncertainty with regard to ultimate collection. 
In such cases revenue is recognised on reasonable certainty of collection.

The Company has Defined Contribution plan for post employment benefits namely Provident Fund which is recognized by the Income 
tax authorities. These funds are administered through the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the Company’s contributions 
thereto are charged to revenue every year. The Company`s contribution to state plan namely Employee state insurance fund is 
charged to revenue every year.

The Company has Defined Benefit plans namely leave encashment, compensated absence and gratuity for employees, the liability 
for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year. 

Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuations are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or 
expense.

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense immediately.

2.8 Leased Assets

a) Assets acquired on lease where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of minimum lease 
payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease amount paid is allocated between the liability and the 
interest cost, so as to maintain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

b) Leases of assets under which significant risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
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2.9 Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax reflects the effect of temporary timing differences between 
the assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amounts that are recognized for current tax purposes. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable/virtual certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. 

2.10 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit after tax and include the post tax effect of any 
extra ordinary items. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year.

Stock options granted to the employees who accepted the grant under the Company’s Stock Option Plan are accounted in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share based payments issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
The Company follows the intrinsic value method and accordingly, the excess, if any, of the fair value of the underlying equity shares 
as of the date of the grant of the option over the exercise price of the option, is recognized as employee compensation cost and 
amortized on straight line basis over the vesting period.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the 
obligation cannot be made.

2.13 Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on the time basis determined by the amount outstanding including the tax credits and the rate 
applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectibility exists.

2.14 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India requires the Management 
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.  The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`’000)  (`’000) 

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
247,000 Equity Shares of `10/- Each (Previous Year 247,000 Equity shares of `10 each)

2,470 2,470
30,000 Preference Shares of  `1/- Each (Previous Year 30,000 Preference shares of `1 each) 30 30

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
35,638 Equity Shares of `10/- Each fully paid up 356 266
(Previous Year 26,600 Equity shares of `10 Each fully paid up)

Nil 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS)  - 15

(Previous Year 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 
(OCCRPS) 15,000 of `1/- Each)

356 281

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 171

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars  As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012

 No of Shares  (`’000)  No of Shares  (`’000) 

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period  26,600 266  19,655 197
Add: Issued during the period  9,038 90  6,945 69

Outstanding at the end of the period  35,638 356  26,600 266

Particulars  As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012

 No of Shares  (`’000)  No of Shares  (`’000) 

Preference Shares
At the beginning of the period  15,000 15  -  - 
During the period

Add: Issued  -  -  15,000 15
Less: Converted/Redeemed  (15,000) (15)  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the period  -  -  15,000 15

b. (1) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in Annual General Meeting.

b. (2) Terms/ Rights attached to preference shares

The company has only one class of 0.1% OCCRPS having a par value of `1 per share, each holder of preference shares is entitled 
to one vote per share only if any proposed resolution directly affects any rights or the interest of the holder including resolution 
for winding up or reduction of share capital.Each OCCRPS is entitled to a preferential dividend 0.1% per annum payable in Indian 
Rupees.

: The OCCRPS shall rank senior to all classes of Shares currently existing or established hereafter, with respect to 
distributions and shall rank pari passu with the Ordinary Shares in all other respects including voting rights and adjustments for 
any stock splits,, bonuses, sub-division, recapitalization, issuance of bonus shares, non-cash dividends/ distributions to holders of 
Shares, reclassification, conversion, buyback, cancellation, consolidation or merger.

Dividends:

(i) Each OCCRPS is entitled to a.preferential dividend rate of 0.1% (Zero point one per cent.) per annum (the “Preferential Dividend”). 
The Preferential Dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year,whether or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be 
paid in full (together with dividends accrued from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution.

ii) Dividends due and payable on any other Shares of the Company will be subordinate to any dividend payable on the OCCRPS. 
Under no circumstances shall any amounts be paid or dividends declared on any Shares other than the OCCRPS, until all 
dividends and other amounts due and owing on the OCCRPS shall have been paid in full.

(iii) In addition, the OCCRPS shall fully participate with the Ordinary Shares in all dividends declared by the Company

Particulars FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12 FY 2010-11 FY 2009-10 FY 2008-09
Equity Shares allotted as fully paid bonus 
shares by capitalisation of securities 
premium

 -  -  -  -  - 

Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up 
pursuant to contracts for consideration 
other than cash

 -  -  -  -  - 

Equity Shares bought back by the 
company

 -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  - 
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d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid
Info Edge (India) Ltd.  19,300 54.16%  13,210 49.66%
ESOP - Applect  7,479 20.99%  4,203 15.80%
Ritesh Hemrajani  2,509 7.04%  3,040 11.43%
Pavan Chauhan  5,987 16.80%  5,987 22.51%

 35,275 98.98%  26,440 99.40%

Particulars FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

No of Shares % Holding No of Shares % Holding

0.1% OCCRPS of `1 each Fully Paid up
Info Edge (India) Ltd.  -  -  15,000 100.00%

 -  -  15,000 100.00%

e. Details of share held by Holding Company

 Name of Holding company FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

 No. of Shares  In %  No. of Shares  In % 

Equity Shares Of `10 each
 Info Edge (India) Ltd.  19,300 54.16%  13,210 49.66%

 19,300 54.16%  13,210 49.66%

 Name of Holding company FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

 No. of Shares  In %  No. of Shares  In % 

0.1% OCCRPS of `1 each Fully Paid up
 Info Edge (India) Ltd.  -  -  15,000 100.00%

 -  -  15,000 100.00%

f) Shares alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

i) 2,087 Equity shares of `10 each (Face Value) at 71,863.50 each (Security Premium) were issued on 19-Feb-2013 to share holders 
in settlement of their dues (`150,000,000/- 0.1% OCCRPS 15,000 Preference Shares )

[Previous Year 3,372 Equity shares of `10 each (Face Value) at `15,737.16 each (Security Premium) were issued on 4-Jul-2011 to 
debenture holders in settlement of their dues (`50,000,000/- Convertible debenture and `3,099,424 /-Interest on debenture due, 
till date of conversion of debentures in to equity shares.)]

g). Terms of Securities convertible into Equity Shares

The 0.1% OCCRPS may be converted into Ordinary Shares at the option of the holder of the OCCRPS on the fourth anniversary of 
the date of issuance and allotment of the 0.1% OCCRPS The number of Ordinary Shares issuable pursuant to the conversion of any 
0.1% OCCRPS (“Conversion Ratio”) shall be based on the following formula:

[Subscription Amount paid for the 0.1% OCCRPS being converted / (Subscription Amount paid for the 0.1% OCCRPS being converted 
+ Company Valuation)]
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4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars  As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012
 (`’000)  (`’000)  (`’000)  (`’000) 

Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 320,171 65,664
Add : Security premium credited on share issue 299,955 620,126 254,507 320,171

Opening Balance 115 77
Add: Transfer during the year 9,265 9,380 38 115

Opening Balance  -  - 
Add: Transfer during the year 45 45  -  - 

Opening Balance (146,755) (97,676)
Add: Net Loss after tax transferred from Statement 
of Profit and Loss

(217,267) (364,022) (49,079) (146,755)

265,529 173,531

5. PROVISIONS

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`’000)  (`’000)  (`’000)  (`’000) 

Provision for Compensated Absence 367 87 51 4
Provision for Gratuity 1,906 814 72 10

Other Provisions
Accrued Bonus  -  - 800 287

2,273 901 923 301

6. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`’000)  (`’000)  (`’000)  (`’000) 

Trade Payables
- total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium 
enterprises

 -  -  -  - 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro, small and medium enterprises

 -  - 10,841 11,944

 -  - 10,841 11,944
1. Based on information available with the Company, there are no dues to micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined in Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on March 31, 2013.

7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
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Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`’000)  (`’000) 

Income received in advance (Deferred Sales Revenue) 82,785 26,030
Unpaid Application Money received by the company for allotment of securities and due for 
refund *

-   -   

Unpaid dividend on 0.1% OCCRPS* -   -   

Others
Salary & Reimbursements 12,420 4,963
Expenses Payable 7,097 1,769
TDS Payable 1,563 1,106
Service Tax Payable 37 173
EPF - Employee Contribution 357 156
ESIC - Employee Contribution 82 24

104,341 34,221
* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the company

8. FIXED ASSETS Amount (in `’000)

Particulars  GROSS BLOCK  DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION  NET BLOCK 

As at
April 1, 

2012

Additions
during

the year

Deletions/
Write off 

during the 
year

As at
March

31,
2013

Up to  
April 1, 

2012

Depreciation/
Amortisation

for the year

Accumulated
Depreciation
on Deletions

Up to
March

31,
2013

As at
 March 

31,
2013

As at 
March

31,
2012

Tangible Assets

Own Assets
 Leasehold improvement 5,203 12,339  - 17,542 2,318 1,290  - 3,608 13,934 2,885

 Plant & Machinery 1,087 1,653  - 2,740 353 263  - 616 2,124 735

 Furniture and Fixtures 1,169 1,195  - 2,364 1,101 1,111  - 2,212 152 68

 Office Equipment 2,144 4,368  - 6,512 939 1,530  - 2,469 4,043 1,203

 Computers 10,032 10,900 26 20,906 4,298 6,039 19 10,318 10,588 5,734

19,635 30,455 26 50,064 9,009 10,233 19 19,223 30,841 10,625

Intangible Assets

Own Assets (Acquired)
 Computer Software 3,856 2,428  - 6,284 1,539 1,540  - 3,079 3,205 2,317

3,856 2,428  - 6,284 1,539 1,540  - 3,079 3,205 2,317

Total 23,491 32,883 26 56,348 10,548 11,773 19 22,302 34,046 12,942

Previous Year 11,670 11,821  - 23,491 6,045 4,503  - 10,548 12,943 5,625
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9. LOANS & ADVANCES

Particulars Long-Term Short-Term

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(Unsecured, considered good)  (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Security Deposits 5,091 4,349  -  - 

Others
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 
to be received

 -  - 5,156 2,840

Advance recoverable from ESOP Trust 11,633 206  -  - 
Balance with Service Tax Authorities  -  - 2,071 896
Staff Advance  -  -  - 52

Advance Tax  -  - 5,099 4,165
Less:- Provision for Income Tax  -  - (1,394) (1,394)

Advance Tax - Fringe Benefits  -  - 6 6

16,724 4,555 10,938 6,565

10. OTHER NON CURRENT/ CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(Unsecured Considered Good)  (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Non Current portion of Fixed Deposits transferred 
from Cash & Bank Balances

279 20,499  -  - 

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits -   887 2,843 5,320

279 21,386 2,843 5,320

11. INVENTORIES

Particulars  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Stock In Trade (At Cost) Books  - 189

(Current Year Nil Previous Year 590 books @ 320/-)

 - 189
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12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Particulars Non-Current Current

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Cash & Cash Equivalents

   -In current Accounts  -  - 19,433 37,576

   -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of 
less than 3 months

 -  - 293,500 25,000

   -in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity 
for more than 12 months

279 20,499  -  - 

    Non Current portion transferred to non current 
assets

(279) (20,499)  -  - 

Balances in Fixed Deposit Accounts with original 
maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 
months

 -  - 6,500 107,645

 -  - 319,433 170,221

13. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Sale of Services (Net of Service Tax) 98,228 40,699

98,228 40,699

14. OTHER INCOME

Particulars  Long Term  Short Term 

 Year ended  Year ended  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Interest Received/ Receivable on fixed deposits with 
banks

1 986 8,845 9,603

Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net)  -  - 1  - 

1 986 8,846 9,603
15. INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN INVENTORIES

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Opening Balance of Inventories 189  - 
Closing Balance of Inventories  - (189)
(Increase) / Decrease In Inventories 189 (189)
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16. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Salary & Other Allowance 92,317 31,064
Employee Stock Option Compensation 9,311 38
Bonus 3,678 1,017
House Rent Allowance 22,920 8,200
Gratuity 1,154 394
Leave Encashment 393 137
ESI Employer Contribution 1,659 523
Contribution to Provident Fund 3,702 1,449
Staff Welfare & Benefits 8,733 3,455

143,867 46,278

17. FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Interest on long term borrowings  - 781
Others 140 307

140 1,088

18. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Depreciation of Tangible Assets 10,233 3,561
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 1,540 942

11,773 4,503

19. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COST

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Advertisement Expenses 95,195 20,871
Promotion & Marketing Expenses 61 128

95,256 20,999

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



20. ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Books & Periodicals 100 29
Communication Expenses 11,112 2,707
Domain Name Expenses 134 43
Electricity & Water Expenses 4,749 1,209
Foreign Exchange Variation 268 129
Fee & Subscription 225 110
Insurance Expenses 25 13
Commission 6,022 964
Legal and Professional Charges 3,352 1,288
Miscellaneous Expenses 261 25
Office Expenses 1,985 697
Postage & Courier 2,042 675
Printed Educational Material 3,186 1,831
Printing & Stationery 951 207
Prior Period Expense 67  - 
Rates & Taxes 16 5
Recruitment & Training Expenses 2,924 2,280
Rent 11,882 5,396
Repairs and Maintenance 1,912 1,562
Payment to Auditors

As Auditor:-
Statutory Audit Fee 320 200
Tax Audit Fee  80 50

Out Of Pocket Expenses 20 11
Transaction Charges 2,771 1,294
Travel & Conveyance 611 270
Web Development Expenses 250 208

55,265 21,203

21. NETWORK, INTERNET AND OTHER DIRECT CHARGES

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Server Charges 16,724 6,130
Broadband & Internet Expense 1,128 355

17,852 6,485

22. Operating Leases where the company is a lessee:

The company has entered into lease transaction mainly for leasing of office premise for a period between 4 to 5 years. The terms of lease 
include terms of renewal, increase in rents in future periods and terms of cancellation. The operating lease payments recognized in the 
Statement Profit and Loss amount to `11,737 Thousand (Previous Period `5,388 Thousand ) included in Note 20 – Administration and 
Other Expenses.
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23. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Server Hire Charges 11,390 4,905
Others 323 447

Total 11,713 5,352

24. Contingent Liablities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`‘000)  (`‘000) 

Income Tax Matters  - 1,225

 - 1,225
It is not practicable for the company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the 
proceeding.

25. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS):

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
 (`)  (`) 

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (`‘000) (217,267) (49,079)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos.)  27,136  24,116 
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of `10 each (`)  (8,007)  (2,035)

26 (1) Related Party Disclosures

Rules, 2006 and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2013:

Holding Company
Info Edge (India) Limited (IEIL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Ritesh Hemrajani (Director)
Pavan Chauhan (Director)
Sudhir Bhargava (Director)

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013 in the ordinary course of business:

Amount (`’000)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP Total

1 Shares subscription
(Including Share Premium)

 300,000  -  300,000 

2 Resdex Premium services  (133)  -  (133)
3 0.1% OCCRPS 15,000 converted into 2,087 Equity Shares of `10 each at a 

premium of `71,863.50 per share. 
 150,000  -  150,000 

4 Amount (given to) / received from  Mr. Ritesh Hemrajani 
as Advance / (payments) for business purpose

 -  100  100 
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C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2013

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP Total

Debit balances 
1 Outstanding Advances/Receivables  -  -  - 

Maximum amount outstanding during the year  -  100  100 

Credit balances 
2 Outstanding Payable  -  - 

Maximum amount outstanding during the year  300,148  -  300,148 
1.  Advance given to Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust during the year `11,426 Thousand

2. Amount due from Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust as on March 31, 2013 is `11,633 Thousand

3. The directors do not take any remuneration.

26 (2) Related Party Disclosures

Rules, 2006 and where control exists for the year ended March 31, 2012:

Holding Company
Info Edge (India) Limited (IEIL)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives
Ritesh Hemrajani (Director)
Pavan Chauhan (Director)
Sudhir Bhargava (Director)

B) Details of transactions with related party for the year ended March 31, 2012 in the ordinary course of business: 

Amount (`’000)

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP &
Relatives

Total

1 Issue of 6% optionally Fully Convertible Debentures.  200,000  -  200,000 
2 Resdex Premium services  (126)  -  (126)
3 Interest on 6% Debenture payable during the year  781  -  781 
4 6% debentures of `50,000,000 and interest of `3,099,424 due till date of 

conversion, converted in to 3,372 Equity Shares of `10 each issued at a 
premium of `15,737.16 per share. 

 53,099  -  53,099 

5 Amount (given to) / received from  Mr. Ritesh Hemrajani 
as Advance / (payments) for business purpose

 -  (100)  (100)

1. Advance given to Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust during the year `16 Thousand

2. Amount due from Applect Employees Stock Option Plan Trust as on March 31, 2012 is `206 Thousand

3. The directors do not take any remuneration.

C) Amount due to/from related parties as at March 31, 2012

Sr. No Nature of relationship / transaction Holding
Company

KMP Total

Debit balances 
1 Outstanding Advances/Receivables  -  100  - 

Maximum amount outstanding during the year  -  100  100 

Credit balances 
1 Outstanding Payable  -  -  - 

Maximum amount outstanding during the year  200,140  -  200,140 
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The board vide its resolution dated 29-Dec-09 approved ESOP 2009 for granting Employee Stock Options in form of equity shares linked 
to the completion of a minimum period of continued employment to the eligible employees of the company, monitored and supervised by 
the compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

The employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in the grant.

- Number of options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year:-

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Number Weighted
Average Exercise 

Price (`)

Number Weighted
Average Exercise 

Price (`)

Options outstanding at beginning of year  745  10 745 10

Add:
Options granted  1,585  10  -  - 

Less:
Options exercised  294  10  -  - 
Options forfeited  66  10  -  - 

Options outstanding  at the end of year  1,970  10 745 10

Option exercisable at the end of year  1,970  10 745 10
In accordance with the above mentioned ESOP Scheme, `9,311 Thousand (Previous Year `38 Thousand) has been charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to the options granted during the year ended March 31, 2013 as Employee Stock Option 
Scheme Compensation.

2. A) - In respect of options vested during the year, had the fair value method been used, the loss for the year would be higher by 
`15,025 thousand [Previous year `1 thousand] and the EPS would be `(8,560.62) [Previous year `(2,035.16)].

(B) - The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the discounted cash flow method with the below listed 
assumptions:

ESOP Plan 2009 2012-13 2011-12
Weighted average fair value of the options at the grant dates  15,353.92 155.82
Risk free rate 8.83% 6.53%

28. The Company is in the business of internet based service delivery which constitute a single business segment, therefore there is no 
reportable segment as per the requirements of Accounting Standards – 17 on “Segment Reporting” prescribed under Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as notified by the Central Government vide its notification dated December 7, 2006.

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

a) Provident Fund

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2013     

(`‘000)

Year ended  
March 31, 2012 

(`‘000)
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund* 3,702 1,449
*Included in Employee benefit expenses refer Note 16

B. State Plans

a) Employer’s Contribution to Employee State Insurance

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss –

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2013     

(`‘000)

Year ended  
March 31, 2012 

(`‘000)
Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance * 1,659 523
*Included in Employee benefit expenses refer Note 16
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a) Gratuity payable to employees

b) Leave Encashment/ Compensated Absences for Employees

Particulars Leave Encashment / Compensated Absences

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.50%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels (Per Annum) 5.50% 5.50%

Particulars Employee’s Gratuity Fund

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12
Discount Rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.50%
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 5.50% 5.50%

Expected Average remaining working lives of employees (years) 32.73 32.27

(A) Changes in the Present Value of  Obligation Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

Employee’s
Gratuity Fund

Leave
Encashment

Leave
Encashment

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

(`‘000) (`‘000) (`‘000) (`‘000)

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the 
year

824 488 91 46

Interest Cost 66 42 7 4
Past Service Cost  -  -  -  - 
Current Service Cost 1,028 334 179 28
Curtailment Cost / (Credit)  -  -  -  - 
Settlement Cost / (Credit)  -  -  -  - 
Benefits paid  - (58) (65) (92)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 60 18 206 105

1,978 824 418 91
*Included in the provision for employee benefits refer 
note 6

sheet :
Employee’s

Gratuity Fund
Employee’s

Gratuity Fund
Leave

Encashment
Leave

Encashment

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

(`‘000) (`‘000) (`‘000) (`‘000)
Present value of unfunded Obligation as at March 31, 
2013

1,978 824 418 91

Unrecognized Actuarial (gains)/losses  -  -  -  - 

1,978 824 418 91

Statement
Employee’s

Gratuity Fund
Employee’s

Gratuity Fund
Leave

Encashment
Leave

Encashment

FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2011-12

(`‘000) (`‘000) (`‘000) (`‘000)

Current Service Cost 1,028 334 179 28
Past Service Cost  -  -  -  - 
Interest Cost 66 42 7 4
Expected Return on Plan Assets  -  -  -  - 
Actuarial (gain) / loss on Obligations 60 18 206 105

Settlement Cost / (Credit)  -  -  -  - 

1,154 394 392 137

*Included in Employee benefit expenses refer Note 16
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year & previous four years
Year ended 

March 31, 2009      
(`‘000)

Year ended 
March 31, 2010      

(`‘000)

Year ended 
March 31, 2011      

(`‘000)

Year ended 
March 31, 2012      

(`‘000)

Year ended 
March 31, 2013      

(`‘000)

Gratuity
PBO (C)  -  301  488  824  1,978 
Plan Assets  -  --  --  --  -- 
Net Assets /Liability)  -  (301)  (488)  (824)  (1,978)

Leave Encashment
PBO (C)  -  58  46  91  418 
Plan Assets  -  --  --  --  -- 
Net Assets /Liability)  -  (58)  (46)  (91)  (418)

(E) Expected Contribution to the fund in the next year  Year ended 
March 31, 2013     

(`‘000)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2012     

(`‘000)
Gratuity 1,932 793
Leave Encashment 210 41

-In Current Accounts

As at 
March 31, 2013     

(`’000)

As at 
March 31, 2012     

(`‘000)

ICICI Bank Ltd. 13,595 22,450
State Bank of India 5,838 2,062
Standard Chartered Bank  - 13,064

Total 19,433 37,576

-In Fixed deposits

As at 
March 31, 2013     

(`‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2012     

(`‘000)

ICICI Bank Ltd. 279 91,144
State Bank of India 300,000 50,000
Standard Chartered Bank  - 12,000

Total 300,279 153,144

The above comprises of :-

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2013     

(`‘000)

As at 
March 31, 2012     

(`‘000)
- Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 293,500 25,000
- Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for more than 12 months 279 20,499
- Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 
12 months

6,500 107,645

Total 300,279 153,144

31. The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance along with the 
financial  position of the Company and its projected cash flows have been reviewed by the Board of Directors and they have a reasonable 
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, although the net 
worth has significantly eroded as at the year-end. Thus the Company has continued to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the financial statements
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32. The Previous year figures have been regrouped & rearranged to conform to this year’s classification, wherever necessary.

For Price Waterhouse & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 050032S
Chartered Accountants

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership Number  58507

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 03, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pavan Chauhan Ritesh Hemrajani
Director Director

Place: Delhi
Date : May 03, 2013

APPLECT LEARNING SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 185

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors feel immense pleasure in presenting their 3rd Annual Report along with Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the 
year ended on 31st March, 2013. The summarized financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2013 are as under:-

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particular For the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March,  2013

(Amount in `)

For the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March, 2012

(Amount in `)

Total Revenue Earned 12,29,19,531 2,09,04,524
Less: Total Expenses 22,24,32,274 9,73,91,557

Loss before tax (9,95,12,743) (7,64,87,033)

Tax expense 0.00 0.00

Loss after taxation but before prior period items (9,95,12,743) (7,64,87,033)

Prior Period Items 8,05,692 -

Loss carried over to balance sheet (10,03,18,435) (7,64,87,033)

PERFORMANCE
During the year under consideration, the Company has achieved a considerable turnover amounting to `12,29,19,531/- in comparison to 
`2,09,04,524/- during the previous financial year. However, due to high operating and revenue expenses, the Company has incurred a net 
loss of `9,95,12,743/-. In the immediately previous financial year, the loss was `7,64,87,033/-. Your Directors are hopeful that the revenue and 
profitability of the Company shall increase in the near future.

DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend any payment of dividend due to heavy loss during the year.

ALLOTMENT OF EQUITY SHARES
During the year under review, allotment of equity shares was made twice, at first 10,527 equity shares of the face value of Re.1/- each at par 
and again 33,473 equity shares of the face value of Re.1/- each at a premium of `13143.92 dated 18th September, 2012 and 21st February, 2013 
respectively.

ALLOTMENT OF PREFERENCE SHARES
During the year under review, 18,922 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Re.1/- each 
were issued and allotted to Info Edge India Limited at a premium of `6795.32/- per share.

CONVERSION OF PREFERENCE SHARES
During the year under review, 63,506 0.1% Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (OCCRPS) were converted into 
equity shares in exchange of one Equity Share of Re.1/- each at par for each OCCRPS held as per the terms and conditions of conversion 
attached to the preference shares at the time of their allotment.

TRANSFER OF SHARES
During the year under review, 5962 Equity Shares of the existing members were transferred to Info Edge (India) Limited as per Share Purchase 
Agreement.

SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
During the year under review, the Registered office of the Company was shifted from 223-C, MIG DDA Flats, Rajouri Garden, New Delhi-110027 
to GF 12A, 94, Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 in view of conducting the business of the Company more economically and 
efficiently with effect from 15th March, 2013 at a duly convened Board Meeting. 

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of Section 58A the Companies Act, 1956.

DIRECTORS
There has not been any change in the Directorship of the Company during the period under review. 

AUDITOR’S REPORT
The observations made in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for further comments under Section 217 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.
AUDITORS
M/s S.R.B.C & CO LLP, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, having office at Golf view Corporate Tower-B, Sector-42, Sector Road, Gurgaon, Haryana- 
122002, retire as auditors of the Company at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for 
re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommend for their re-appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES U/S 217 (2A) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
There were no employees during the year in respect of whom information is required under section 217(2A) of the Companies act, 1956 read 
with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT /TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION / FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND 
OUTGO
Particulars required under Section 217(1)(e) regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption is NIL during the year under review.

Foreign Exchange Earning (Accrual basis) is `3,058,735/- during the year under review in comparison with NIL Foreign Exchange Earning during 
the immediately preceding Financial Year. The Foreign Exchange Expenditure (Accrual basis) is `3,14,37,081/- in comparison to `59,98,572/-
during the immediately preceding Financial Year.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Under the provision of section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act 1956 the Director States As under–

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2013, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures;

ii) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2013 and loss of the Company for 
the year ended on that date;

iii) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
and

iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a ‘going concern’ basis.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your directors take on record their sincere appreciation to the contributions made by the employees through their hard work, dedication and 
co-operation towards the success of your company. Your directors are also very thankful for consistent co-operation and assistance received 
from its shareholders, business associates, customers, vendors, bankers and government authorities.

        For and on behalf of the board  

Place: New Delhi (Pankaj Chaddah) (Deepinder Goyal)
Dated: April 29, 2013 Director Director

DIN: 02625858 DIN: 02613583
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Zomato Media Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”). This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and 
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of 
our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those 
books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting Standards referred 
to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956; 

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of 
section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

For S R B C. & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E

Per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: April 29, 2013

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 



Annexure referred to in paragraph [1] of report on other legal and regulatory requirements of our report of even date

”)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no such material discrepancies were identified on 
such verification. 

(c) There was no disposal of substantial fixed assets during the year. 

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval during the year.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are   reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to 
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Therefore the 
provisions of clause 4(iii) (a) to (d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties covered in 
the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Therefore the provisions of clause 4(iii) (e) to (g) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventor and fixed assets and for the 
sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness or continuing failure to correct 
any major weakness in the internal control system of the company in respect of these areas.

(v)  In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(v)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

(vi)   The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vii)  In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, 
the provisions of clause 4(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, service 
tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it though there has been a slight delay in cases of provident fund.  The 
provisions of investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, customs duty and excise duty are not 
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, provident fund, 
service tax, cess and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the period end, for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. The provisions of investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, 
customs duty and excise duty are not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there    are   no dues of income 
tax, provident fund, service tax and cess and other material statutory dues applicable which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute.

(x)  The Company has been register for a period less than five years and hence we are not required to comment on whether or  not the 
accumulated losses at the end of the financial year is fifty percent or more of its net worth and whether it has incurred cash losses 
in such financial year and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi)  Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders. 

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us, the Company 
has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of 
the Order, (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
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(xiv)  In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xv)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from 
bank or financial institutions.

(xvi)  The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we 
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(xix)   The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

(xx)  The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.

(xxi)  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements and as 
per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit.

For S.R.B.C & Co LLP
Firm registration number: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 29, 2013

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 



BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars  Notes  31 March, 2013  31 March, 2012 

 (Amount in `)  (Amount in `)

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital  3  284,522  221,600 

Reserves and surplus  4  564,619,763  96,840,260 

 564,904,285  97,061,860 

Non - current liabilities

Trade payables  5  562,688  124,000 

Long term provisions  6  1,704,989  476,273 

 2,267,677  600,273 

Current liabilities

Short term borrowings  7  -  11,539 

Trade payables  8  8,784,920  1,355,229 

Other current liabilities  8  6,636,583  4,391,574 

Short term provisions  6  4,692  1,856 

 15,426,195  5,760,198 

 TOTAL  582,598,157  103,422,331 

Assets

Non - current assets
Fixed assets

    Tangible assets  9  14,033,444  7,211,410 

    Intangible assets  10  2,964,683  592,671 

Non-current investments  11  50,000,000  - 

Loans and advances  12  3,444,140  2,900,000 

Other non current assets  13  163,237,430  180,000 

 233,679,697  10,884,081 

Current assets

Current investments  14  150,069,016 

Inventories  15  3,524,133  - 

Trade receivables  16  15,427,921  5,526,816 

Cash and bank balances  17  166,844,556  83,749,646 

Loans and advances  12  13,052,834  3,207,329 

Other current assets  13  -  54,459 

 348,918,460  92,538,250 

 TOTAL  582,598,157  103,422,331 

 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP
Firm registration number: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner 
Membership No.: 94941

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Zomato Media Private Limited 

Pankaj Chaddah Deepinder Goyal 
(Director) (Director)

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Particulars  Notes  31 March, 2013  31 March, 2012 

 (Amount in `)  (Amount in `)

Income
Revenue from operations (net)  18  113,762,592  20,422,268 

Other income  19  9,156,939  482,256 

Total revenue (I)  122,919,531  20,904,524 

Expenses
Purchase of traded goods  20  4,065,683  - 

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of traded goods  20  (3,524,133)  - 

Employee benefits expense  21  92,004,274  39,739,998 

Depreciation & amortization expense  22  9,194,688  4,776,313 

Finance costs  23  82,339  47,257 

Other expenses  24  120,609,423  52,827,989 

Loss before tax  (99,512,743)  (76,487,033)

Tax expense 
- Current Tax  -  - 

Total tax expense  -  - 

Loss after taxation but before prior period items  (99,512,743)  (76,487,033)
Prior period items  25  805,692  - 

Loss for the year  (100,318,435)  (76,487,033)

Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Re. 1 (31 March 2012: Re. 1)  26 
Basic/ diluted (loss) per equity share 
Computed on the basis of total loss for the year  (535.93)  (495.45)

 2.1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP
Firm registration number: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner 
Membership No.: 94941

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Zomato Media Private Limited 

Pankaj Chaddah Deepinder Goyal 
(Director) (Director)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amount in `)

 PARTICULARS  31 March 2013  31 March 2012

Loss befor tax  (100,318,435)  (76,487,033)

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flow
Depreciation and amortaization  9,194,688  4,776,313 
Profit on sale of fixed assets  (103,399)  - 
Interest income  (8,885,372)  (376,651)
Dividend income  (69,016)  - 

 (100,181,534)  (72,087,371)

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  7,868,379  878,678 
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions  1,231,490  344,658 
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities  2,245,009  3,750,935 
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  (9,901,105)  (3,293,518)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories  (3,524,133)  - 
Decrease / (Increase) in loans & advances  (7,371,163)  (4,278,799)

Cash used in operation  (109,633,057)  (74,685,417)
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (2,792,343) (115,970)

Net cash from/(used) in operating activities (A)  (112,425,400) (74,801,387)

Purchase of fixed assets including CWIP and capital advance  (18,841,484)  (9,151,207)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  330,010  31,714 
Invested in bank deposit (having original maturity of more than three months)  (283,299,459)  (1,180,000)
Purchase of non-current investments  (50,000,000)  - 
Purchase of current investments  (150,069,016)  - 

Interest received  7,101,206  322,192 
Dividend received  69,016  - 

Net cash from/(used) in investing activities (B)  (494,709,727)  (9,977,301)

Proceed from issuance of equity share capital 440,010,527  30,002,148 
Proceed from issuance of prefrence share capital  128,599,967  134,999,958 
Repayment of short term borrowings  (11,539)  11,539 

 568,598,955  165,013,645 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (38,536,172)  80,234,957 

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account on foreign branches  (449,572) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year  82,749,646  2,514,689 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  43,763,902  82,749,646 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  288,599  72,523 
Cheque on hand  -  437,790 
With banks - on current account  28,283,974  82,239,333 
-on deposit account  15,191,329  - 

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 17)  43,763,902  82,749,646 

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP
Firm registration number: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner 
Membership No.: 94941

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Zomato Media Private Limited 

Pankaj Chaddah Deepinder Goyal 
(Director) (Director)
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1. Corporate information

Zomato Media Private Limited (formerly known as DC Foodiebay Online Services Private Limited) (“the Company”) is a private limited 
company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.  The company is engaged in operating 
an internet portal providing all sorts of information, including but not limited to details of menus, contacts, discount offers, quality 
of service & food about restaurants & caterers, and other service providers to be availed by users of the website in making informed 
decisions about their dining options and related facilities and by restaurants, hotels and other caterers to advertise themselves to the 
target audience in India & abroad.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India 
(Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards 
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year. 

2.1

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make   judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises 
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits 
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, 
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are changed to the statement of profit and 
loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management or at 
the rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, whichever is higher as under.

Fixed Assets Rates used by the company Schedule XIV Rates (SLM)
Air conditioner 33.33% 4.75%
Electrical Equipments 33.33% 4.75%
Furniture & Fittings 33.33% 6.33%
Computers 50.00% 16.21%
Motor Vehicles 9.50% 9.50%
Telephone Instruments 50.00% 4.75%

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of fixed assets. 
Individual assets costing upto `5,000 are depreciated fully in year of purchase.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly include softwares and website stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Cost comprises the 
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and are amortized 
using the straight-line method over a period of two years.

(e) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those 
from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
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considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately 
for each of the company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied 
to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss, except for previously revalued tangible fixed assets, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, 
the impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

(f) Leases

Where the company is lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified 
as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

(g) Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such 
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. On 
initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition 
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other 
securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in exchange for another 
asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up or by reference to the fair value of the 
investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evident. 

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment 
basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline 
other than temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to 
the statement of profit and loss.

(h) Inventory

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue from operating an internet portal providing all sorts of information about restaurants and 
caterers for display of advertisements are recognized on the display of advertisements. The company collects service tax on 
behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the company. Hence, it is excluded from 
revenue.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest 
rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

(j) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions & balances

i. Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

ii. Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation 
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.
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iii. Exchange differences

The company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items as 
below:

1. Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of the company’s net investment in a 
non-integral foreign operation is accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the net 
investment. On the disposal of such net investment, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences which have 
been deferred and which relate to that investment is recognized as income or as expenses in the same period in which 
the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

2. All other exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than 
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as 
an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received 
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a 
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre payment will lead to, 
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The company operates one defined benefit plans for its employees, viz., gratuity. Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis 
of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

(l) Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the 
tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax 
jurisdictions where the company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized 
in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating 
during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and 
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly 
in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are     recognized for deductible 
timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

At each reporting date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax 
asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

(m) Segment reporting

The company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services 
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. 
The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the company operate.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the total 
common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

Segment accounting policies

The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting 
the financial statements of the company as a whole.

(n) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled 
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to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share 
split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

(o) Provisions

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates. 

Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to 
any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

(p) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not 
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. 
The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

(q) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 197

3 Share capital

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

400,000 (31 March 2012: 400,000) equity shares of Re. 1 each  400,000  400,000 
200,000 (31 March 2012: 200,000) 0.1% optionally convertible cumulative redeemable 
preference shares (OCCRPS) of  Re. 1 each

 200,000  200,000 

 600,000  600,000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 

284,522 (31 March 2012: 177,016) equity shares of Re. 1 each  284,522  177,016 
Nil (31 March 2012: 44,584) 0.1 % OCCRPS of  Re. 1 each  -  44,584 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  284,522  221,600 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

No. (Amount in `) No. (Amount in `)
At the beginning of the year  177,016  177,016  140,602  140,602 
Conversion of OCCRPS into equity shares  63,506  63,506  -  - 
Issued during the year  44,000  44,000  36,414  36,414 

Outstanding at the end of the year  284,522  284,522  177,016  177,016 

Preference shares

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

No. (Amount in `) No. (Amount in `)
At the beginning of the year  44,584  44,584  -  - 
Issued during the year  18,922  18,922  44,584  44,584 
Conversion into equity shares  63,506  63,506  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the year  -  -  44,584  44,584 

b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  Re. 1 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote 
per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

c) Terms of conversion/redemption of OCCRPS
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company issued 18,922 OCCRPS of Re. 1 each fully paid-up at a premium of `6795 per 
share. OCCRPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.1% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential 
dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whether or not paid. All accrued dividends shall be paid in full (together 
with dividends accrued from prior years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribution. Subject to the applicable laws, the 
OCCRPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to vote of the shareholders of the 
company (including the ordinary shares). Each OCCRPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or 
fractional ordinary shares into which such OCCRPS could then be converted.

Each holder of OCCRPS are entitled to convert the OCCRPS into ordinary shares at any time in one or more tranches after the 
respective closing date on which such OCCRPS was issued and upto 15 years from the date of agreement (i.e. 2 September, 2011). If 
the holder exercises its conversion option, the company will issue 1 equity shares for each OCCRPS held.

Any OCCRPS in respect of which company has not received any conversion notice during the conversion period, shall be automatically 
redeemed by the company at a price equal to the subscription amount paid for it at the end of the conversion period. In the event of the 
liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of OCCRPS, until the holders 
have received the minimum return. 
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c) Shares held by holding company 

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

No. (Amount in `) No. (Amount in `)

Info Edge (India) Limited
163,827(31 March 2012: 58,480) equity shares of 
`1/- each

 163,827  58,480 

 163,827  58,480 

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

No. (Amount in `) No. (Amount in `)
Equity shares of Re 1 each fully paid
Info Edge (India) Limited  163,827 57.58%  58,480 33.04%
Mr. Deepinder Goyal, Director  90,092* 32.00%  85,527 48.32%
Mr. Pankaj Chaddah, Director  23,013 8.00%  25,000 14.12%

* This includes 21,054 shares held on behalf of 
Foodiebay Employee ESOP Trust (not yet constituted)

OCCRPS of Re 1 each fully paid
Info Edge (India) Limited, Shareholder  -  -  44,584 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

4 Reserves and surplus

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements  184,196,999  19,275,891 
Add: premium on issue of equity shares  439,966,527  29,965,734 
Add: premium on issue of OCCRPS  128,581,045  134,955,374 

Closing balance  752,744,571  184,196,999 

Balance as per last financial statements  (87,356,739)  (10,869,654)
Loss for the year  (100,318,435)  (76,487,033)
Less: Appropriations
        Dividend on preference shares (amount per share Re. 0.001 (31 March 2012: Re. 0.001))  53  45 
        Tax on preference dividend  9  7 
Total appropriations  62  52 
Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss  (187,675,236)  (87,356,739)

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account  (449,572)  - 

Total reserves and surplus  564,619,763  96,840,260 
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5 Other long term liabilities

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Trade payables  (refer note 31 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)  562,688  124,000 

 562,688  124,000 

6 Provisions

Particulars Long Term Short Term

  31 March 2013   31 March 2012   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Provision for Gratuity (note 27)  1,704,875  476,221  4,692  1,856 

 1,704,875  476,221  4,692  1,856 

Other provisions
Proposed preference dividend  98  45  -  - 
Provision for tax on proposed preference dividend  16  7  -  - 

 114  52  -  - 

 1,704,989  476,273  4,692  1,856 

7 Short-term borrowings

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Credit from banks (unsecured)*  -  11,539 

Total short term borrowings  -  11,539 

* Credit from bank is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 3% per month.

8 Other current liabilities

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Trade payables  (refer note 31 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)  8,784,920  1,355,229 

Other liabilities
Share application money to be refunded*  56  23 
Unearned revenue  5,396,543  3,079,400 

Others
Service tax payable  6,217  - 
Tax deducted at source payable  1,167,015  1,312,151 
Provident fund payable  66,752  - 

 6,636,583  4,391,574 

 15,421,503  5,746,803 

Company intends to refund this amount and it carries no interest.
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9 Tangible Assets

(Amount in `)

Particulars Air
conditioner

Electrical
Equipments

Furniture & 
Fittings

Computers Motor
Vehicles

Telephone
Instruments

Total

Cost

At 1 April 2011  211,142  218,273  516,862  2,164,533  -  328,270  3,439,080 

Additions  149,704  617,999  1,077,104  5,480,402  158,025  1,035,332  8,518,566 
Disposals  -  -  -  26,880  -  9,500  36,380 

At 31 March 2012  360,846  836,272  1,593,966  7,618,055  158,025  1,354,102  11,921,266 
Additions  639,130  2,320,013  1,418,145  8,044,712  410,685  2,252,417  15,085,102 
Disposals  -  -  -  650,210  -  43,537  693,747 

At 31 March 2013  999,976  3,156,285  3,012,111  15,012,557  568,710  3,562,982  26,312,621 

Depreciation
At 1 April 2011  4,157  12,644  244,404  158,482  -  6,396  426,083 
Charge for the year  109,833  242,389  593,331  2,841,536  7,098  494,252  4,288,439 
Disposals  -  -  -  2,467  -  2,199  4,666 

At 31 March 2012  113,990  255,033  837,735  2,997,551  7,098  498,449  4,709,856 
Charge for the year  277,315  724,400  1,025,943  4,774,800  33,018  1,200,981  8,036,457 
Disposals  -  -  -  459,085  -  8,051  467,136 

At 31 March 2013  391,305  979,433  1,863,678  7,313,266  40,116  1,691,379  12,279,177 

At 31 March 2012  246,856  581,239  756,231  4,620,504  150,927  855,653  7,211,410 

At 31 March 2013  608,671  2,176,852  1,148,433  7,699,291  528,594  1,871,603  14,033,444 

10 Intangible assets

 (Amount in `)

Particulars  Software  Website  Total 

At 1 April 2011  61,845  432,022  -  493,867 
Purchase  632,641  -  -  632,641 
Disposals  -  -  -  - 

At 31 March 2012  694,486  432,022  -  1,126,508 
Purchase  394,913  125,174  3,010,156  3,530,243 
Disposals  -  -  -  - 

At 31 March 2013  1,089,399  557,196  3,010,156  4,656,751 

At 1 April 2011  14,881  31,082  -  45,963 
Charge for the year  207,072  280,802  -  487,874 
Disposals  -  -  -  - 

At 31 March 2012  221,953  311,884  -  533,837 
Charge for the year  505,630  107,808  544,793  1,158,231 
Disposals  -  -  -  - 

At 31 March 2013  727,583  419,692  544,793  1,692,068 

At 31 March 2012  472,533  120,138  -  592,671 

At 31 March 2013  361,816  137,504  2,465,363  2,964,683 
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11 Non-current investments

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Non- trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise )

Unquoted mutual funds
ICICI Prudential mutual fund of `10 each fully paid up 5,000,000 units (31 March 2012: Nil)  50,000,000  - 

 50,000,000  - 

12 Loans and advances

Particulars  Non-current  Current 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good  226,139  -  -  - 

 226,139  -  -  - 

Security deposit
Unsecured, considered good  3,218,000  2,900,000  1,831,257  866,000 

 3,218,000  2,900,000  1,831,257  866,000 

Unsecured considered good  -  -  2,998,648  1,859,345 
 -  -  2,998,648  1,859,345 

Other loans and advances
Tax Deducted at Source  -  -  2,918,760  126,417 
Prepaid expenses  -  -  2,201,317  207,345 
Loan to employees  -  -  2,910,841  - 
Balances with statutory/ government authorities  -  -  192,011  148,222 

 -  -  8,222,929  481,984 

Total  3,444,140  2,900,000  13,052,834  3,207,329 

13 Other assets

Particulars  Non- Current  Current 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Non-current bank balances (refer note 17)  161,398,805  180,000  -  - 

Others
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 1,305,160  - 533,465  54,459 

Total  162,703,965  180,000 533,465  54,459 

14 Current investments

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Non- trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise )

Unquoted mutual funds
IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund of `10 each fully paid up  75,018,170  - 
7,492,451 units (31 March 2012: Nil)
 HDFC Mutual Fund of `10.0809 each fully paid up  75,050,846 
7,444,856 units (31 March 2012: Nil) 

 150,069,016  - 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  150,069,016  - 
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15 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Stock of book (food guide)  3,524,133  - 

 3,524,133  - 

16 Trade receivables

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, considered good  66,549  - 
Doubtful  2,347,004  - 

 2,413,553  - 
Provision for doubtful receivables  (2,347,004)  - 

 66,549  - 

Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good  15,361,372  5,526,816 
Doubtful  44,100  - 

 15,405,472  5,526,816 
Provision for doubtful receivables  (44,100)  - 

 15,361,372  5,526,816 

Total  15,427,921  5,526,816 

17

Particulars  Non- Current  Current 

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts  -  -  28,283,974  82,239,333 
- Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months  -  -  15,191,329  - 
Cheques on hand  -  -  -  437,790 
Cash on hand  -  -  288,599  72,523 

 -  -  43,763,902  82,749,646 

Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months  161,398,805  180,000  -  - 
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but 
less than 12 months

 -  -  123,080,654  1,000,000 

 161,398,805  180,000  123,080,654  1,000,000 
Amount disclosed under other non-current assets (note 13)  (161,398,805)  (180,000)  -  - 

Total  -  -  166,844,556  83,749,646 

Pledged with company’s bankers against guarantees given 
by them 

 180,000  180,000  -  1,000,000 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 



INFO EDGE (INDIA) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2012 13 203

18 Revenue from operations

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Sale of services
Revenue from advertisements  108,893,806  15,953,663 
Revenue from sale of events’ tickets  3,367,432  2,744,712 
Revenue from restaurant bookings  1,501,354  1,723,893 

Revenue from operations (net)  113,762,592  20,422,268 

19 Other income

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Interest income on
  -  Bank deposits  8,885,372  376,651 
Dividend income on
  -  Current investments  69,016  - 
Profit on sale of fixed assets  103,399  - 
Other non-operating income  99,152  105,605 

 9,156,939  482,256 

20 (Increase)/decrease in inventories

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Inventories at the end of the year
         Traded goods  3,524,133  - 

 3,524,133  - 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
         Traded goods  -  - 

 -  - 

 (3,524,133)  - 

Detail of purchase of traded goods

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Food guides  4,065,683  - 

 4,065,683  - 

21

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Salaries, wages and bonus  85,810,314  37,463,181 
Contribution to provident and other funds  682,582  - 
Gratuity Expense (note 27)  1,231,490  344,658 
Staff welfare expenses  4,279,888  1,932,159 

 92,004,274  39,739,998 
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22

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)
Depreciation of tangible assets  8,036,457  4,288,439 
Amortization of intangible asset  1,158,231  487,874 

 9,194,688  4,776,313 

23 Finance costs

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

 Bank Charges  82,339  47,257 

 82,339  47,257 

24 Other expenses

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

 Power & fuel  2,858,731  529,792 
 Rent  19,012,537  6,052,138 
 Rates and taxes  3,044,103  38,501 
 Repairs and maintenance: 
 - Plant and machinery  1,542,591  1,584,681 
 - Building  945,029  767,128 
 Advertisement and sales promotion  48,457,683  31,290,844 
Travelling and conveyance   21,351,423  3,601,665 
Communication cost  9,192,767  2,399,653 
Commission  676,059  591,470 
Brokerage and discounts  207,950  568,989 
Printing and stationary  880,174  919,833 
Exchange difference (net)  3,183  69,230 
Job work expenses  1,053,360  1,779,321 
Legal and professional fees   6,408,662  1,819,777 
Payment to auditor (refer detail below)  535,994  211,476 
Deposits written off  -  300,000 
Bad debts written off  1,873,583  234,397 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  2,391,104  - 
Miscellaneous expenses  174,490  69,094 

 120,609,423  52,827,989 

Payment to auditor

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)
As Auditor:
Audit Fee  500,000  200,000 
Reimbursement of expenses  35,994  11,476 

Total  535,994  211,476 

25 Prior period items

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)
Salaries, Wages and Bonus  365,093  - 
Provident Fund  440,599  - 

 805,692  - 
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26 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Total operations for the year
Net loss for calculation of basic EPS  (100,318,558)  (76,487,085)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS  187,188  154,379 
Basic/ diluted (loss) per equity share  (535.93)  (495.45)

There are potential equity shares as on 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 in the form of OCCRPS. As these are anti dilutive, they 
are ignored in the calculation of diluted earning per share and accordingly the diluted earning per share is the same as basic earnings 
per share.

27 Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on 
departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service.The scheme is unfunded.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded 
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Current service cost  1,096,807  399,635 
Interest cost on benefit obligation  40,637  10,006 
Expected return on plan assets  -  - 
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period  94,046  (64,983)
Past service cost  -  - 

 1,231,490 344,658
Actual return on plan assets  - -

Balance sheet

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Present value of defined benefit obligation  1,709,567  478,077 
Fair value of planned assets  -  - 

Plan (asset)/liability  1,709,567  478,077 

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Opening defined benefit obligation  478,077  133,419 
Current service cost  1,096,807  399,635 
Interest cost  40,637  10,006 
Benefit paid  -  - 

Actuarial (gain) / losses on obligation  94,046  (64,983)

 1,709,567  478,077 
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Changes in fair value of planned assets are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Opening fair value of planned assets  -  - 
Expected return  -  - 
Contribution by the employer  -  - 
Benefit paid  -  - 
Actuarial gain / (losses)  -  - 

Closing fair value of planned assets  -  - 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Discount rate 8.00% 8.50%
Expected rate of return on assets  NA  NA 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current and previous period are as follows*

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012   31 March 2011

(Amount in `) (Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation  1,709,567  478,077  133,419 
Plan assets  -  - 
Surplus/(deficit)  (1,709,567)  (478,077)  (133,419)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities  (35,832)  26,123  - 
Experience adjustments on plan assets  -  -  - 
*Since, the company has started its operations from 18 January 2010 and prepared its financial statements first time from 18 January 
2010 to 31 March 2011, above mentioned disclosures for other previous two periods are not applicable.

28 Leases

Operating lease: company as lessee
The company has operating lease for space for office premises.

Particulars   31 March 2013   31 March 2012

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

Lease payment for the period

Rent for office premises 19,012,537 6,052,138

19,012,537 6,052,138
The Company has not given or taken any sub-leases during the current year.

29 Segment information

Business segments
The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segment.The company is engaged in operating 
an internet portal providing all sorts of information, including but not limited to details of menus, contacts, discount offers, quality 
of service & food about restaurants & caterers, and other service providers to be availed by users of the website in making informed 
decisions about their dining options and related facilities and by restaurants, hotels and other caterers to advertise themselves to the 
target audience in India & abroad.

Geographical segments
Secondary Segmental reporting is performed on the basis of the geographical location of customers. The following tables show the 
distribution of the Company’s sales by geographical market, carrying amount of segment assets and addition to segment assets by 
geographical area in which assets are located:
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Sales:

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)

India  110,703,857 20,422,268
Others  3,058,735 0

Total  113,762,592 20,422,268

Assets and additions to tangible and intangible fixed assets by geographical area:

The following table shows the carrying amount of segment assets and addition to segment assets by geographical area in which 
assets are located:

Particulars Carrying amount of segment 
assets and Intangible assets intangible assets

31 March 2013 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

India  13,905,147  -  -  - 
Other  9,180,849  -  862,001  - 

Total  23,085,996  -  862,001  - 

30 Name of related parties and related party relationship

Holding Company Info Edge (India) Limited (w.e.f.28th March,2013)

Associates Info Edge (India) Limited (till 27th March,2013)

Key Management Personnel Deepinder Goyal (Director)
Pankaj Chaddah (Director)
Sudhir Bhargava (Director)

Related Party Disclosure

Nature of 
Transactions

Key Management 
Personnel

Holding company Associates Total

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

Remuneration paid 
to Directors
Pankaj Chaddah  2,079,603  1,691,664  -  -  -  -  2,079,603  1,691,664 
Deepinder Goyal  3,362,502  2,436,360  -  -  -  -  3,362,502  2,436,360 

 -  - 
Equity Share 
Capital Issued

 -  - 

Info Edge (India) 
Limited*

 -  96,979  -  -  36,083  96,979  36,083 

Deepinder Goyal on 
behalf of Foodiebay 
Employee ESOP 
Trust (not yet 
constitued)

 -  -  10,527  -  -  -  10,527  - 

 -  - 
Preference Share 
Capital (OCCRPS) 
Issued

 -  - 

Info Edge (India) 
Limited

 -  18,922  -  -  44,584  18,922  44,584 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
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Nature of 
Transactions

Key Management 
Personnel

Holding company Associates Total

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

  31 March 
2013

  31 March 
2012

 -  - 
Securities
premium received

 -  - 

On equity shares  -  - 
(Info Edge (India) 
Limited)

 -  439,966,527  -  -  28,963,936  439,966,527  28,963,936 

 -  - 
On preference 
shares (OCCRPS)

 -  - 

(Info Edge (India) 
Limited)

 -  128,581,045  -  -  134,955,374  128,581,045  134,955,374 

 -  - 
Payment of 
Expenses

 -  - 

Recruitment
Expenses

 -  - 

(Info Edge (India) 
Limited)

 -  2,809  -  -  -  2,809  - 

 -  - 
Balance Payable 
at the end of the 

 -  - 

Pankaj Chaddah  37,573  -  -  -  -  37,573  - 
Deepinder Goyal  399,008  -  -  -  -  399,008  - 

 -  - 
Balance Receivable 
at the end of the 

 -  - 

Pankaj Chaddah  -  25,230  -  -  -  -  -  25,230 
Deepinder Goyal  -  258,580  -  -  -  -  -  258,580 
*Includes conversion of 63506 optionally convertible cumulative redeemable preference share (OCCRPS) into same number of equity 
share.

31
The Company, has during the year, not received any intimation from any of its suppliers regarding their status under The Micro and 
Small  Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end along with 
interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given. Based on the information available with the Company there 
are no principal/interest amounts due to micro, small and medium enterprises.

32 Capital Commitment
As at March 2013, the company has estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for, net 
of Advance `26,719 (31st March 2012:-Nil).
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33 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)
Debtors AED 98,550 @14.7 

(`1,448,685)
 - 

GBP 900 @ 82.32 
(`74,088)

Bank AED 237,658 @14.7 
(`3,493,573)

 - 

Cash in Foreign Currency AED 12,367 @14.7 
(`181,796)

 - 

GBP 1,161 @ 82.32 
(`95,603)

 - 

Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received AED 102,461 @14.7 
(`1,506,176)

 - 

GBP 21,999 @ 
82.32 (`1,810,957)

34 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 

(Amount in `) (Amount in `)
Capital goods  1,746,546  - 

Total  1,746,546  - 

35 Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars    31 March 2013    31 March 2012 

       (Amount in `)        (Amount in `)
 Power & Fuel  94,474  - 
 Rent  5,862,040  - 
 Repairs and Maintenance: 
 - Plant and Machinery  543,225  - 
 - Building  101,815  - 
Travelling and Conveyance   7,229,399  - 
Communication cost  1,066,417  - 
Printing and stationary  108,998  - 
Legal and Professional Fees   3,065,697  - 
Salaries, wages and bonus  4,818,038  - 
Staff welfare expenses  810,097  - 
Bank Charges  17,985  - 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  44,100  - 
Miscellaneous Expenses  55,840  - 
Advertisement Expenses  7,618,956  5,998,572 

Total  31,437,081 5,998,572

36 Earning in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars    31 March 2013    31 March 2012 

       (Amount in `)        (Amount in `)
Sales  3,058,735  - 

Total  3,058,735  - 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
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37 As at the period ending on March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, the Company is having net deferred tax assets primarily comprising 
of unabsorbed Depreciation and carry forward Losses under tax laws. However in the absence of virtual certainty as to its realization 
of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), DTA has not been created.

38
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP
Firm registration number: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner 
Membership No.: 94941

Place: Gurgaon
Date: April 29, 2013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Zomato Media Private Limited 

Pankaj Chaddah Deepinder Goyal 
(Director) (Director)
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Dear Shareholders,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the third Annual Report on the operation of the Company and the Audited Accounts for the period 
ended 31st March, 2013.

The Company was Incorporated on 21th Sept, 2010 vide Certificate of Incorporation bearing No. U74999MH2010PTC207974. The company’s 
main activity is providing services and solutions in relation to placement consultancy, personnel recruitment, staffing etc, and to develop, 
possess, buy, sell and market certain technological solutions in area of placement consultancy including technologies like development and 
marketing of recruitment framework software.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
During the financial year ended March 31, 2013 the Company incurred a loss of `22,45,910/-. Detailed financial results are stated in Annual 
Accounts.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors do not propose any dividend for the Accounting Year ended 31st March 2013.

EMPLOYEES

No Statement under the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 is attached as none of the employees of the Company were 

in receipt of remuneration in excess of the sum prescribed by the Companies Act.

AUDITORS

M/s. Naresh S. Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Membership No. 10585) retires at the conclusion of the ensuing annual general 

meeting & being eligible offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Board believes in conservation of energy and using latest technologies. However, no major activity is done in current year hence, no substantial 

/major act for conserving energy is considered necessary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNIGS AND OUTGO

There was no foreign exchange outgo or any inflow in current year.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As required Under Section 217 of the Companies Act, the directors hereby confirm that:
i) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgment and estimates that are 

reasonable so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and profit of the 
company for that period. 

ii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities to the best of their knowledge. 
iii) The directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on Going Concern basis. 

iv) Management hereby declares that, none of the Directors are disqualified for being appointed as such, as required under clause (g) 

of Sub-Section (1) of Section 274 of Companies Act. 

v) The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss accounts comply with, the Accounting Standards to the extent applicable, referred to in 

Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956. 

MAJOR TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS/SHAREHOLDERS

New equity shares were issued during financial year 2012-13 of face value of `10 each, totaling to `49 lakhs (after increasing authorized capital 

in April 2012 to `50 lakhs).

The company has below transactions with related parties within the meaning of Accounting Standard – 18:-

Key management persons (KMP)  –Mr. Vivek Arya, Mr. Anand R, Mr. Sumit Kundu

Parent company (as on 31.3.2013) – Info Edge (India) Limited

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED



Major Ex-shareholder (as on 31.3.2013) – Mr. Ravi Jakhar, Mr. Vivek Arya, Mr. Anand R, Mr. Sumit Kundu

(`

Particular of transaction KMP Ex shareholder Parent Company
Total Director’s remuneration

(paid before company was 

taken over by public company)

`3.93 L

(Previous 

Yr. `1.32 L)
Cash allowance 

(paid before company 

was taken over by public company)

`2.69 L 

(Previous 

Yr. `2.27 L)
Loan repayment `24.10 L
Loan taken `24.28 L
New allotment of shares `49.00 L

After the above new allotment of `49 lakh shares, on or around 20.3.2013, individual shareholders of the company sold their 499999 shares 

to public limited company Info Edge (India) Limited and one share was sold to Naukri Internet Services Pvt Ltd , thus making this company a 

99.99% subsidiary of Info Edge (India) Limited.

APPRECIATION:

The directors acknowledge with gratitude, the co-operation and assistance from all with whom the company has dealt with. The directors also 

place on record their appreciation for the dedicated service rendered by the officers and staff of the company.

Place: Mumbai Vivek Arya Anand Ramchandran
Date: 01/05/2013 Director Director

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

   
1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED as at 31st March, 2013, the Profit 

and Loss Account and also cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing and Assurance Standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. In our opinion, the Provisions of the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2004 Issued by the central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not applicable (in spite of it being a subsidiary of a listed public company) as :

CARO is applicable to private limited company as defined u/s. 3(1)( iii). Further, this company does not have a paid-up capital and Reserves 
exceeding fifty lakh rupees  and has not accepted any public deposit and does not have loan outstanding of  Twenty five lakh rupees or 
more from any bank or financial institution and does not have a turnover exceeding five crore rupees.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred above, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company as far as appears from our examination 
of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the Balance sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash flow dealt with by the report comply with the accounting 
standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2013 and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2013 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of clause (g) sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956; 

(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read together 
with the notes thereon give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:-

(i) In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company  as at 31st March, 2013; 
(ii) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(iii) In the case of cash flow statement, the cash flows for the ended on that date.     

For NARESH S. SHAH & ASSOCIATES
(Chartered Accountants)

NARESH S. SHAH     
PROPRIETOR

MEMBERSHIP NO: 010585
FIRM REG. NO: 127332W

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 1, 2013

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED



BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2013

Sr. No. Particulars  Note No. As at 31st March, 
2013

As at 31st March, 
2012

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3  5,000,000  100,000 
(b) Reserves and surplus 4  (4,097,579)  (1,851,669)

 902,421  (1,751,669)
2 Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 5  2,428,910  4,200,000 
(b) Deferred tax Liability(Net)  -  - 
(c) Other long-term liabilities  -  - 
(d) Long-term Provisions  -  - 

 2,428,910  4,200,000 

3 Current liabilities & provisions 6

(a) Short-term borrowings  -  - 
(b) Trade Payables
(c) Other Current liabilities  25,000  61,844 
(d) Short-term Provisions  -  - 

TOTAL  3,356,331  2,510,175 

B ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 7  95,893  110,536 
(iii) Intangible assets under development  3,248,844  2,098,094 
(b) Miscelleneous expenditure 8  -  191,910 

 3,344,737  2,400,540 
2 Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents  816  94,316 
Bank balance  10,778  15,319 

 11,594  109,635 
TOTAL  3,356,331  2,510,175 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date
For Naresh S. Shah & Associates
(Chartered Accountants)

CA Naresh S.Shah 
Proprietor
Membership No. 10585
Firm Reg No. 127332W

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

Vivek Arya Anand Ramchandran
(Director) (Director)

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Sr. No. Particulars Note No. For the year ended 
31  March,2013

For the year ended 
31  March,2012

1 Revenue from operations (gross)  -  56,780 
2 Other income  -  - 
3 Total revenue (1+2)  -  56,780 

4 Expenses 9  2,245,910  1,478,241 
Total expenses  2,245,910  1,478,241 

5 Profit / (Loss) before tax  (2,245,910)  (1,421,461)

Profit / (Loss) before tax   (2,245,910)  (1,421,461)

6 Tax expense:
Current tax expense  -  - 

 (2,245,910)  (1,421,461)

7 Profit / (Loss) for the year  (2,245,910)  (1,421,461)

8 Basic Earning per share (4.49) (147.82)
Diluted Earning per share (4.49) (147.82)

Significant Accounting Policies 2

As per our Report of even date
For Naresh S. Shah & Associates
(Chartered Accountants)

CA Naresh S.Shah 
Proprietor
Membership No. 10585
Firm Reg No. 127332W

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

Vivek Arya Anand Ramchandran
(Director) (Director)

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Sr. No. Particulars  Current Year  Previous year 
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net profit (Loss) before Tax (2,245,910) (1,421,461)

Operating Profit (Loss) before working capital changes (2,245,910) (1,421,461)

ADJUSTMENT FOR:
Trade Payables & short term provisions (36,844) 42,080

Cash used in operations (2,282,754) (1,379,381)

Net Cash used in operating activities   (A) (2,282,754) (1,379,381)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  -  - 
Net Cash used in Investing activities   (B)  -  - 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in Fixed Assets 14,643 (68,786)
Change in Intangible assets (1,150,750) (1,696,546)
Change in miscellaneous expenditure (Fully w/off) 191,910 (66,022)
Increase in Paid up Capital 4,900,000  - 
Unsecured Loan Repaid (1,771,090) 3,100,000

Net Cash used in Financing activities   (C) 2,184,713 1,268,646

Net Increase in cash & cash activities (A+B+C) (98,041) (110,735)

OPENING BALANCE
Cash & Bank Balance 109,635 220,370
CLOSING BALANCE
Cash & Bank Balance 11,594 109,635

As per our Report of even date
For Naresh S. Shah & Associates
(Chartered Accountants)

CA Naresh S.Shah 
Proprietor
Membership No. 10585
Firm Reg No. 127332W

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

Vivek Arya Anand Ramchandran
(Director) (Director)

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai

MAKESENSE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
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1. Corporate information - MakeSense Technologies  Private Limited. The Company is incorporated on 21/09/2010 Under Registration 
No. U74999MH 2010PTC 207974 having its registered office at 7, SllIn Heights, Sun City Complex, Mumbai 400076. The company’s 
main activity is providing services and solutions in relation to placement consultancy, personnel recruitment, staffing etc, and to 
develop, possess, buy, sell and market certain technological solutions in area of placement consultancy including technologies like 
development and marketing of recruitment framework software. Company has not yet generated significant revenue as it this is only 
the 3rd year of the company.

2. :

a) Basis of Accounting

These accounts are prepared on historical cost basis and on the principle of going concern. Method of accounting employed 
by the company is mercantile system. The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply’ with the Accounting Standards notified under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make estimates and 
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported 
income and expenses during the reporting period. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

c) Tangible Assets:

Tangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and incidental expenses related thereto, less 
accumulated depreciation.

d) Depreciation:

Depreciation on fixed assets are provided on straight-line method as per rates and in the manner specified in the Schedule XIV 
to the Companies Act, 1956.

e) Taxation

Current tax is NIL because, company has not had any revenue in current year.

f) Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by. the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the reporting period.

g) Miscellaneous expenditure (written off in current year)

Mainly consists of increase of authorized capital costs and promotional expenditure which is now written off in current year, 
as considered reasonable by management.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
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Note 3- Share capital 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2013  As at 31st March, 2012 

 Number of shares `  Number of shares `

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of 10/-  each with voting rights 500,000 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000

500,000 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000

(b) Issued Share Capital
500000 Equity Shares of `10 each 500,000 5,000,000 10,000 1,00,000
fully paid up

5,00,000 5,00,0000 10,000 1,00,000

(c) Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
500000 Equity Shares of `10 each 500,000 5,000,000 10,000 100,000

500,000 5,000,000 10,000 100,000

Total  500,000  5,000,000  10,000  100,000 

Notes:
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Opening
Balance

Fresh
issue

Bonus ESOP Conversion Buy Other changes 
(give details)

Closing
Balance

Equity shares with voting rights
Year ended 31st March, 2012

- Number of shares 10,000 -  -  -  -  -  - 10,000
- Amount (`) 100,000 -  -  -  -  -  - 100,000

Year ended 31st March, 2013
- Number of shares 10,000 490,000  -  -  -  -  - 500,000
- Amount (`) 100,000 4,900,000  -  -  -  -  - 5,000,000

Presently, the issued, subscribed and paid up capital of company comprises of only 1 class of capital - equity having par value of `10 per share. 

Company increased its authorised capital from 150,000 to `5,000,000 during the year and its paid up capital from `1 lakh to `50 lakhs, against 
cash.

Note 4 Reserves and surplus 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2012

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance  (1,851,669)  (430,208)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year  (2,245,910)  (1,421,461)
Closing balance  (4,097,579)  (1,851,669)

Total  (4,097,579)  (1,851,669)

Note 5-Borrowings Details 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2012

Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Advet Advisory Pvt Ltd  -  -  -  1,300,000 
Ravi Jakhar  -  -  -  1,150,000 
Ravi Jakhar (For Shares)  -  -  -  1,650,000 
Samrat Fageria  -  -  -  100,000 
Info Edge India Ltd  -  2,428,910  -  - 

Total  -  2,428,910  -  4,200,000 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
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Note 6-Current liabilities & provisions

Particulars As at 31st Mar, 2013 As at 31st Mar, 2012

Amount Amount

Trade Payable
Naresh S Shah & Associates  25,000  15,000 
CA Kunjan Shah  10,000 

Duties & Taxes
TDS payable  -  17,223 
Credit Card Settlement A/c  -  19,621 

Total  25,000  61,844 

Note 7 Fixed Assets

Particulars

As on 
01.04.12

Additions
for the 

Year

Deductions/
Retirement
during the 

year

Total As on 
01.04.12

 For the 
year

Deductions/
Retirement
during the 

year

 Upto 
31.03.13

 As on 
31.03.13

 As on 
31.03.12

Tangible Assets

Furniture and 
Fixtures (LG A/c)

 33,144  -  -  33,144  -  2,098  2,098  31,046  33,144 

Computer
(including printer)

 77,392  -  77,392  -  12,545  12,545  64,847  77,392 

Current year total  110,536  -  -  110,536  -  14,643  -  14,643  95,893  110,536 

Intangible assets

Software/
application under 
development

 2,098,094  1,150,750  3,248,844  3,248,844  2,098,094 

Note 8-Miscelleneous expenditure

Particulars As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2012
` `

Formation Fees  16,000 
ROC increase in authorised capital fees  91,200  91,200 
Promotional Exp  84,710  84,710 
Less : W/off during the year  -175,910  - 

Total  -  191,910 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
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Note 9 Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

 31st March, 2013  31st March, 2012 
Directors remuneration  393,000  132,500 
Monthly Allowances to directors  269,000  - 
Professional Fees  41,000  11,000 
Payment to Auditor (Mainly statutory Audit fees)  25,000  15,000 
Professional Tax  41,500  - 
Bank Charges  505  138 
Repairs & Maintainance  6,100  24,400 
Electricity Charges  120,510  129,490 
Telephone & Mobile charges  44,568  51,571 
Office Rent  329,000  327,000 
SMS & Dedicated long code service Pack Charges  37,753  42,921 
Internet Chagres  115,563  9,870 
Other exp  24,672  387,504 
Preliminary Exps w/off  4,000  4,000 
Travelling Expenses  58,803  227,800 
Advertising Exp  10,350  - 
BPO Teleservices  104,522  - 
HR Conference  7,303  - 
IVR Recording Project  10,000  - 
Printing & Stationery  500  - 
PRI Port Rental  93,301  - 
PRI Telephone Line Rental  46,399  - 
ROC Filing Fees  7,000  - 
Staff Welfare  2,500  - 
Technical charges  -  60,665 
Web Server & Domain Rental  262,508  - 
Misc exp w/off during the year  175,910  43,978 
Depreciation on tangible assets  14,643  10,404 

Total  2,245,910  1,478,241 
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10. In the opinion of the Board, all the current assets, loans and advances, which are shown in the financial statement, have realizable 
value in the ordinary course of the business at least equivalent to the amount at which they are stated.

11. Intangible asset is mainly payments to software experts including employee’s salaries that were used for software development.

12. Company has increased authorised capital from ̀ 1.50 lakhs to ̀ 50 lakhs issuing 490000 equity shares of ̀ 10 each fully paid up against 
cash.

13. The board is of the opinion that the provisions of Gratuity Act are not applicable to the Company

14. Related Party Disclosures:

The company has below transactions with related parties within the meaning of Accounting Standard - 18:-

Key management persons (KMP) -Mr. Vivek Arya, Mr. Anand R, Mr. Sumit Kundu

Parent company (as on 31.3.2013) - Info Edge (India) Limited

Major Ex-shareholder (as on 31.3.2013)- Mr.Ravi Jakhar, Vivek Arya, Anand R, Sumit Kundu

Particular of Transaction KMP Ex Shareholder Parent Company
Total Director’s Remuneration (paid before company was 
taken over by public company)

`3.93
(Previous Year `1.32)

Cash allowance
(paid before company was taken over by public company)

`2.69
(Previous year `2.27)

Loan Repayment 24.10
(Previous year `11.50)

Loan Taken 24.28
New Allotment of Share 49.00

After the -above new allotment of `49 lakh shares, on or around 20.3.2013, individual shareholders of the company sold their 499999 
shares to public limited company Info Edge (India) Limited and one share was sold to Naukri Internet Services Pvt Ltd 1  thus making 
this company a 99.99% subsidiary of Info Edqe (India) Limited. Hence, technically, this company becomes a public limited company, 
though the words Pvt. Ltd, arc stated in this company,

15. As company is just taken over in Feb/March 2013 by a public company and directors are also likely to change, as on 31.3,2013, certain 
compliances specifically required for public companies like audit committees, etc. are in process of being completed,

16. Company shall file file a compliance certificate u/s. 383A in due course of time.

17. The Revised Schedule VI has become effective from 1 April, 2011 for the preparation of flnanclal statements the disclosure and 
presentation mace in the financial statements.

For Naresh S.Shah &. Associates
(Chartered Accountants)

CA Naresh S. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No. 10585
Firm Reg,No, 127332W

Dated: May 1, 2013 
Place: Murnbai

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Makesense Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

Vivek Arya Anand Ramchandran
(Director) (Director)

Date: May 1, 2013
Place: Mumbai
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